Oswego County BOCES
Board of Education
W450 - Public Safety Classroom
179 County Route 64, Mexico, NY 13114
Regular Meeting
Executive Session Immediately Following the Regular Meeting

WEDNESDAY

REGULAR MEETING OCTOBER 16, 2013

NMogtn kWMo

AGENDA

CaLL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PRESENTATIONS

FacHITIES REPORT - C & S COMPANIES

PusLic COMMENTS

ApPPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 18, 2013 REGULAR BOARD MEETING
FINANCE

1.1

P

7.3

7.4

1.5

7.6

Fit)

7.8

List of Bills Approved and Ordered Pald by the Internal Claims Auditor.

Financial Reports. Please see enclosures.

7.21  Student Club Account

7.22 Treasurer's Report

7.23 Budget Status Report & Transfers Greater Than $50,000

Internal Claims Auditor Report, Please see enclosures,

Resolution for Disposal of Surplus Equipment — October 4, 2013, Please see enclosure.
BE IT RESOLVED that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services declares the
attached listing of equipment as surplus and authorizes proper disposal of such.

Resolution to Accept the Independent Audit Report and Management Letter

BE IT RESOLVED that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services accepts the
Independent Audit Report and Management Letter contalning the Administrative Responses/Action Plan
to the Management Letter submitted by Raymond F. Wager, CPA, P.C. for the year ended June 30, 2013,

int Interim De Tr rer. Please see enclosure.
BE IT RESOLVED that further to the Resolution 7.3 Appolntment of Deputy Treasurer, originally adopted
at the July 10, 2013 Reorganizational Meeting of the Board, the Oswego County Board of Cooperative
Educational Services hereby appoints Jennifer Woods as Interim Deputy Treasurer in the absence of the
Deputy Treasurer for the school year, at a stipend of $895 to be prorated to her duration of appointment.

Resolution to Amend Audit Committee Charter. Please see enclosure.

BE IT RESOLVED that the Oswego County BOCES Audit Committee Charter be revised to include the
following language in the "Internal Audit Focus"” section of the Charter:

» Review the internal audit plan to ensure that high-risk areas and key control activities are
periodically Identified, evaluated and tested.

2014-15 Budget Development Goals and Parameter Discussion.




9.

10.

11.

12,
13.

14.

15.

PERSONNEL
8.1 Personnel Actions. Please see enclosure,

RESOLVED, that upon the recommendation of the District Superintendent of Schools, that the Oswego
County Board of Cooperative Educational Services approve the Personnel Section of the agenda, effective
as Indicated.

8.11 Leave of Absence

8,12 Resignations

8.13 Appointments

B.14 Substitutes

INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPORT
9.1 Instructional Support Services Update — October 2013. Please See Enclosure,

9.2 Crossroads Academy Report. Please See Enclosure.
9.3 Career & Technical Education Update. Please See Enclosure.

SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

PRESIDENT'S REPORT

11,1 Resolution to Approve Secand Reading and Adoption of Board Policies. Please see enclosure,
RESGLVED, that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services hereby approves the
Second Reading of Board Policies:

2410 — Code of Conduct on BOCES Properly

4310 — Purchasing

4571 — Information Security Breach and Notification

5130 — Evaluation of Personnel

5341 — Family And Medical Leave Act

6310 — Student Evaluation

6464 — Dignity For All Students Act

6492 — Student Data Breaches

7150 — Civility, Citizenship and Character Education/Interpersonal Violence Prevention Education

¥ Y Y Y Y Y YYY

(First Reading: Moved by: Matthew Geitner, Seconded by Gregory Muench)

INFORMATION

Boarp ForuM/DISCUSSION

EXECUTIVE SESSION
14.1 MNegotiations of Administrators’ Contract

ADIOURNMENT




ﬂs}weﬁﬂ' if@cmfy

BOCES

CHRISTOPHER J. TODD, District Superintendent/Executive Officer Phone 315-963-4227
Fax 315.963-4475
clodderoswegoboras. org
Memorandum
TO: Members of the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services

FROM: Christopher J. Todd |
District Superintendent /

DATE: October 16, 2013
SUBJECT: BOARD MEETING HEADS UP - SEPTEMBER 18, 2013

Finance — Under "Finance” you will notice a resolution to accept the Independent Audit Report and
Management Letter for the year ended June 30, 2013. There s also a resolution to appoint an
interim Deputy Treasurer to cover for Eileen Dreher. Finally you will notice a resolution to amend the
Audit Committee Charter to be sure that high-risk areas and key control activities are periodically
identified, evaluated and tested.

All in all, T believe this is a pretty routine Board meeting that doesn’t need much explanation. There
will be a need for an Executive Session following the regular meeting to discuss the Administrators’
Contract negotiations.

CIma

OsWEGO COUNTY BoARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
179 Counly Route 64, Mexico, New York 13114
Christopher J. Todd, Distiict Superintendent/Executive Officer



Cad

COMPANIES"

Additions and Alterations to

District Facilities

Monthly Report
OCTOBER 2013



Table of Conte_n_ts )

Summary of Key Activitics
Owner Required Actions
Project Summary

Project Schedule

Project Financials
Progress Photos

Attachments
120 Day Project Schedule
Cost Proposal Log

Cost Worksheet

pg. 3
pg. 3
pg. 4
pg. 6
pg.7

pg. 8



Summary of Key Activities

® Separation barriers constructed between major portions of the work and student occupied
spaces,

o (-110 Boiler Room asbestos abatement and demolition completed.

o 5-330 wall demolition and mezzanine demolition completed.

®  5-330 underground sanitary piping for new Construction Tech shop completed.

¢ Sampled suspect Asbestos Containing Materials in Phase | - Floor Tile, Window Glazing and
Expansion Caulk tested positive for Ashestos.

o Discovered mastic between double layers of drywall at Phase H, confirmed ashestos cantaining
material.

Board of Education Required Actions

1. Approval of Metal Panel Wainscot Proposal.




Project Summary

Since the last project update delivered on September 18, 2013 the balance of the
contractors have mobilized to the site and significant demolition work has started.

Overall, the project is still faced with a multitude of hazardous materials (Asbestos, Lead
and PCB’s) issues that can be attributed to both found materials and a lack of information in the
pre-construction hazardous materials inspection report. The discovery of additional materials
has caused significant delays in phase H (Central Classroom Area), | (Horticulture Shop) and K
(Computer Networking Shop). Mr. Todd, Mr. Sheperd, Mr. Wideman and Mr. Van Wie met
onsite with AECC, the districts project monitoring firm, on September 25" to discuss the
pending additional bulk sampling and to discuss concerns regarding the integrity of the
sampling data that was being collected. AECC collected a second set of bulk samples from the
materials identified as paositive in the Horticulture and Central Classroom Areas and sent them
to a second lab for analysis. The results returned near identical results from the second lab as
the first and confirmed that both the process by which the samples were collected and the
analysis of the samples was done accurately. The larger issue at hand as communicated to the
board at the September 18" update was the concern of a significant cost increase for the
abatement work in subseguent phases for materials identified through additional testing. That
analysis is expected to be complete by the board meeting but is not available for this report.

Despite the scheduling setbacks that are being felt because of the additional hazardous
materials the work at ground floor of W450 which will become the new print shop is targeting a
completion date of mid-November as originally scheduled. Contractors have completed
demolition and are in the process of completing rough-in and preparing the area for paint and
floaring finishes,

Work at the trades building (S-330) phase P & Q is progressing. The mechanical
contractor has started to rough-in HWS/R piping and laying out the boiler room. The plumbing
contractor has completed the underground for Phase P the new Construction Tech shop. The
general contractor has started to cut and infill several new exterior openings. We anticipate
that by the end of the month we will start wall framing and be significantly underway with our
mechanical rough-in.

Work at the Main Building (C-110) is most impacted by the additional hazardous
materials. Work is progressing in Phase H, J and K, but more slowly than first anticipated. Work
at the existing O&M space that is being renovated into the new boiler room is moving along,
the asbestos contractor has completed his work and the trades contractors are working on
demolition and starting to layout the new work. We anticipate the balance of our hazardous




materials issues to be addressed by the end of the week October 18" and will get started with
heavy demolition, including wall removal and slab demolition.

The overall impact of the recent discovery of the wall mastic being confirmed as an
ashestos containing material is still being analyzed. We expect to have more information at the
time of the Board Meeting. We expect a significant financial and scheduling impact and are in
the process of analyzing both,

The students and staff over the first month and half of construction have been great to
work with. The staff has been accommodating to our request to work in their classrooms before
and after classes.




Project Schedule

Attached to this report you will find a 120 Day master project schedule that outlines the
task to complete from September — December 2013. Currently we are in the process of
updating the project schedule to document the impact of the additional hazardous materials.
We are estimating currently that we are approximately 3 weeks behind schedule; we expect the
analysis to be complete by the end of the week of October 18" and will have a better
understanding of the impact at the end of the analysis.

We are anticipating that several of the phases slated for turnover during December of
2013 will likely be turned over during February of 2013. Part of the analysis will include the
revised completion dates of several of the intermediate phases, while trying to hold the end
completion date of December 2014.

We are still planning to relocate the Print Shop to their newly renovated space during
Movember as originally planned.




Project Financials

Approved Referendum
Incidental Budget

Phase 2 — Site work Project

$35,423,055
$ 7,746,551

$ 1,936,050

Construction Budget

$25,740,454

8 - i Awardedfantract Value Projected Contract Value

Asbestos Abatement % 271,000 $311,711
Athletic Equipment _§_389,B?3 5389 878

| Communications Cabling 5 716,400 5716,400
Casework Contract ' S 437,500 5437,500
Electrical Contract 53,771,000 53,771,000
Food Service Contract S 650,900 $650,900
General Trades Contract 59,805,000 59,805,000
HVAC Contract 55,914,000 $5,914,000
Plumbing Contract ~ $2,410,340 $2,410,340
Roofing Contract 51,032,000 $1,032,000
Total $25,398,018 $25,438,729
Balance $342,436 $301,725

See the attached proposal log for a breakdown of the pending / approved change orders or

proposal request issued to date.

See the attached cost worksheet for a breakdown of cost by contract, The awarded contract
value from the table above is a sum of the base contract value plus any base contract allowance
broken out in the cost worksheet. The projected contract value is the base contract value, plus
the balance of the contract allowance, plus any pending / approved change orders. At this point
we anticipate spending all of the base contract allowances.




Progress Photos

Maln CTE Bullding — Phase H: Wall Demolition, ACM Mastlc Discovery,

I

= =

....I...lk

‘U H ! -m.n.l.

Main CTE Building — Phase J: Horticulture Classroom f Shop Demolition.




Main CTE Building — Phase K: Wall Mastic Abatement. The halance of the demolition in this space is
camplete,

Main CTE Building — Corridor Pipe Fitting Abatement: Completed over Columbus Day Weekend,




Trades Building — Phase P: New Construction Tech Shop. Demolition Complete, underground sanitary
rough-in complete, overhead mechanical rough-in started.

Trades Building — Phase Q: New Outdoor Power Shop. General Demolition nearly completed.
Mezzanine and Mechanical Demolition completed.

10




Was0 — Phase U: Mew Print Shop Renovation. Demolition Completed. Mechanical Rough-In and
Ceiling / Wall Patch and Prep for painting ongoing.

11




L.

dag

£1. T des

€1, 'SZENY |

Ly'S8'pe'9s' 1S'IY

e W) Rk

ET/L/0T vow

or EL/Z/0T Pam

sv ET/T/0T @nL

ET/LT/6 1]

¥Z ET/Z/6uow

SAEp 645492y ET/ET/6 14
€ €T/L1/6 3Nt

€1/0T/0T nyL

ET/ET/6 114

£T/ET/6 14d

vI/T/T PaM

TEET/IT/ET Uo
PIAL/E M ET/EE/TT uow

tE
LE'QE'YE

BT/TE/T 14

TE €T/0z/zT 14
TEET/9T/2T uoi
0E ET/9T/0T Pam
TEET/1Z/0T Uo

[
[§§ 4 ITM[IJW § s[d L Mm{LJAJS]S 4 L1[M[L ¥

&L
8L

o

L
i

g

Aep T+545
¥

Aep T-S4€
S5Z

5105533203

£1/6/0T pam
£1/2/0T pam,

£T/42/6 14
vT/TE T 1d
ET/LT/B AN
vTfTE/T g
£T/92/8 Oy
vrfrefe ud
grfzz/or any
ET/E£T/8 144
£T/Z/8 1ud
ET/0E/L 3Nl
ET/6T/L uow
eT/Sg/L Nyl
ET/YT/L PaM
ET/LT/E PR
ET/L1/9 uow
gr/ee/a 1

Ystuld|

L o A R

ET/E/0T NYL
ET/Z/0T Pam
E1/0€/6 uow
ET/EZ/6 UoW

€T/ie/Ban,

£1/0T/6 anL
€1/91/6 UOW
£1/9z/8 uow
E1/8/6 UoN
EL/6/6 uo
£T/L1f9 uow
ETfzz/oT any

vL/L1/2 uo
ET/ZZ/OT 9Nl
ET/ZE/0T @n]
£T/0T/0T Nyl
ET/LT/0T Nyl

ET/E/OT NYL
ET/0E/6 Lo

EL/8T/6 Pam
£1/81/6 Pem

ET/Lzfganl
ETfLT/8 uopw
E1/5Z/8 uoi
ET/LT/9 uon
ET/TE/L Pom
EL/TE/L Pam
ET/TE/L pam

ET/0E/L anl
£1/62/L Uom

ET/ST/L Nyl
EL/LT/L Pam
ET/LT/9 uo
EI/L1/9 uow
ET/LT/9 UON

HElS

SABp £

Aep T
shep g
sheEp §
shep g

shep ¢
shep ¢
shep ¥
shep g
shep g
shep €vT
shep o
shep oF
shep g
shep 4+
shep oy
shep g
shep ¢
shED §
sAEp €

shep g
shep €11
ABp T
shep 081
Aep T
éshep 8T
sAED 09
sAep gt
shep g
ABp T
ABp T
AepT
shep g
shep £2
ihep 1
ésAep Qs

ucEEIng

SHOO
DN INY
JLINDIAEIS
FL®al

NA

123r0dd SIANTINI €
<

d3lddYe NOILLYE3

MI-HDAC
NIFHE2NC

MI-HDNC
MI-HEM(

(N
IINVHYITD ‘dIdd SIANTINI)

NOILLYZ

d3anDYddy S300

aInsst 433acoy




|

. - - — — _ — — —_—— — __ _ _ _ ___ _ _ _ .}
.
: =

STS[I[ LM I W[s[5 4

LML W s /s[4l m L W

dag| EL, T dag]|

ET, ‘52 any €1, 3T

95 'shep
Z-5498'sAep -S499 £T/0Z/TT Pam
SET/IT/TT VO E£T/8/TT 14
66'/B'PE'TA06'68' Y8 ET/L/TTNUL  ET/T/TT M
€8 £T/TE/0T NYLET/OE/OT PaM
78 ET/6Z/0T 2Nl ET/9¢/0T Yo
85 ET/SZ/OT M4 £T/ET/0T PaM
£I/62/IT M3 €T/s/6NyL
6S ET/91/ZT oW £T/TT/2T Pam
001’8499 ET/ST/TT UOW ET/BT/TT aNL
9/ ET/2T/IT UO  ET/S/TTanL
99 £T/SZ/TT WO ET/BT/TT anL
shep =549 ET/F/TT UON ET/ZZ/OT @nL
¥£4'99 ET/6/ZT WO ET/EfZT anL
LL't6 ET/T/ET UOW ET/9Z/TT 3N
£9'99'6S ET/TT/ZT POM ET/TT/ZT P2
sAep £-54¥9 ET/0E/0T PaM ET/0E/0T PEM
62'69'79'6S ET/VPL/ZT BNLET/BT/TT PIM
shep §-s4¥9  E€T/T/TT M4 ET/8Z/0T UC
59 €T/8T/TT WO ET/PT/TT NYL
65 ET/ET/ZTMAET/TT/ZT PEMm
65 ET/ZT/TT NYLEL/TT/ZT PEM
S99 ET/BT/TT WO ET/PT/TT NYL

shep §-549¢ 74 ‘shep
€-540L ET/ET/TT P ET/TE/0T NYL
shep7-5485  €T/I/TT L4 £T/TZ/0T Uoiy
£1/vz/ZT @nLET/TZ/0T o
65 ET/LT/ZTANLET/TT/ZT PaMm
£1/8T/o@nl E€T//1/9 uoW
05 ET/LT/OTNYL  ET/TT/OT 1
g8'sABp 8745485 £T/0T/ZT anl ET/Z/ZT uow
1909 €T/zz/oT@nL  ET/8T/0T 14
£L/LT/ZT 2Nl £1/L1/9 uo

D R L e I T A S S R R R R

ET/ST/TT 14

£1/9/6 144 £€T/9z/8 UoW
P EL/P/EpPam ET/E/EaNL
95 EL/6/6UOIW  £1/6/6 UOW
b ET/E/EPeM ET/EfE3aNL

€ ET/LT/6 BN ET/9/6UON

slossatapal

Ysiutd ues)

shep ¥ Sy3IgqUoa B g
m._.ﬂ_m_u T
shep g SLI4405
shep 7
shEp g ONIAYYS NOLLILYY.
SAEP £ ONIZYOAINITY 13TLS T
shep zg
shep i
shepg $30
shep QT GNITEVD SWILSAS 1B AYLI
shep g AYAN 30WH QILNNC
shep 0T
m}m_u g
m}m—.._ g
Aep 1 NOLLYIO!
Aep 1 ONIdI
shep g
shep g SNIdid ILSFM
shep € L YOO / 11V
shep g JYYMOHS
shep 7 NOLLILYY,
shep g
shep o1 SNOILILHYd |
shep 0T SNOILILY
sAep Lty
m}m_n_ g
shep 7 LINANGD 9%
shep g SNIdid g%
shep £ BNIHOOT
shep e
shep zeT
shep QT
shep g ONI18Y]
Aep 1 NOLU
shep g NYC
shep g SNIdld ATddNs
Uajedng




r.ﬂ‘

..._.m LTa 1 W[

ET, T d85

5

ifl[m L WS §

TZT  ET/L/TTNUL E€T/T/IT 44

shep §

1NO:

£T,'5Z dny

BYTLYTSPTEPT'VET ET/TL/ZT PBM ET/9/2T shep g :
€T ET/BT/IT®NL ET/ST/IT 4 shep g
TET ET/PT/TTNYLET/TT/IT Uy shep ¢ MO HS
02T €T/TE/0T NYL €T/8Z/0T UoN shep ¢ SNOILILY
0ZT £T/1E/0T NYLET/8Z/0T uo shep ST
62T £1/52/0T U4 £T/£Z/0T pam shep g
ET/SZ/ZT PSMET/IT/0T PaM shep 15
T1T ET/0T/0T Nyl E€T/8/0T anL SABD £
IIT ET/E/0T Pamy  €1/8/0T @nL shep z
TIT ET/0T/O0T Nyl ET/8/0TanL shep £
TITET/F#T/0T UOWW  ET/8/0T 2Nl shep g
€1T €T/sT/oT2nl  E€T/1T/0T 14 shep £
TIT ET/0T/OT Nyl ET/8/0T anL shep g NOIL
E1/61/9 Papy ET/Z1/9 Uow shep £ §,92d SY TeAOV
80T E£T/4/0T WOl ET/L/0T Vo Aep T N/
60T €T/08/6uoN  E€T/L2/6 14 shep z DN[TdIAY
ET/9g/6 Nyl E£T/£2/6 VoI shep {dnL3s s3an1on
L0T  ET/p/OT M4 ET/E/0T Nyl shep z ik
OTT £1/Z/0TPamy  ET/L/OT 8Nl SABP Z 79 dNL3S 103r0dd S3anTomni) ¢
ET/sT/OT oL ET/LT/9 voW shep /8
ET/0S/ZT VoW ET/LTfouon  sAep TvT
£0T  ¥T/T/T Pamy ET/9¢/ZT Nyl shep g H 3S¥Hd QL S
08'6L'SL'EL' TL'8Y'LO ET/ST/LT PIM ET/SE/TT PaM Aep T
L8 ET/ST/TT UoW EL/TZ/IT NyL sAep g
70T €1/8¢/TT Nyl £1/9g/TT2nL shep g STOYLN
66 EL/w/OT U4 ET/22/6 Yol sAep 0T SNITEVD SINILSAS B AYL
95  ET/OZ/6 L4 ET/6/6 uon shep 0T AYdL 318Y0 / SHIDNYH
LBET/ST/TT VO ET/TZ/TT NYL shep €
66  ET/P/0T M4 ET/EZ/6 uon shep 01
S6 EI/9Z/6 Nyl ET/vEfeenl shep g LNINLINT
6 E€T/cg/6uUoin  ET/61/6 Nyl shep £
€5 ET/ET/6Pam  ET/S/6 Nyl sAep 0T
LBET/ST/TT VO ET/TZ/TT NYL shep g
€5 £1/8T/6 Pam £T/5/6 Nyl shep 0T NI
LBET/ST/TT VOW ET/TT/TT MYl shep g savat
R TS5 EL/T/0TRANL €1/81/6 PaM shep 01 NOILD3.
370 M 1[W]
€T, 8T 2 5105530302l ysitid| Helg uoieing|




]

S S J4[L[m L Ws[s 4 L m[l/Wws

Bof R e R R

19T EL/v/6 Pam
€91 ETL/E/0T nuL
891'59T'09T £1/08/6 UoW
191 E1/¢/6 Yo

ET/87/R pamm

6ST  ET/vT/eanL
EF'T9T  ET/0E/E 14
ET//0T Nyl

€TfeT/TT U

SET'EET'OET'8ET L2T ET/0E/2T uow
SIT E1/ST/0T =nL

BET ET/9Z/TT anl

$ETZST  ET/E/ZT anl
BET EL/8C/TT NYL
S1T £1/8Z/0T uoy
BET €T/¢e/TT 14
EET £T/SE/1T ol
LIT ET/PT/0T voi
GET £1/9E/1T vo
L1T £1/9T/01 pPam
BET ET/9E/TT O
91T £T/9T/0T Pam
6ET ET/ZZ/TT 14

L L e e L Y

ET/6Z/8 Nyl
ET/T/0T ANL
ET/ST/6 pam
EL/6Z/8 NYL
£1/92/8 UoW
£1/€2/6 UOW

E1/8T/6 P2
€1/oz/g uowy
€1/9z/8 uowy
er/9z/eT Nyl
ET/TT/0T 14
ET/TT/TT 144

ET/6Z/TT 114

TPT EL/LT/OT NYLET/IT/OT P

Q1T mﬁ___mﬁ\.n_.ﬁ =]
ECT'TTT €T/8T/TT uoin
'BFT'OFT PHT ZPT'OPT ET/TE/TT NYL

£T/efZT Nl £1/0T/0T Nyl

SZT ET/9T/ET uo
STTET/8T/ET Pam
YET'STT ET/8T/TT Pam
GET'TET ET/SZ/TT NUL
TET'STT'WTT €T/8T/ZT PaM

GET'TET  ET/S/ZTNYL  ET/2Z/1T 14

sAep $-S47ZT'SSTET

CE €T, T 095 |

€T, "5z &Ny

_ 9ET ET/SZ/ZT PAM
i bt il
£, BT ¢ 5J0SSRdAPal| NEIITE

£T/3/11 114 £T/8Z/0T uow

sABp §
shep g
sAep t
sAep £
shep £
shep 7

shEp £

shep 62
shep g8
shep g
shep £
shep g

shep ¢

T

® IV IINVYYITI SIANIDNI) ¢

4 38%Hd WO

S3ur

QILNNOW SNITIED TIVLSNE B

ET/2E/T1 14 shep g
ET/ST/OT 2nL shep 01
ET/2e/TT 14 hep 1
E1/ze/T1 14 shep z SHN/S
£T/0T/0T NyL shep g
g1/ee/T1 4 shep ¢
£1/0T/0T nyL shep § NI-
E1/22/11 14 shep Z
ET/IT/0T 144 shep i NI-HDM!
£1/22/11 14 Aep T
SAEP T
£1/IT/0T 14 shep g
ET/ST/TT 14 shepz
ET/ET/IT @nL shep g STWIINYHIIN
sABp 65
ET/LT/ET NYL shep £
ET/TT/TT NYL shep g >
ET/TT/TT NYL shep g SaLy
ET/TE/TT 144 shep g
ET/ZT/ZT NYL shep g S31%
m}mﬁ_ 0T
shep 0T NI-HONOY 1IN
EL/6T/TINYL  sheps S34r
HEw uaijeing




I[1l[m L W[S[s 4 1 m[LTW § 5

des

€1/7/6 Pam

ET/v/6 PaM

sT/isfeT @nL
sT/TEfZT @nL

BAT'6ST E£T/ST/6 Pam
S8T EL/TZ/TT nYL

O0Z'86T ET/2Z/TT Nyl
SBT ET/SE/TT WOl

SaT ET/RT/6 PEM

581 E€L/6T/TT @nL
SRTET/OT/TT Pam

£9T  ET/0/6 Pam

GRT ET/0Z/TT PaMm
12'02'49T  £T/8/0T anL
52T ET/0T/TT PEM
0Z'6T'99T E£T/4/0T UON
G8T ETL/GT/IT anL

8T €T/8/0T AnL
02'99T  EL/¥/0T 14
ELT'TZT ET/ET/TT PR
YET'Z6T 06T 88T 98T E1/8T/1T UOW
£1/82/1T nyL

C8T'SLT  ET/ET/ET 144

SRT'6LT €1/SZ/TT O

08T'SLT'vLT  ET/ET/TT 1A
SBT'BLT ET/EZ/TT uow

ST LBT'PLY ET/ST/TIT UOW

$9T ET/0T/0T NyL

rPT'ZT'SLT £1/0T/ZT @nL
'S6T'S6T'TRT BRI VAT E£1/9/21 14
ELT ET/YI/TT YL

LT ET/TT/IT UOW

| | ' lm

LLT ET/ST/0T =Nl
| eT/eT/eT
/L M1 W _ -
- €L 8lE 51055303paId| Ysiul4

ZLT'SSTAT  EL/S/TT Nl ET/EZ/0T PaMm

TTTITDLT ET/TZ/0T @NLET/OT/0T PaM
DLT ET/TZ/0T ol £T/9T/0T Pam,

€T/e/6enl shep T ONY H 3S%Hd 0L HOSS3Y
€T/ef6enL shep z SALLIID
£T/efeanL shep 9g
€T/eT/ouoly  ishep gt
ET/€2/6 vow shep €
ET/6T/TT 3Nl shep g SIYr
£T/9¢/TT ®NL SABP € QILNNOW DNMIED TIWLISNI B
ET/6T/TT anlL shep g
£1/5/6 nyL shep 0T
£T/6T/TT anL Aep 1
£1/6T/TT anL shep g 5
ET/E/6 Vo shep g
ET/BT/IT anL shep z
ET/Z/0T Pam shep g NI-
ET/6T/TT =N shepz
£T/2/0T Pa shEp ¥ NIFHSM
ET/6T/TT anL AP T
£1/L/0T uoW shep g
€1/2/0T PaM shep €
€T/21/1T anL shep g
ET/PT/TT NYL shep g STVIINYHIIN
€L/zf6 uo shep p3
ET/6/2TT UOW shep g SaLy
ET/BT/TT anL sAep g
ET/6/TT UOW shep g S31x
ET/6T/TT anL shep Ot
shep 0T NI-HONOY Lina
ET/ST/TT 144 shep z {T-HMH) 331
£T/%/0T 14 shep g NI-HS(
£T/6/2T UoW shep g El
eT/efTTany shep ¢ ;
ET/ZT/IT ANy shep g
€1/9/TT Pam SABP 1 2O HSI
shep g SNOILILY
shep ST
ET/TT/0T 14 sAep g
ET/p/0T M4 shep1g
|
yels  uonedng




STSsTa L M 1 WIS

dag|

ET, ‘T dag

L Lk B R

TFZ ET/8T/IT UoW

SSTTST ET/TT/TT o

\ET'SABP S+448EZ'STT ET/ET/0T P
2E€Z £T/6/0T PaM

vrsz E1/8/01 ent

ETfrzfzienL

L0z £T/¥/6 Pam

LOZ  E€T/V/6 Pam

L0?  ET/5/6 Nyl

ogz  £1/iz/E 14

L0T  ET/v/6 Pam

L0Z  ET/SfenyL
GEZ'YEZ'TET'ITT0ZZ E£1/SZ/6 P
102  ET/t/6 Pam

LEz  Erfoz/e M4
ofP'ZET'6TT'STT'S0T  £T/0T/6 anL
L07 €1/9/6 144

10T €T/s/6nyL

L0Z  ET/¥/6 Pam

_ E1/L2T/6 14
£1fvefer anL

iTZ  ET/iz/e1d
6TZ ET/OT/OT Nyl
8Tz €1/8/0T Nl
STz E€Tfr/o0T ANl
STZ ET/9T/6 Nyl
STz  €I/T/oTen|
vIZ'ZTT  £1/vEfsanl

€17 £1/0¢/6 14
¢1c €1/iT/Bent
0TZ EL/TT/6 Nyl
L0T €I/0T/BenL

L0Z  ETI/O0T/B@nl

M L W S S 4[L M L Wl

grfot/oT nuL

ET/0T/0T NyL

ET/€/6 N1

£1, 8T £ siossasapaly ETE]

L R ™

e

shep g

S W RN L AL W AR i hd i

€T/eT/IT anl HSINI4 ONY QHY0d TI¥M
€1/8/11 14 SABDP Z NOILYINSNI 1¥211SN020%
£1/0T/0T NyL shep ot SNINYES an.
£T/6/0T PaM Aep T aNNOdNGD
£T/£/0T uoy shep z 5
€1/0g/6 uoy shep zg
£T/v/6 Pam Aep T ONIMEYD ONY S3IA3
£T/v/6 Pam Aep T SN
E1/¥/6 PaMm shep g p
ET/9z/6 Nyl shep g SNIdld N
ET/v/6 Pam Aep T
E1/¥/6 Pam shep g
ET/EE/6 UO shep ¢
£1/7/6 Pam Aep T JNVHd B 54000
ET/I1/6 Pa shep g 3
ET/9/6 114 shep g <
£T/¥/6 Pam shep g
£1/7/6 pam shep z AHLINDHID H3MOd HOM
£1/¥/6 pam AepT SLINM T¥2INYH
€1/¥/6 PaMm shep 81
€I/v/6 PeM  shep g8
€1/L2/6 14 hep T $3IIAIC TOYLINO.
£T/6/0T Pam shep g SNILHOIT ADI
E£T/Z/0T pam shep g STINYd 11
ET/ST/6 PaM shep g TH4NI 1ANYd 1%,
ET/5Z/6 pam sAep 7 JHVMAYYH 8 SHOO0A !
ET/SZ/6 Pam shep g ]
ET/ET/6 o shep STILMNI TIWAN A
£T/81/6 pPam shep £ TYHNLONYLS ON'
ET/ET/6 114 sAep £ SONINIJO HOO0d LV $138
ET/TT/6 Pam shep g JYHd ONY SHOOd ¥
£T/¥/6 Pam shep g LINN ¥O0d 7 mod
E1/¥/6 PRM shep g SYOO0d HO WOYd BN
€1/vf6 Pam shep £z
€1/v/6 pam shep £z
 ET/gfe=nL ABR T W3IYYVYE NOILWYI4IS NOI
ueg uaielng




RITL2'SLT'ROTSHT ST/SZ/TT VO
8LTALT'SLT VLT ET/OE/0T P ET/8Z/0T Uowy

1 W55

4

1 w1l W s

ET, ‘T dag|

5]
§1, G any

Ll WIL 000 CEfCLfLL =~y CLf CLfLL ==ry

oz
S9¢'P9z
BEL
BEZ
S9Z'v9z
BEL
ELE
BEY
Dee
892°59¢
toe

T/2

ST/9/TT PaM ET/TE/0T NYL
E€T/8T/TT NYL ET/9Z/IT anL
ET/ez/0T anL £1/6/0T Pam
ET/zZ/OT @anL £1/6/0T Pam
ET/8Z/TT NYL ET/9Z/TT anL
£1/zZ/0T anL E€1/6/0T Pam
£1/5Z/01 M4 €ET/EZ/0T PaM
ET/ZZ/0T=NL £1/6/0T Pam
ET/8/TT 14 ET/4/TTNUL
€T/Z/ZT WOl ET/9Z/TT =NL
ET/9/1T pamy €T/TE/0T YL

ET/6/ET uol  €T/8/7T anl

FOZ ET/ET/TT pamy ET/IE/OT NYL
BE? ET/TE/0T BNl E£T/6/0T PEM
0/7'697'647 ET/OT/ET @nl ET/OT/EZT @nL

€T/2Z/11 144

BET ET/0T/0T NUL ET/6/0T Pam
BET ET/IT/OT M4 ET/6/0T PEM,

ET/FE/ZT @nL £1/6/0T Pam

SPZ  ET/0Z/TT M4 ET/BI/ZT Pam
ESTAPTPFT ET/BL/TT PR ET/BT/ZT PaM

282457 ET/0Z/ET VA

£T/0Z/CT 144

LYT'vrT ET/6T/CT NULET/ST/ZT PaMm
LPTSPEET/RT/CT PEAMET/ST/TT PaA
OFZ ET/0S/0T Paph £T/07/0T NYL

EET'0ET

ST/v/0T U4 ET/0E/6 oW

0LT'2ST ST/PT/eT anl ET/ET/TT uow
LPEVFE  ET/O0T/TT M4 ET/ST/TT PaM

shep ¢-540v7  ET/L/TTNYL ET/8T/0T 14

LPTET/ST/ZT PR ET/RT/TT PaM
tPZ  ET/ET/ZT U4 ET/ETSZT 14
StZ ET/6T/CT NYLET/ST/ZT Pam
vbe ST/LT/ETONL  ET/ET/ZT M4
SPZ £T/8T/TT PAM ET/BT/TT PAM

sl055=202pald

Ysiui4

e

;J,..r
shep g
ma..mﬂ_ £

shep 0T

shep 0T
shep £

shep 01
SAhEp €

shep 0T
SABP T
shep g
shep g

sAER §
shep 0T
shep 0T
Aep T
sAER 2
shep g

shep ¢
shep g
shep 55
shep g
hep 1
Aep 1
shepz
Aep 1
shep g
shEp §
shep z
shep £
shep 5T

Aep 1
Aep T
shep 7
shep €

Aep T

uaneing

UL v LD Liedwuean

SLINM H23AW SNAH DN

DNIdld YAt
AHOS
SAvaIH
DNIdld 437

NI-H2MNOY DNId
INFNAINDF TY2IM
S3HNIXIA E

S5T33" 040D aNY 4% 5nd

DN DNYH ONY SN L
F9YD SWFLSAS

SHADNYH ANV DN ‘SIX04 "LI|

1L
SHIOHOE ANV aryt
STVIINYHDEW O

AEN J04 SINY3E 1YY
DNIZHOINIE

SALYd J3A00 Oh
540

NOLLYIOWY NI
S3HNLKIH

MI-H2NO
INIINGINT3I QIHSINGNA
S5321A30 Q31NN

WOOHHLYE ANY SMNOILILYY
SNIZYID

FAVMOEYH ONY SHOO0J
ATLTIVAA ONY 00T
3svs




TPE ET/TZ/TINYL  ET/8/IT U4 shep 01

shep /-S4Z0€ ET/TE/OT NUL  ET/TT/0T 14 sAep 5T NI-HENOY LINg
BOE'YDE ET/OT/ZT M4 ET/BT/ZT PEM sAep g
ZOEET/8T/0T VoW ET/TZ/0T anL shep §
t0E  ET/ZT/IT M4 ET/TZ/TTI NYL shep Z SH(
Z0E ET/¥C/0T NYL €T/2Z/0T anL shep g
voE ET/ZZ/IT W4 ET/TZ/TI NYL shep Z e
ZTE EL/ZZ/OT aNLET/9T/0T Pam shep g
66¢ ET/ST/OT=NL E£1/6/0T Pam shep g NI-HD(
80 ET/6T/ZT NYLET/BT/TT PaM shep z SAIHOS5IDOY
£0€ €T/6T/TT NYLET/BT/ZT Pam shep Z ENRS
LOE ET/6T/TT NYLET/ST/TT Pam shep z E
87E ET/LT/ZTaNLET/TI/ZT Pam shep § J7IL HOC
82€ ET/LT/ZT aNLETL/TT/ZT Pam shep § :
EGZ'ET E£T/5Z/0T U4 £T/EZ/0T Pam shep g SONINIdO MOaNI
ET'00€ ET/0E/0T Pam €1/8¢/0T uow shep g SMOANIM
E0E ET/OZ/TT Pamy EL/ZT/IT anL shep / s3I
S-S46TE LTE'STE'ETE ET/TT/IT UOIN ET/6Z/0T anL shep 01 M20YLITHE
shep z+44TOE ET/TZ/0T Uoly  ET/TT/0T 14 shep £ ONINY
Z1€ ET/LT/0T NYLET/OT/OT PaM shep g
£1/0Z/ZT U4 €1/6/0T PaM sAep g9
ET/L1/6aNnL £1/91/6 UoW shep z
£T/02/6 14 €T/91/6 U shep §
ET/81/6 PRy ET/91/6 uow shep g
EL/B1/6 PaM ET/9T/6 UOW shep g
€67 EL/3/0TanL £T/£/0T Uow shep g
ET/81/6 pPam €1/91/6 uow shep €
362'L6T 96T FET Shep
G+44Z62°55882  E1/¢/0T 14 £1/gz/6 uow shep QT SYOOU B 511
887  ET/iEf6 M E£1/€T/6 UC sAep g
shep 7-S550F £1/2¢/0T UOW €T/¥2/0T NYL shep g 42d S% SLINT
shep g-5590€ £T/Z¢/0T 2NLET/TZ/0T Uow SABP T SHOOA HO LY
ET/8Z/0T Ul £T/5T/6 UOIN shep 1g
£E1/0Z/6 114 ET/6T/6 NUL shep z H314¥Yd NOILDNYLSNOD /
grfozfed £rfeT/enuL shep z
Ee——— e ———————————— ET/02/TT M9 ETfLTfouoiN  isAep SET
¥8TEST ET/TE/TT ANLET/ST/TT PAM SABP S § 3SYHd INOHA ADOTONHDIAL
o 09T'£LS2'95T'BRTOVT ET/VT/TT ANL €T/ve/eT and Aep T
ITL[M[L W STS[d 1T MILTW[S § 4 I[M[L W [
€T, ‘T dag | ET, 'S¢ BNy ET, BT E slossalapaly Ysiuly Hes upIeINg




— 098 €1/8¢/8PaM ET/8Z/8PAM fep T 379¥2 ANY S3DIA3A Y1V
~— €T/fz/g@nl £1/9z/8 UoW shep z
- 956  ET/S/6NYL  €T/S/6 Nyl Aep 1 S1Y
b 95 ET/S/6NYL  ET/S/6NYL hep 1 AHOA
ﬂm g95g  ET/S/6nYl  ET/S/6 Nyl Aep 1 S34N.LXE JIAOL
— 198  E€T/v/6PaM  ET/6T/8NYL shep g
£T/s/enyl £1/9Z/8 uo shep g
ET/ST/IT 13 ET/iT/ouoiy  isAep DIT

— ETfrZ/0T NYL £1/9/6 144 shep GE STNEE
— ET/L/TT NYL £1/9/6 114 shep op EF |
P—— ET/0T/0T NyL £1/9/6 144 shep g7 SH00C
e—— ET/L/TTNYL  €T/9/6 144 sA Gt
—_— €TfLfirnyl  €T/9f614d sABp G LNIW3YN20Yd TVIHIL
I .m._“._mm._“_...-._“._“ _._u_ m._“.\_.h._“_...-m U mm_}mﬂ. oIt
e ET/ST/TT U4 ET/LT/oUoIN  ¢Shep OIT

PZE  ET/LT/ET L ET/ET/TT UOW shep g 13S¥Hd WO ¥
OZE ET/L/TTNYL  E€T/SZ/0T 144 sAep Q1
T0E ET/PZ/OT NYL E1/8T/0T 14 shep g
LTE9ZE  EL/6Z/TT WA EL/SZ/TT UOW shep §
€PE  €Lf9fTT U4 ET/E/ET uow shep g STOMLN:

shep 6-S40vE  ET/4/TT NYL  £1/52/0T 144 shep 01
sAep OT-546TE ET/TE/0T Nyl E€T1/2T/0T 14 shep 0T
SSSTE £T/52/0T P ET/7E/0T @nlL shep Z

9ZE €T/8Z/0T WO £1/9Z/0T 144 shep Z HF
I6T ET/SZ/6 P ET/6T/6NYL shep §
9ZE£ ET/8C/0T WO £T/SZ/0T 144 shep Z st
LTE'IZEET/LT/TT PRM ET/ST/TT UOW shep £
I0E EI/TE/OT NYL ET/8T/OT 144 shep 01 NI
LTE'QZEET/LT/TT PR ET/ST/TT UOI shep £ Say,
967 E1/ST/6PaM  ET/6T/6 Nyl shep g NIFHONC
96z ET/Z/0T PA@M  ET/6T/6NYL shep OT N
L6Z ET/0Z/e M4 ET/6T/6NYL shep g
LETTOEET/TZ/0T WO £T/8T/0T 144 shep g DNIDHO4NIT:
IvE EL/OT/ET 2Nl ET/6/ET UCW shep g :
LEE'FEE'TEL'GLEWOE  ET/TT/TT M4 E€T/1Z/TT NYL shep z S¥3gyog B d

0£E'62E £T/vT/OT NYL ET/TT/OT @nl shEp € STYIINYHIIW ONY IHNLIC
ELfOT/ZT @l ET/6T/6 Nyl shep g5
LDE ET/OZ/ZT LM ET/BT/ZTPAM  shepe

[5[s]d L M 1TW[5]S 3 LML W STS[d]1L M L[|
dag| ET, Tdes) €1, ‘5 any £T, 811 51055203p314 ysiuig LIS, uoneing




CLfOfEE =0

CEILE I ==EN

86F ET/ST/TT U4 €T/TT/IT uow

LBE'ZRE'SEE

ET/8/TT 114

E1/8/T1 114

€TP'SS98E ET/TT/IT UOW ET/TT/1T von
78€ ET/SZ/OT M4 ET/SZ/OT 144
TREET/8T/0T UOIN  ET/SZ/0T 144
€6E'SSOLE  ET/RT/0T U4 £T/9T/0T Pam
08¢ ET/ST/OT anL

[ik:t3

ET/SEZ/OT 144

DBE'SSELE ET/OT/0T Pam
EREET/8Z/0T vow
TREET/82/0T vow

LBE'IQE

85¢

ET/0T/6 =N

ET/6/6 oW

OSEET/TT/TT vow

t8E

€T/T/TT 144

'Z6EDBEBREELEESE E1/TE/0T NUL

Z8E

0Le
0Le
0LE
OLE
(1743
5Lt
ILE
0LE
69E'L9E'99E

89€
L9E'E9E
O5E
95€
0LE

[S18 3 I M[IW § ST4[L[M I W[S[S 4 I[M[L W
- €1. T des .. €1, 'Sz Ny |

ET, BT &

51055302 pald

ET/SZ/0T 14

TBE ET1/0E 0T Nyl
CEE ET/TZ/0T VO ET/9T/0T Pan
TSE ET/T/0T Uow

€T/ST/TT 14
ET/SZ/6 pam
ET/ST/6 Pam
£1/22/6 1M
ET/L2/6 114
£T/52/6 P
ET/Z/0T PaM
ET/8/0T anL
€T/1/0T 3nL
erfve/eany

ET/07/6 13
ET/ET/6 14
ET/TT/6 pPam
ET/9/6 14
€T/5¢/6 Pam

ET/ST/0T anL
ET/SZ/0T 114
ET/ST/0T any
ET/ST/OT 14
ET/ST/0T 1
eT/or/eeny

€T/5/6 Nyl

£1/8/TT U4
EL/T/TT 14
eT/6z/0T anL
£1/52/0T 14
ET/ez/oTBnl

ET/TT/0T L4

ET/sfenyL
ET/ST/6 PaM
£T/SZ/6 Pam
ET/ST/6 PaM
£1/52/6 Pam
€1/92/6 Pam
£1/0€/6 uow
£1/2/0T pam
ET/S2/6 PaM
E1/€Z/6 o

ET/9T/6 UoW
€1/eT/6 Nyl
ET/5/6 Nyl
£T/5/6 nyL
£1/5¢/6 pam

Lsiul4

HEJS

L= U
SABP § | 3SWHd WOYH dOHS LNIY¥d ¢
shep 0 NOILITdINOD TYILNY
Aep 1 $321A30 TOHINDD
ifep 1
shep Z SIDIA3A 3LNN
shep g STIVAN @
ifep T STIVM @ SIX08 @ LI
Aep 1 SHO
shep Z NI-HDT
shep z W3L5AS NOILYIK
shep 7 ONIdId ONY :
ABP T SNOILDINNOD ' ¥3LVAH ¥3
shep g HOOT B AMYLINYS ONNO!
shep z ® SHOOQ d4 4000 ¥
hep T 35V
shep g DNIHOO4
Aep 1 TIM AN @ d
shep g
shep p HSINIA ONY 32
SABPZ  TIWM JINN ONY SNOILILHYd
ishep zs
Aep T
ihept aNITEYD DI
shEp €
shep g 5
ifept H3I0334 b
shep g STOHLNGD DNILHD AN
shep g $321A30 ILNNOL
shep g ey’
shep g STVIINYHD
shep g LY ONMIFD HSINIE AN 13
SAEPZ  WOOTd WOOY 1¥ SONITIID d
shep g SUIDONYH B
shep g NOILYINSNI %8 NI-k
Aep 1
Lenesng|




4 1 MIL[W § §[d L M [ W[S|S 4 L M|
£1, ‘ST ENY |

50

T0¥'06E
SOk
FOF
cof
Fili )y

51055a3apaly

ET/LT/9 uo

€1/L1/9 uow
ET/LT/9 oy
ET/8/TT 4
EL/L1/9 uo
ET/LT/9 uoW
€L/LT/9 uow
ET/LT/9 uow
ET/LT/9 uow
£T/62/0T 3nL
ET/L/TT YL
ET/9/TT pam
ET/S/TIT anL

ET/L1/9 uoly
ET/LT/9 uow
€T/L1/9 uow
ET/L/TT NYL
E1/LT/9 uol
€1/LT/9 Uuow
ET/LT/9 uow
ET/LT/9 wo
ET/L1/9 uowy
ET/6Z/0T anL
ET/L/TT NYL
£T/9/TT pam
ET/¥/TT VoW

EL/T/TT 14 ET/0€/0T pam,

ysiui

velg

¢hep 1
dhep 1
éhep 1
SAED 7
éhept
ihept
ihep 1
ihep 1
éhep 1

AER T

Aep T

hep 1
shep 7
shep g

uoieIng

SATA30 10YLINDGD
5301430 ONY SN[
9D ANY S3D31A30 Y1V
AL

5321A3Q Al

MI-H

532130,

SHO

SMNLH LY STIAVA TOYL
SMldld 31w
IHYMOUYH 5

SNl

HSIMIH ONY 32




SSEIE0LH Ae— AIBLLIWING BN - ABLILING 811080 = EYSE| [BLISIXT

auljpeag S dn||0yY AJELWUWNS [BRLE AUDISA|IN BATIEL] A~ ABLIWNG 1030l e




08Z°581°CES
CTARA S
}.8'856%
000's1$
L5Z'6ELS
£80°052'28
155'9pL LS
000'05¢
ZE0'962$
896'995°'SS
000'6RLS
000'05%
788'08€%
2L1'612'65
000'62$
006'6298
005'583
LPE'L8LS
651'86%'CE
000°01S
00S'L2ws
000°6Z$
000'sES
000'02$
00F'9E9%
000'0LS
8L8'62E%
00E'0tS
LY LOES
($) Jueuynuwog
pajoaloiy

SIINYdWNOD

S50

Li2'ops
Lig'Lg-
Lig'Ls
000'0LS-
£t 'G8-
erl'GLe

0%

0%
205 'tE-

896'¥S

0%

0%
gLl 'cog-
gLL'eot

o4

o4
005 ¥ LS
B5YZ LS
651273

08

08

0s

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%
004'24-

Lip'sts

(8} wauiwwon

Buipuag

695'PPLSES
000°G.S
000’568
000°6ZS
000'SYLE
OFe'0¥Z'2$
LGe'ovs'/$
000°0SS
000 DOES
000'v85'6$
D00'EF LS
000'05%
000'0S¥$
0D0'9SL'6%
000'sze
006'6Z29%
000'00LS
000'002%
000 LLP'ES
000'0LS
005'22Z¥S
000°6ZS
000°SES
000028
00t 989%
000'01%
B/B'B/ES
000'8L$
000'€52S

($) uawpuwon

pasiaay

| o | abed

0%
0s
0s
as
0s
0s
0s
0s
0s
0s
0s
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
o$
04
03
0s
0s
0s
0%
0¢
0%
0%
0%
03
0s

($) Jusuniwwog
panosddy

695'vPLCES
000'64S
000°256%
000'6Z¢
000'6rLS
Ove'0vZ'Ze
L6S'OPL 1S
000'05%
000'00%
000'¥85'5S
000'6tLS
000'06$
000'0&¥S
000'S5L'68
000'6ZS
006'629%
000°00 L%
000°00Z¢
000'LLFES
000'0L%
00G'L2¥S
oo0'szs
000'GES
000'02S
00%'9£9%
000'0Ls
B/8'6.E$
000'gl$
000'€5Z3

(¢} Juawpwiwon

feuibug

CLOZ/LLIOL - 199YSHIOMN 150D

s|gjo] 6o

JONVMOTTY NOILONHELISNOD ONIH00H
LOWHLINOD ONIJ00Y

S3ILTIOYH AdYHOdNI L Dd
JONYMOTTY NOLLDNHLSNOD Od
LOYHINCD SNIgWNd

LS00 TYLNIAIONI

JONYMOTTY SIILNISVYS dWIL OWAH
JONYMOTTY NOILLONHLSNOD OWAH
LOVHINOD OWAH

FONYAMOTTY S31LNIDYH dWAL- 09
JONYMOTTY SNIADK 10D

AMOTTY NOILONHELSNOD 09

SIaVHL TvHINID

JONYMOTTY NOILONYE LSNOD ‘D4
LOVHINOD 30IAY3S a004

MOTTY S3LLITIOVL A¥YHOdNTIL 0313
JONYMOTTY NOILONELSNOD 5313
1OWHINOD 1921410373

JONYMOTTY NOILONHLSNOD DO
LOVHINOD MHOMISYD

MOTTY SILLNIOVH AMYHOdWIL D0
JONYAMOTTY SNINEYIT IONYLSIO DD
JONVMOTIY NOILLONHLSNOD 22
ONINEYD NOLLYIINANINOD
JONYMOTTY NOILONHLSNOD OV
ANIWLINDT DILTTHLY

JONYAMOTTY NOILONHELSNOD ¥y
1OYHINOD INIWIIvEY SOLSIISY
SpL

seji[ioed aPIAA JOLISI O3 SUOHRISHY PUB SUOHIPPY
S32049 Aunoy obamso



C&S Design Build, Inc.

Oswego County BOCES
C&S5 Project No. L02.001.001

All Proposal Documents Log

Job No: Date: 10/11/2013
Page: 1of1
Typa To From Numbear Title Issus Status Date Approved Started Compleled Responded Required Cost
RFF GRS DB, WY PATRICIA, MH TM-001-E5351 - Building AZ - UMS 10012013 1ER2013  53,100.00
Misc Demo (- dlays)
RFP  CES DB, WV PATRICIA, M TM-002-15352 - Power to Alr UNS - 10403013 10182013 &1, 500.00
Compreszor {7 days)
RFF  CARS DB NV PATRICI, M TM-003.1 5353 - Phese H WS 11482003 TOTE2043  S6000.00
Tamporary Mower (-7 darys)
RF" CASDE, NV PATRICIA, MH TM-004-C5354 - Phase H LINS 1011720143 TS 8700000
Power Distrihition (-7 days)
RFP  MBC, &) MOSAIC, LT PR-D08-GEldg AZ - CRMLU Wall / MEW 1072013 101402013 50.00
Merz. Dema (-3 days)
RFE CE&SDH, WY LHCH RE Tid-001-P Bldg AZ - UNS  EDM1/2013 10182013 510,000.00
Compressor { Hot [ days)
Waler Rel
RFFP  MEC, Al MOSAIC, LT  PR-000-GBuikding B - CLO 1002013 00472013 000
CedlingWall GWB (-3 dawys)
Palch
RFP MHC, AJ MOSAIG, LT PR-090-GBuilding B: Storage CLO  A0fi0a3 10452043 20,00
Rm Pf00A {-3 days)
RFP LU, RB MOSAIG, LT PR-00%-P Construction Tech OFN - 1F203 TON42043  55,743.00
Fioor Draing {-3 days)
RFF MBG, aJ MOSMG, LT PR-002.GConairuction Tech NEW 1072013 10472013 50.00
Fioor Leveling {-3 days)
RFP JE,JP GRS, MY PR:0D4-A Horticuliure VAT APFE 10ITIZ013 1014/2013  §22 320.00
Rernowval (-3 days)
RFP LHCI, AL MOSAIC, LT PR-D0B-HEEF-8 & 9! Stalic OPH 1072013 02013 §1,162.00
Pressurs Hevision -3 days)
RFF MBC, AJ C&5 00, NV - PR-001-GMetal Panct OPM 81372013 P23 26311800
Walnscol (4 days)
RFF JE, JP CASDB. WY PR-005-A Phase H- ACK APP AN TO/42043  348,382,00
Hemoval (-3 days)
RFP. JE. A CASDE MY PR-D11-APhaso K- CMU Wall APE ANITIEDG 1014/2013  $7,700.00
Ruormowval {-3 days)
RFP LHCE, AL MOSAIC, LT PR-00/-HRH-25 & 26 OPN 172012 1042013 53 806.00
3 days)
RFP MHC, Al MOSAIC LT  TPROO7.GRH-25 & 25 WEW 10762013 10442013 £0.00
(-3 days)
RFF  PULVER, PO MOSAIC LT FR.0O7T-RRH-25 & 76 OPN 10772043 10442013 5187100
(-3 days}
RFF PATRICIA, MHMOSAIC, LT PR-003-E S8 Lighting: Crodil MEW A¢ia0q3 1041472013 S0.00
{-3 days)
RFF CASDE. WY PATRICIA, MH PC-005-EWiremokl - Exisling NEW 10/11/2013 1W182012  30.4559.00
Hlock Walls {=F days)
Espeditinn Reparl FPROPOSAL 01



~108w~

MINUTES OF THE OSWEGO COUNTY BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
REGULAR MEETING
September 18, 2013

The Regular Meeting of the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services was held on Wednesday,
September 18, 2013 at the Oswego Counly BOCES Maln Campus in Mexico, Mew York.

Mr. John Shelmidine cafled the mesting Lo order at 6:31 pim.

Board Members Prosent: Eric Behling
Casey Brouse
Matthew Geitner
Gregory Muench, Vice-President
John Shelmiding, President
William "Dave” White

Board Mambars Absent: Conna Blake
Kewin Dix
Joed Southwell
Cendral Administraticn: Christopher 3, Todd, District Superintendent

Roseanne Bayne
Mark LaFountain

Michac! Sheperd
Offlcers: Melissa Allard, District Clerk
Aftorney: Marc Reitz
Guests: Mate Van Wie

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

PusLiC COMMENTS

Mone.

PRESENTATIONS

3, Employee Group Waiver Plan Presentation - Dennis Clary (Haylor, Freyer and Coon}
Mr. Dennis Clary from Haylor, Freyer and Coon sharsd with the Board the recommended changes from the
Retiree Drug Subsidy through the Center of Medicars Services (CMS) to an Employee Group Waiver Plan
(EGWP). Mr. Clary explained that it is anticipated that the rebatos from the EGWP will generate additional
rebates,

Resalution to Approve an Agreement With Profct, Please See Enclosure,

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services authorizes the District
Superintendent to enter into an agreement with Profct, BOCES Pharmacy Bencfit Manager, to contract with
AMWINS to participate in an employes group waiver plan (EDWP).

It was:

Moved by Casey Brouse, seconded by Gregory Muench, thal the Oswego County Board of Cooperative
Educational Services authorizes the District Superintendentl Lo enter Inbe an agreement with ProAd, BOCES
Pharmacy Benefit Manager, to contract with AMWINS 1o particlpate In an employee group waiver plan (EDWP),

Vole on the motion:  Ayes &, Nays 0, motlon carried.

FACILITIES REPORT

4. Recognition for Participation In the Summer Power Reduction Program
Mr. Wayne Wideman, Superimtendent of Bulidings and Grounds, shared with the Board a document that
showed the cost savings from participating in the Summer Power Reduction Program on July 187 and 19", It
I5 anticipated that the BOCES will recelve a check for approximately $1,500 per day or more for participating In
the curtallment of energy, Wayne thank Mr. Todd for approving the participating in the program, which shut all
air conditloning and other sources of power for the teo days after 3:00 p.m.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 21, 2013 REGULAR BOARD MEETING

IE was:

Moved by Matthew Geltner, seconded by Gregory Muench, that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative
Educational Services approves the minutes of the August 21, 2013 Regular Board Meeting a5 presented,

South

Vate on the motlon: Ayes &, Nays 0, motion catrled.



109

Soptember 18, 2013 Oswego County BOCES Regutar Meeting Board Minutes

FINANCE

71

7.2

3

74

Fi

6.

1

1.8

79

7.10

List of Bills foproved and Ordered Paid by thie Internal Clalms Auditor.

Financial Reports.
7.21 Treasurer's Report
7.22 Budgst Status Report & Transfers Greater Than $50,000

Internal Claims Auditor Report.

Bids/fwards & Rejection. Flease sea anclosures
741  Cooperative Bid — Food/Meat/Beverages - Bid #814-TMEBO2
742  Cooperative Bid — Food/Msat/Beverages for the Southern Cayugs C5D — Bid #B14-FMBU2SC

Resolution for Disposal of Surplus Equipment - Septembaor £, 2013,
BE IT RESCLVED that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educabionzl Services dedlares tho
attached listing of equipment a5 surplus and autharlzes proper disposal of such.

Apnointment of Chief Faculty Counselors for Student Fuml Accounts

GF IT RESOLVED that further to the Resolution 8,17 Appointment of Chief Faculty Counselors for Student
Fund Accounts, originally adopted st the July 10, 2013 Reorganlzational Meeting of the Board, the
Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services hereby authorizes the appointment of Jim
Hubier as Chief Faculty Caunselor for Spedial Education Student Fund Accounts, 2nd Marla Berdin as Chief
Faculty Counselor for Non-Special Education Student Fund Acoounts, for the schoal year,

Appointment of Auditors of Student Fund Accounts

BE 1T RESGLVED that further to the Resolution 8.18 Appointment of Auditers of the Student Fund
Accounts, orfiginally adopted at the July 10, 2013 Beorgamizational Mesting of the Oswego County Board,
the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services hereby authorizes the appointment of Jim
Huber as Auditor of Non-Spedial Education Student Fund Accounts, and Marda Herlin as Auditor of Special
Education Student Fund Accounts, fior the school year.

Rosolution to Authorize the Establishment of Student Club Accounts.
GE IT RESOLVED, that the Cswego County Board of Cooperative Fducational Sorvices hereby authorizes
the establishment of the following student club accounts and faculty advisors for the schoal year:

Student Club Faculty Advisor
- Adult Health Ocoupations Mzrgaret Palmer
Auto Body Richard Rainvilie
Deaf Education Stephanie Moretti
N Digltal Media Clacs T8O
Law Enforcement James Casamenta/Mark Bendor
Marmufactiring Plus K JonesfCarolyn Deary-Petracc
Retailing Beth Kellogg/Mary Quade -
Signature Club Sue Jerrett/Sam Passor
Skills USA John DeSantis/Ines Rovito
| STERMN Barbara Kickbush/Joanne 5t, Gelais
The Star Ceramic Club Cindy Paeno
Vocational Training Program (VTF) [Mana Tighe/Chick Pehta

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Marda Berlin be appolnted as the Designee to approve 2l fundraising
activities for Special Education Student Club Accounts and Jim Huber be appointed as the Designee to
approve all fundraising for Non-Spedal Education Student Fund Accounts:

Resolution to Amend the Designation of Principals Resafution.

BE IT RESOLVED, that based upon their current job assignments, Mara Barlin, Faul Guegel, Ronzld Camp,
Liza MWappi, Charles Pehta and John Ramin anme herely designated as Princlpals for the purposes of
Education Law Section 3214 for the school year.

It was:

Maoved by Gregory Muench, secondad by Matthew Geitner, that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative
Educational Services spproves Section 7.1 through 7.9 of the Finance Section of the Board Agenda,
effective as indicated.

Vote on the motion: Ayes G, Nays 0, motion carriad,

Draft 2014-2015 Budnet Davelopment Calendar
The Board reviewed and agreed to the Dralt 2014-1% Budget Development Calendar as presented,



PERSONNEL

w110

Soptember 18, 2013 Oswego County BOCES Regular Meeting Board Minutes

RESOLVED, that upon the recommendation of the District Superintendent of Schoals, that the Oswego County Board of
Cooperative Educational Services approve the Personnel Section of the agenda, effective as indicated.

Laaves of Ahsence

Enme Program Pasitlon Effatlili'ﬂ Dute
Jearalt, Susan Career & Techaical Educalion Teaching Assislail ] W13 - 632014
Becker, Kim Exceplional Eduration Taaching Azsiztant Q042013 - P12 1EN
Cimon, Réngg Exceplional Education Taachitiy Assiglanl | Q112013 - S25M2013
Posilions Terminofed -
Haome Progrom Pasition Il Effective Dote |
H , Reema Migrant Educalion In-Home/Sehool Tubar | &r1i2013
Luzhsingar, Sharon Migrant Education In-Heme!Sehioal Tulsl 12013 i
Mo, Say Mog Migrant Education Migrant Intamrater oi2ma
Shimer, Melinda Migrant Education ESL 1ok GRS
Resignalions -
Noma Program Pasition Effective Date
Falco, Sara Career & Technical Education Caliiary fals | cachar ams
Taarmina, Carol Carcer & Technical Educalion Camputer Systems Teachor L/2RiI2013 |
[haobakd, Michaol Migrant Education Iigrant Specizlis] - Bilingual Br31i2013
Bigsell, Aleandra Exceplionz! Educalion Teaching Assislanl 82002013
| Stewer, Elizabeth Excoplicnal Educalion Occupations Tharapis 2013
Appointmuants _i
| Program Hame Position Sulary Eff. Dote | End Dote | Comments
Aiar Bchoal Driver Diriver Education a5 poy
‘Educalion Adams, Josoph | Teacher $21.37 | fw 0812018 | DE/3042014 | timeshest
Driver Educetion as po7
I Fraantan, Jeremy | Teacher $20.37 | fhr 090123 | 0653072044 | fmesheet
Ditver Educalion as par
Galsk, Gary Teacher $21.3¢ | A D911 | 0673002010 | Emesheet
Cirivar Education a5 per
Hanlay, Thomas | Teacher AT | M 0302013 | GEA0A014 | Emesheal
MacDongld, Cirivar Education a5 per
Andrew Teacher §27.47 | Mr OHONZ0E3 | OBE0H014 | tmeshoal |
Driver Education a5 per
Mahor, Cray Toacher 82705 | e DHOT2013 | DRS0ROIA | tmeshest |
Drivar Education &5 par
Marks, Chares Toacher $ATAT | e 090172013 | DEANAHA | timeshest |
MeiCalfay, Driver Educalion B P
Rebert Teacher $ATN | M 082015 | DGENAEE | Imeshes
Diivver Education BS pef
Reciar, Saah Teaches S04 | M 02023 | 08AN2014 | mesheol
[iver Educalion 85 par
Thulow, Michae! | Teacher byl S 09012013 | 0630201 | tmesheot |
Dimver Education a5 per
#ogg, Douglas Teather SITAT | e 090072013 | D6AEN2014 | Emasheat
1 daylwk
Parking-LHGimvanni, Tean Heallh lssuis (Contid
APPS Cheiyl Educalor (FT) L1506 | Ihr 2013 DRFELIIL | Squara)
Messengenrinler's
Buzinoes Cilice Hall, Michelle Assislan 31304 | fr G220 | OBR22014
10 bo
Career & lechnicad prorated
Cifuication Berlin, Marla G 1E Pancipal 380,000 | hyr OR202013 | DERYINIE | from 29713
I b
Putitic Safaty Insinicior prorated o
Bander, bark (50%) $53.138 | fyr 00IG1/2013 | DRB0MDLY | 50%
0-28 hrafwk
Nurseig Assmiant e a3 per
Hrangaty, Palicia | Insfniclor F9.70 | 0902013 | 08302014 | fmeshasl
DeSants, John | Skills LISA Advise $2.055 | /sfipend | 090012013 | 06302014




]l

September 18, 2013 Oswego County BOCES Regular Mesting Board Minutes

PERSONMEL — [CONTINUED)

Appointmenis
Program Home Positlon Solary Eff. Dote | End Dote | Comments
fabs
prarated ko
Firg EMS insiriscior 50% from
Gabeizl, Chardes | (50%) SE0481 | At 0a/232013 | 0E/30M2014 | 923013
Mentoring
Giveraan, |.or Teather Mentar §780 | fefipend | 02012013 | 0BB02014 | Sue Jessil
- Gepy, Barhe Jo Tesching Assistent $19,709 | iy 02013
Jesrett, Susan Cufinary Arts Insiucior 346431 | fyr (0102013 | DEANE014
fo ba procabed
| og Teern Substitule feoen S -
Pagger, Samuel | Tesching Assistl $21,748 | Ay DH0A2ME | 06M3/2014 | Griard
Reinvils, Richard | Skills USA Advisor $2.555 | fslipend | ORO12013 | 0630/2014 ]
Rawito, Ines Shills LISA Advisor $2.855 | istipend | 09012043 | 0GROMED14
ta ba proveted
o 50% oll.
Crossrosds Andrews, Jennifer | Science Teschar [50%) $52,069 | fyr 012013 0E0RM4 | aind
Curricutum
Andrevs, Jeanifor | Dovelopmenl S164 | fday 032902013 | 08ANZ013 [ 2 days
EnglishiSecial Sludies
Rabhis, Shannon | Teachor 04,747 | fyr 0200472013 | DRMNA2D16
Curricuhum
Bsbbis, Shanron | Doevelopment S164 | fday (8122013 | DER013 | 2days
increassd 1o
100% {50%-
GTE; 50%
Crossroads)
Rice, Masgaret Busingss Teacher 350,541 | hyr o201 aif B3
fobe
proratsd 1o
75%afl.
Saakian, Zhanna | Malh Teachss (T5%) 352,068 | hy ORO120E | DG4 | HA3
Curriculurm
| Saaklan, Zhanna | Development §184 | iday 08/29/2013 | 0802013 | 2 daye
Smegslsky , up to M
Joann School Counselor $44.85 | M 07032013 | 08B12013 | hours total
o b provaded
s 755 off
Siregeisky , Joann | Schook Counsalor (5%} £5B.438 | AT bR T O R 0 T
|o e praraled
InstrucTional Suppoil 1o Bl eff
Servkog Swepling, Amber | Senice Typist [A0%) §14.65 | fhr OWIRE0E | CAMeR0T4 | BB
023 hrafwk &=
Migrant Educalion Bradford, Jennifer | Mgrand Tutor $15.50 | fyr 9032013 | 08004 | perfneshual
0-37.5 hrstfak
a5 ot
Drake, Helen Kigran |ubor $15.50 | fhr D9R3Z013 | 06302004 | imesheet
(0375 hrefod
Espinosa, a5 per
Fesando Migran Tudot $14.80 | inr DDA | OBINE0 | Gmesheel
o b piceated
Parcnl Imalvesnent from 93N 3, &
Egginosa, Sally | Specialist §38,000 | fyr DDA | OR3GE01A | 375 hestek,
{0 ba provated
Curiculenatla Trom 9FENE D
Ferden, Mandy | Speclatisl 38,000 | iyr OO0 | 050014 | 375 heswk.
o ba proraled
from HAES: 0
Migrant Education Fozco, Jenng 03Y Hpecizist $30.000 | hr 10032011 T O T T
019 rshuk
ag pod
Grzen, Rachel fageant Tudor §14.60 | fr 09MH2013 | OBA0Z014 | tmosheel
(99 hrafwi.
s per
Guhnie, Becky Migrand Tutar S50 | M oA D304 | Bmoshoed
014 stk
a5 pet
| Harring, Elisa RKigrani Tulor §15.50 | fhr COEA0EY | ORSDR0I4 | Bmeshest




rld e

September 18, 2013 Oswoegoe County BOCES Regular Meeting Board Minutes

0-37.5 hizheis
a5 per
) Jofhason, Wende | Migiant Tuler $15.00 | fr 0903043 | ORGBOD0T4 | teneshoct
PeRSONNEL — (CONTINUER)
B Appoiniments
Pragran Home Position Sulary Eff. Date | End Dote | Comments
375 huziwk
Lewandowski, 5 par
Evelyn Aiggrand Tubos $15.50 | fr 03N | ORI | Gmeshesl
019 hrefak a5
Middielan, Adens | Migrant Tutor $14.50 | fhr 0A0MANA | 0RO | perlencshect
[-37.5 hisiwk
i et
Civers, Marin Migrand Tulor $14.50 | fu 000ER01 | 0650014 | fimeshest
0375 hrsfwk
Tauliva-Kunes, %
nrny Mipganl Tudar $15.00 | fr 09032013 | G014 | Smeshest
bo b provatad
Trowiaiddgs, Eauly Chikdhond froon 7313, 0-
Adele Spesiafist SE8,000 | fyr G900 | Darsl4 | 30 bk
Anterson,
Exceplional Fducafion | Jacguafna Infeqpreder Shipend S386 | felipend | 0900172013 | DEADA014
regatied rom
Anderson, prefarred
Jessica Teaching Assista 526,196 | iy 09012013 hiring fist
Anderson,
Jaszlca Interpreter Shpend $886 | felipond | DOID12M3 | DGAOH4
Curricutm up o 25
Belden, Virginia | Development 164 | fday 07M32013 | 08165013 | days
Benjgmin |
Michella Inferpreter Shipend §885 | jslipend | DROUZ0TY | QGENAN1A |
recalled from
prafarrad
Boninor, Kathryn - | Teaching Assistant $BALE | dyr 02042013 hiring list
Boaner, Kalhoyn | Iibezprates Sipend SBBG | fstipend | ODAOHF2013 | 06302014
recaited from
pretenad
Burka, Danialla Teaching Assistant §21.884 | fp 090472013 | DIZRR0IG | hiring bsl
Burke, Daniall Infeepreter Elipand §586 | fsfpend | 09M12013 | DE3002014
Team Leadsr
Cam, Manoy {OTPTApeechibodicald) 52955 | fefipend | OHOUA01Y | OB0ME014
Deary Patizcel, Curriculum
Cavolym Devetapment 54872 | fday 08142013 | DEAAZE | 1 day
Doglas, Ashicigh | Teaching Assistand S17,016 | fyr 0172013 | 09012005
Douglas,
Ashlgigh Interproter Stipend §825 | jstipend | OWD12043 | 0GR0/GA
Hal, Charioite Infarpreter Shipand 5085 | istipend | CBO12013 | 0GR07ANA
fo b
prorated
ltghan, Tina Audiometis Technicizn 530,000 | fyr 0232013 from 923413
Kinnay, Clizabeth | nberpreter Sfipend SBRG | fstipand | ODM2013 | OSGE02014
recalfed from
pietered
Latak, Tracy Teaching Assistanl 516,710 | fw 09/04/2013 | OSO12015 | hiring st
Latak, Tracy Interpreter Stipend S886 | fsfipend | 0DA12013 | 063052014
Lovges, Mary Infespreder Slipend SRRG | fetipend | 00A1A2013 | DESOD14
hborel, Team Leadsr
Stephanie [Budialegy, Doaf) $2.955 | fstipend | OR01R2043 | D63002014
o he prorefad
Tromn G413 -
Dsbome, Wenda | Inlerpreter Siipand $886 | Jsipend | OODIA013 | 10042043 | 10un3
Fhiligs, Jangva | Inferpreter Sipend $886 | Mlipend | CRAOM12013 | 0600:2014
Mipks, Gatriels | Teaching Assislanl 17,016 | Ar T3 | 0982016
i Ripka, Gabricse | Inlerpreter Shpend $808 | jelipand | CROUZCII | 058012014
Sooil, Alice Inkarpraler Stpand 5885 | fstipend | ORAIGHAS | 0G00EG14
- Sgain, Carohyn | Team Leader (Murses) $2.055 | fetipend | 0BMOME013 | 06202014
Spilmsn, Ging Inberprater Stipead EEB5 | fsbpend | 090HI0I3 | (6002044 |



13

September 18, 2013 Oswego County BOCES Regular Meeting Board Minutes

bex by
prorzkad 1o
40%% from
Thitedo, Michole | Scignce Teachar {40%) BE6.8T5 | yr 00452043 | 06RNEDE | 91113
PERSONMEL — {CONTINUER)
Appoiniments
Progrum Hume Pasition Solory Eff. Dota | End Dote | Comments
Teacherof Deat ine bo 100%
Thompson, Beth | Fducation $R1.507 | fyr 09082013 | |&Eann3 |
Thompson, Hally | Teem Leader (Vision) £2.055 | fstipend | 090002013 | 06302014
recalled from
peederied
Trouk, Wikki [eaching Assistand S1B.519 | fw | (9/042043 higing list
Traut, Nikki Interpreter Stipend SBEG | fstipend | OOD12083 | OGA0014 )
intreased
and prorated
Teacher of Visually I B0% ef.
Young, Ann Impaired 361,609 | i (012013 | 06502014 | 813
Exceptional Fducaton Deuglas, Tedching
Summer School fshleigh Assmstantnteiprater 367.64 | fdey 07032013 | 08M&2013 | 31 days
Bunenar Sthoal 2083 Audlin, Hathleon | Regenls Proctoning 365.00 | fTost 031362013 | O8/84/2091 | 2 days
a3 par
Belder, Vinginia | Regents Proctosing $65.00 | fost 03/132013 | 08M4/2013 | Eimoshoot
85 par
Bock, Matthow Regents Procioning $655.00 | Nast 05132013 | 0842013 | timasheot |
85 par
Biwn, Kylo Regents Procioring £45.00 | et DAMIAE0T3 | 0842013 | timeshest
5 e
| Carocclo, Shawn | Regents Mrocloring £65.00 | Aozt 081372013 | 0842013 | timeshest
B par
| Clayton, Bobbi Jo | Regenis Proctoring §65.00 | fast 08132013 | DBN42013 | timashest
&3 per
Clayton, Bobbl fo | Grading Regenis S10.00 | fest [BMT2013 | DBNGRAIA | imeshest
83 per
¥ angelo, Holley | Regents Prochoding S65.00 | flast 0BN32013 | D&N4I013 | besheel
a3 per
¥ Angeln, Holley | Grading Regents $10.00 | fest 08M 32013 | 086013 | Emesheel
a5 per
Favala, Darlens | Regants Prochonng §65.00 | fest OBM3MR013 | 0871412011 | Gmeshzet
a5 per
Guild, Jason Regants Proctonng $65.00 | Mest OBM3IAMI | 0871472013 | Bmeshest
as per
Guild, Jason Grading Regenls $10.00 | fest 0832013 | DBMIGA2013 | Gmeshesd
| Adlnteapeater foe
Ha#, Chalatla Regents $17.49 | fr. 081472013 | 0BN472013 | 1dey
asper
Helli, Jamas Regents Procloring $65.00: | fest GANME0E3 | DBN472013 | tmeshest
&5 e
Hafti, Jamas Grading Regents §10:00 | flest GAA32003 | 0BNE2013 [ timeshest
Hiltoa-Hovrard, o8 per
Linda Regents Proctaring SEE00 | (Tesl (a3 [ oBMee3 | bmesheet
Jarkzon, a5 poT
Burnmer School 2013 Taishana Grading Regents $10.00 | ftest OBM32013 | DBME/208T | bmesheel
Jackson, ag per
Taishana Regents Proctenng 365.00 | fest (8132015 | 081472013 | Bmesheat
a% piar
Lipiska, feana Regents Prostering 365.00 | fesl DB132013 | OR/4IE01S | Bmeshest
as par
Mecker, David | Regenls Prostoning $65.00 | fost 0B/13/2013 | 08/14/2013 | imashoat
85 par
Mls, kgthedne | Regents Proctoring $55.00 | host 0811312013 | 08/1472013 | fimesheet |
83 per
Mudverhill, Kirk Fegents Procloring $65.00 | Nest Q811302013 | B8A472013 | timashest
&5 per
Nihoff, Kimberly | Regenis Procloring £65.00 | fest OBAHE0T3 | DRMAR201S | timeshest
&35 per
— Hinoff, Kimirerly | Grading Regents $10.00 | fast 81320013 | DBNERMS | timeshes
B3 per
Cswald, Kimbery | Regenls Mroctaring 565.00 | fNast [8M32013 | D8N4/2013 | timeshesl




wlldes

Septamber 18, 2013 Oswego County BOCES Regular Meeting Board Minutas

ag per
Oswald, Kimberly | Grading Regenis S10.00 | fost B30I | GBMER013 | mesheet
3% pir
- Paaofte, Brian Regents Prochering 56500 | Most D8M32013 | GEMARME | imeshest
PERSONNEL — (CONTINUED) z
Appointments
Progrom Hame Position Salary Eff. Dote | End Dote | Comments |
Pierca-Deliraw, ) e
Falikia Regenls Proctorng §65.00 | /et 0811372013 | DBM4EMNS | imeshesl |
Wiesre-Uelraw, &5 e
Palicla Gradwg Regents 10,00 | fhast O3M32013 | DBNGE013 | lirneshesd
B e
Schultrig, Lisa Regants Procionng FG5.00 | Mest QEN32NME | 08453013 | trvesheot
a5 per
Schulizia, Lisa Grading Regenks $10.00 | frest IENA2013 | 08NG52013 | Gmeshent
as per
Smuckler, Emily | Regents Procloring $05.00 | fest 08132013 | 0801442013 | tmesheol |
a5 per
Stoeizel, David | Regeats Proclaring §65.00 | Mest 08132013 | 0B/14/2013 | Gmesheat
a5 per
Sioelzel, David Grading Regents $10.00 | Mest OBA3E013 | DEMEREMS | timeshesat
&5 per
Sweeney, Heidi | Hegants Procterng S65.00 | fest OEM3E0T3 | DBN4ENSE | timsshesl
a5 per
Sweeney, Haidi | Grading Regenis $10.00 | ftest DaM3/2013 | DEMEITE | timeshesl
Wackaroy, David | M3 Malh Teacher $E50.00 | fsossion | 07292013 | DBH2HM3E
B e
| Wackarow, David | Regents Procioding §68.00 | fest 0513203 | 08452013 | timesheet
CEE
Wairen, Ronae | Grading Regenls £10.00 | Mozt 081132013 | 08M52013 | Bmeshert
as per
Walros, James Regents Procloning $65.00 | fost GNF2013. | 081472013 | Bmeshoot
as il
Wiliams, Saah | Regents Proctoring $65.00 | fest OBF132013 | 081472013 | Fmashesl
B3 pBr
Wilkams, Sarah | Grading Regents £10.00 | Jost N81372013 | OWMER2013 | Umosheat
5150 Edent;
méxe af 25
VAP Grani Abboll, Elizabalh | Teacher $3.000 | frotal Orii20ed | O&fE0iE014 | shdents
#5150 el
_ ma of 5
Caleman, Keih I'sachar $3.000 | Motsl 07f0w/2013 | DEROZDIE | sludends
5100 shadent;
miax o 25
Higgins, Jeanie Teachsr 33,000 [ Total 07012013 | 06024 | shidents
<53 idstodent;
max o 35
Kingsbury, Sally | Toaches £3,000 | Mo G201 | 08302014 | seduals
vE 5zl onl;
g of 75
l'ope, Slacay Teacher £3.000 | Molsl D70 | 067302014 | shudenls
+E 150 udank:
izl 25
Potter, Amy Teather £3.000 | fTotal 070173 | 08032014 | swdents
5105 kenk;
miaeaf 25
Tariinon, Shirloy | Teacher S3LO00 | Talal 0712013 | DBA0E01E | sladenls
&5 g0
Worksludy Sludend 48 Veorkstudy Sludent 175 | v NO042013 | DBIZEA014 | timesheat
& per
Sludont £ 47 Waorkstudy Studen! 5176 | Mr 00M4/2003 | DERGR0E | limeshest |
B3 par
| Sludent # 46 Workstudy Sludent 51.78 | Mr 09082013 | DGEGE0TA | imeshiest
a3 per
Shudant # 49 Workstudy Shudent $175 | fhr 092013 | 06/25/2014 | fmeshest
as per
Smdant # 50 Workstudy Shudent .75 | hhr (O3S | 0602672014 | Bmesheel
as per
Sudant # 51 Woekstudy Student $1.75 | mr 042013 | 0626/2014 | mesheet
ag pir
Slodent # 52 Worketudy Sludont $1.75 | mr (H0A2013 | OBA26/2014 | mesheet
a5 par
Studeat I 53 Worksludy Studenl §1.75 | fr 0812013 | OE/26/2014 | timeshest




rll15m
Saptember 18, 2013 Oswego County BOCES Regular Meeting Board Minutes

Studeni# 54 Wotkstudy Sludarit $1.75 | ir 09048013 | D6HEE2014. :ng:!rmct
Siudeni# 55 Voakshdy Shudant 3175 | for N3 | 0GE6/2014 azs;met
PERSONNEL — { CONTINUED)
Appolntmants
Pragram Huma Position Solory Eff. Dote | End Dote | Comments
Shedent # 5§ Workshedy Studant $1.75 | fwr DHOAZ0%S | (6262014 :;gmﬁl
Student # 57 Workshudy Studsat $1.75  mr DO04/2013 | OB2E2014 :smg;m
Student # 58 Wonkstudy Studeat FL75 | fhr GR042013 | 062602014 :Tnl}“ffm
Shadent § 55 Worksiudy Stodeat $2.35 | My (9042013 | GAEER014 ?ﬂ::;mm
Student £ 60 Worksiudy Stude $68.75 [ Mhr 0904013 | GERAR01Y mm
Sludent i 61 Warksfudy Studen S075 | fhr 08082013 | QBG4 Efﬂpc;ﬁhecl

Substitutes
Cereer & Technical Educatlon

I Tomphing, Shawn | $70.360day
Excaptional Education ]
i Frigan, Barbara | $8.94me: $70 3673y
Waldion, Johnaellym | §14.08m

It was:

Moved by Casey Brouse, seconded by Matthew Geitner, that the Oswego Counly Board of Cooperative
Educational Services approves the Personnel Section of the Board Agends, effective a3 Indicated.

Mr. LaFountain informed the Board that there was a need to increase the Public Relations Dopartment by
one additional PR Specialist, That person will be Sara McCrobie and she will be beginning prior to the next
Board mesting because of the npeed In the Department. Mr, LaFountain stated he wanted to be sure that
was okay with the Board because he usuzlly tells employees not to resign from hale position until they
are Board approved. None of the Board Members expressed concern about her beginning work,

Yoto on the motion: Ayes &6, Nays 0, motion carried,

INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPORT
9.1 Instructional Support Services Update — September 2013,

For Information Onlby,

9.2 Crossroads Acadenmy Brochure,
For Information Onby.,

9.3 Career and Techoical Cducatlon (CTE) Data 2013,
For Infarmation Onky,

SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT
10.1 Dlscussion Reaarding Authorization to Approve Agreements and Contracs
[istrict Superintendent Todd reminded the Board that at the Reorganizational meeting thoy approved

authorzation for Progident Shelmidine to sign contracts. He just wanted the Board Mambers to be aware
that Mr. Shalmidine will be signing contracts relating to the Capital Project an their behalf,

10,7 Ratification of the 2011-2015 Osweqo County BOCES Middle Managers’ Contract
RESOLVER, that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services herchy approves the
agresment helween the District Superintendent and the Oswego County BOCES Middle Managers® for the
period of July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2015,

It was,

Moved by Wiliam "David” White, seconded by Eric Behling, thal the Oswege County Board of
Cooperative Educational Services hereby approves the agreement betwean the District Superintendent
and the Oswege County BOCES Middle Managers' for the period of July 1, 2011 through June 30,
2015,



w16
september 168, 2043 Oswego County BOCES Regular Meeting Board Minutes

Vote on the motion; Ayes 6, Mays 0, motlon carried.

10.3 Board of Education/Diskzid Goals,
10.3 Draft Board of Education/District Goals. Please See Enclosure.

IE was:

Maoved by Erle Beliing, seconded by Gregory Muench, that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative
Educational Sorvicos herehy approves the Board/District Goals for the 2013-14 schoal year as
presented.

Vote on the motlon:  Ayes 6, Mays 0, motion carried.

PRESIDENT'S REFPORT
11L1 Besolution o Deslonate a Voting Delegate and afternate to the 2013 NYSS8A Annual Meoting

DELEGATE
It was!

Moved by Gregary Musnch, seconded by Casey Brouse, that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative
Educational Services hereby designates Mr. Malthow Geltner as their Voting Delegate to the 2013
NYS5BA Annual Mesting.

Vobe on the motion: Ayas 6, Nays 0, motion carcd.

LTERMAT
It was:

Moved by Matthew Geitner, seconded by Casey Brouse, that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative
Educational Services hereby designates Mr. Gregory Muench as their Voting Alternate to the 2013
MYSSEA Annual Mesting.

Wake on the motion: Ayes 6, Mays 0, motion carried,

Boarp ForumM /DISCUSSION

BOCES 21 Invite

Pragident Shelmidine remindad everyone of the invitation from Charles Borgonis from the CHYSEA to the BOCES 21
ovent being hosted at West Genessee High School on October 3™, John encouraged Board Member Involvement.

Pollcy Committes Recommendation
Mr. Shelmidine announced that policy commithee met prior to the Board Meeting and would fike to recommend that

the palicias they reviewed be put up for First Reading this evening and then added to the Board Website for next
maonth's Board agenda for a Second Reading and approval. The Board Members in attendance were [n agreement,

It was:

Movid by Mallhew Goltner, scconded by Gregory Muench, that the Oswego County Board of
Cooperative Educational Services hereby approves the First Reading of Board Policies:

2410 — Code of Conduct on BOCES Property

4310 - Purchasing

4571 — Information Security Hreach and Notification

5130 — Evaluation of Personnal

5341 — Family And Medical Leave fct

6310 — Student Evaluation

6464 — Dignity For All Students Act

6492 — Student Data Breaches

7150 — Civility, Citizenship and Character Ediecation/Inferporsonal Violence Frevention
Education

R o SR ik e o o R

The BOCES Goard will vote on the Board Policy following the Second Reading at the October 16"
Goard of Education meeting.



17 e
September 18, 2013 Oswego County BOCES Regular Meeting Board Minutes

iliti - = Nate Van Wia
Mr. Nate Van Wie shared a PoworPoint Prosentation with the Board of Education that showed an Increase in
Ashestos containing NMoar ties that were originafly identified as not containing asbestos. Samples will be sent out to
another manllofing group to be sure we have a second opinion. Pending floor tle abiatement could be as much at

£500,000. Nate aleo shared with the Board the proposed site work desion,

IL was:

Maowed by Matthew Geitner, seconded by Eric Behling, that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative
Educational Services hereby approves the site work design lan and arants permission to move ahead
with the work as presented.

ote on the motion: Ayes 6, Mays 0, motion carred,

Meeting Adjourned

It was:
Mawed by Gregony Musench, seconded by Casey Brouse, that the BOCES Board Meeting be adjoumad.

Yote on the motion: Ayes 6, Mays 0, motion carried,
The BOCES Board adjourned at 8; 18 poan,

Respactfully Submilted,

Mallssa &, Allard
[Hslrict Clerk



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

ot i

TO: Christopher J. Todd
District Superintendent
FROM: Michael J. Sheperd (*,;.

Asslstant Superinténdent for Adminlstrative Services

SUBJECT: Administrative Services Report for the Board of Ecucation
DATE: 10/5/12

Enclosed are the fnliﬁﬁing items for the Flnan-::e{ﬁ.dministratiué Services section of the October 16, 2013
Board of Education meeting:

Enclosed for the information of the Board is a list of bllls approved and ordered paid by the Internal
Clalms Auditor,

Student Club Account Reports for the perlads ending May 31, 2013, June 30, 2013, July 31, 2013
and August 31, 2013, as prepared by Vickie Rowe, Treasurer of Student Club Accounts, and
submitted by Jim Huber, Chief Faculty Advisor of Student Club Accounts.

Treasurer's Report for the perlod ending August 31, 2013, as prepared and submitted by Kelly Wood,
Treasurer.

General Fund Budget Status Re and Budget Transfers Gre han $50,000 as of September 30,
2013, as prepared and submitted by Giséle Benigno, Coordinator of Business Administration, Printing,
Public Relations and Speclal Projects.

Appraval of Surplus Equipment — October 16, 2013, as prepared and submitted by Giséle Benigno,
Coordinator of Business Administration, Printing, Public Relations and Special Projects.

Resolution ta Accept the Independent Audit Report and Management Letter Contalning the
Administrative Responses/Action Plan to the Management Letfer Comments

esolution to Appoint Interim Depu urer
Resolution to Amend Audit Committee Charter

2014-2015 Budget Development Discussion on Goals and Parameters

Please contact me if you have any questions or require any additional information.

MIS:mak
Enclosures



LOLUEnTGLEL Hen  GERETA
oAy [BILEN =R ENLER DSSIE: L S UAIS| SR USSR BRBOK Yy I8N sEncn =0 sedd | uswiE.

£2ErE'ses 1
il B0 map,
£ IvE'SrE [EO), Pukds) Gupgaayg pundg [enden - you g (ERden QuUnoiay JUed Joj @mans
S50LAC CO00L'LS [ =l £oca SMO04% PEQURLE O ELOZMESEC S53L0C
FEOLOC  DEgEcd CH oy 2050 EZJRE| 'RBNE] O £LO0ZDEEC FOLI0
ES0LIC  OD'CZE% CH Of 2300 I093AY 0 2L0E0RED EZ0LOD
ZR0L00  £ESEA'PEE o o 2000 Suppng uBsBn s e D 0 ELCZIELED EROLOD
LeoLoo  O0CRS'ES oN ang =000 [Juasn T ZICE/SLED Len.0d
Jaquany  punay [EECER ayen pSA  pApD3ISY  Pund  JURLIER al Jay  adh] ajeq Jaquingy
WD ¥IAyD ied #HD LR ]
Bliyaays purd [BICED = Haus (Bden Junssay jueg
tegsiBay yooyg diy
wd g1iggiEn

 abieg £300d ALNNOJ 0O3MSC

ELOT el 499530



YEEYD [BUEN=lY  (EnLEpS)SUEl L SUo02|T=T  IWeWiEd DeRWoysy  §28yT iencwen=T isedd | Jewies

faLVEnoreL Es  dEomy

FATE o0 R o oy o £0ED BPE d\UERL O ELOZELED ZCA0ED
lggcen EALES N =] 20032 EEuaialldny 0 EL0ZaLsE LCBCELD
ACACEC  EAALS oH oH 2aca Ul EdE poad suswlan, 0 SL0Z/ALAEC qCACED
SESCRC  OOCEIEE N o £2300 AL NCTYER D ELDEELSSD 5EE0E0
BESCEC  S97LErd = op 2200 SEpEEIRIOWLL D E10/ELED BESOED
LEECEC OLT1LZ7E o oM 2300 JApeET @nRI] 0 £1C0ZME./60 LBE0ED
BESDED GRS op op £200 oM HEedep sdcl O SlCEELED SES0ED
GEGOED  SETSALE op o £a00 FEald UBWSID5 AUl 0 £LCEELED GEGOED
PRGOSO OO'FIZE oy o 2a00 L) Asmuewianng 0 ELCEISLED FEE0E0
CESOED _u_”_._uF.N.h_.ﬂ ON oN £0on HIORRIEN m_..__r.....mm._ AMNMS o EZLCE/SLED BRG0S0
EEROED O0'0ES'RE an ang 2000 WUE'Eas o SLCEIELED 25080
LBEOE0  ZLALLS o o 2000 LS MOODE SNOHNILLE 3 SLOESLED LE§AZD
DES0E0  00°CsE o S8 bt [} aiueydaiguaezey Fo S RaFid = ¥ ] GE5083
BRG0S0 6E'SS o an 2000 au| an uedo Jaddoyn eoud o SLOTSLED ER5IS]
SES080 LEHGE o an 2000 WEEHILRAd D SLOESLED 525780
LESNED  LSEE0'EE am an =00 UINESNES uosiead O ELOZ/ALED 125080
SREIT] 0000 LS ap ap 020 CIeD SUDNTE LNSAN O ELOZELED SE50E0
SREDED  HL9EZLE aN am i o smebabiiy wauoy o0 SL0EeLED 525980
25080  ©56S o ap £0ac ERCOHILISEN D TLOZELED FA5020
ERGOED  BEE ap) an OO0 Azelpgaysol D BLOZELED SRE0E0
ZB5020  pe'scd =] an ECOC ujeSindag podd Culcuely O SRAE9EED 28500
Lesosn  LE0ses ap an acon UeygyainE Ny o ELOEaLEn LE5020
0BS0E0 00 0vRS an an LoD DU ESUEIGN UEJEUET 3 TLJEMLED oas0e0
GIS0E0  BO'EES ap =] ECOD depuEsery O BLIZALS0 G080
2L50€0 OOELES ap 2 alila] ofijoul j@oH 0 ELaZalien L5080
LAS0E0 G5 0SREE ap on 2000 [EpdEy pmawdingy Tpay 0 ELOZAELS0 Lisogn
9.2080  SFOSEE an =] 2000 BUMBMOEad O ELOZMLE0 alsned
Si5080  ET08S an o £000 WEAAEYEIY O ELOZALE0 SLE0R0
riZ0ED  5.'PLSS an =] 2000 fouspuagied O ELOZELSS0 FLS0EC
TLSOE0  BLESEEE 3N &N 2000 Jawesg D ELOZALED LE0EC
ZIFO0R0  GREGES o CH 2000 T BaEnaew B0 D ELDGELED EAL ol
LIZOED  SoToEad o o 2007 EOREOMWOID O ELDZEL/EC | ASCEC
QLS0E0 CLORGLE oH oH £aca WIS 90LIE [BEUSD AIBNOS [BILAD D ELOZMALEC ALE0EC
sescen  ooOoLE CH op 2064 U] UBSWEARS AADT D EL0ZAEL/SC SEE0EC
RESCEC  LLO0S'EE CH o 2000 gapog efepusug =Erded 3 2L0EELSC 2OS0EC
LO9S0EC SFOPES &N ey £200 WEMUBWERD O EL0E/8LEC £S50E0
9960E0  £VEELE =1 o £a00 JEMUSMEIOIDEN] O £L0EELED B95080
COS0E0 BLTERSE =1 N sa0n @QON T SRR 2! SL0ZIE /B0 58080
FOSORG 54 LEE'ES oM oN £000 SIONDC [BUOLEINPY DESuEAy 0 SLOZISL/ED FUG0E0
ES50E0  BECEZO'LS oy o £a00 AMGS LRIY 0 ELCEELED ESG0ED

JACUER K WnaLy [1Re 0 0] 1eg Map PapGORy Pund  JUELIER a1 ALy mn_._f. ayeg daguinp]
LE U b feg Y 14D

|EMapa -] - juag fogry| = .ﬁ.uuﬁ_m.._uﬂ_m..._ SHNEZZY EUER
segsibay AoeyD 4y
wd gLEEIS0
1-abey S3208 ALNNOCD 023ME0

L0 'r0 499330



FoAUD [RANUER =1

MUELRISUEL | SILaIEE=S

uEWAES EEBWOITy =y y2ay D saindwone Sadh] iAWy

LELEGALE e dEpEmmy

EFO0E0  OOEALE oy oy 2000 AN BCAC) LORESNEE AR WICA MEN O SLCT/OED EPE0Z0
Lranss  LLFDEE oM op 000 BpuiEENEN D SLOZI0EED LS00
OFS0S0.  SESLLE ap an =000 a7 EEpRp Ac 2 SLOTICTED GrSOED
BUS0E0  Q0'FRE ap ap 000 HIENLCE B0 | NWYDOER D SLOTCEE0 BTHIED
988020 Q0'SLEE oN oM 000 o1 'wEpEredt o SLOZfCRIED §E908
LTS0S0 DERGLS apn apy £000 uEyag AUsH D TLOEGEED LEBOED
SESASD  OF0ER'EE an ap 036 Adong Buptans Lned o ELOZIOEED 202D
SESOED  OLZySs ap ap 2nac T auEnbIemAsIieE 0 ELOZOSED SES0E0
FESOS0  BELSES ap ap ECOC CLTSSIHLKI WNSHAD D ELIZ0EED #E9020
LEA0E0  OO0'DSTEE ap an WY U CUORIAUUTIATS D ELOEAIEED SES0E0
ZTEQ0E0  ESREFLE ap anl £ooo Tl 'SEONMES P AT [BEHID D BLIZ0EE0 22900
LE90R0 00028 an L=F N a000 SUNOEUT SEUR] D ELOE0SE0 L88080
029080 riESES anl oH 2000 BUUBMETEOS D CLOZDEE0 0SA0E0
SEI0E0 AS'HLES = Ch 2000 MESESCUEET O ELOZASSH STACTC
BEACEC  LABLS CH CH 2063 OpUELANESOUEE] O ELODSED REACEC
AZACEC  0O°0OL'9S &y Y] £aca o BunssiE 80 D EL0Z0E/50 LZACEC
BZACEC BB A% G oM 2300 ‘L) ‘SBlERaCg ainclueT Wwaen] 0 21030850 BZa0E0
SZa0E0  00°5E5E =) =3 £a00 uEiEINEg [RUOLEINSIG Uo puneD 0 ELOEI0TVED 528020
FEO0E0  SOLLL'ES op Gy £000 53009 sfepucug RENFED 0 ELCE/DED FZA0E0
SEE0E0  OD'5IEE O o £000 ZjgoN g saweg 3 ZLCEORE0 EZS080
EZO0E0  SO'ZLES =) an =000 QEMA Y HEE O SLCTNOEMED EZE0Z0
[Zensa ASnEL'LS on op SO0 fpgsw Lgly o SLOTICTED L2050
CZSOED  O0O0L'ES apy ap £000 [Foyag EEED Y D SLOTICTIED GEE0ED
BLEOET  O99ELLE apg apN £0an adopisbipg, O CLOZISTIED [;38=a i)
15380 O0'95ES ap ap £OIC sugsBugddris o SLOZEEED FLE0ED
L18020  0SEITEE an an 200 RINETSANS D TLOSMSEED LLgnsn
SL9020  DF'ZSEES oM = 2eoo waypernenberds o £LOZMZED 219020
SLE0E0 09 86.LS an A Blwils] TJERUSTWEWRIS D ELOZessD slaogn
FLOOED 0O LCLwE ap ah wlila] BpUBAYWELING D CLOZMEZED fLansn
eha0en 045 I G £000 R=IE o = R =TT R S of B P2 L Thaoed
ZLa0en oSkl et an GH 2000 MeEgppondueIndoT 0 ELDEEEED Zlacen
LLE0gn  oo'SZes o GH £007 SLUBMEEEAEY D ELOZAZE0 | LECEC
alagel  CEEZSEE CH Ch 2003 eumoiayiEsiuy O BLOZEEED aLacee
ghacet  COLOFE =] CH 20Ca gpbuyelsgqsor 9 CLOZMOESEC SCAcEC
ROACEC  CETARL'ES GH oy £acd AABIWASINEY 0 £I0Z/8EE0 ROA0EG
LDBCED  087ES5'SS =] o 2000 LEMUBACUG] 0 ELCZ/EEED A080E0
GOG0ED  OS°CESE oy = =300 lFyeaiEics 3 SLCESE/ED S0S0E0
SOS0B0 055525 oM o 2000 BEPIEUEAME D SLCRIEEE0 SOS080
ABUL,

FOBDED  O0COES jLaq Jad syoag sapic-mid JOUUED. IOEEC) ERA ap =000 SRSLEA JOIOL J0 BB AN D SLOEIETED FISI2T
E08080 QO0SLE oN ap ©000 fEoag BupEng uBauawy o SLOESEEIED £080e]

FEG T TG T unseay BT pI0A POPOdaY  pund  JUSLIEp o] Jay  adh] ajeq laquiny

120D YIS Aed aays W28y

[BlEnE = YUBE Aa% = Aay|siapad Junoooy yueg
sysian yooUs Ji
wd gLIgsm50
z abed 23208 ALNMO2 023MSO

£L0Z '70 4390130



LT Ul (EuepliaEeal) uegsa)Esg Lawhed pEBWCINEY  WaEys sepiduan=n BadAl juauity

LOLZ00.80 EN

droary

ITLLSTELE 18M
00’05 [E301 PIoA,
LTALEPELE [E}0 L PLRIE Jesapad - queg fay - A8 |EIOpEY JUR0ISY YUBT 10} [EOang
259080 EVLSLE an a 2con AUUnWOD HEW-ENY, D ELOZ0EED 89020
GEI0T0 LEEvELE ap a zonn AUBCWED R UOEAM AW D TLOEMEED SHa0E0
FEO0ED SF95 an an 2000 BERJAUNA UOTIES O ELI0S/ED ¥EI0E0
CE90E0  SEPSPS N EN £000 SUORESINWWSS &0l 3 BLIENEE0 £8a0e0
ZHA0E0  CYLSER =] CH 2000 SIOREE] BRI O ELOZMEE0 ESI0EL
bSACEC L2UoSE'el oN oH 2007 59909 =601 -BasussSUMeLal O ELOZIEE0 LSACEC
O9ACEC S5 YIRS CH =1 2003 [Sluawog B EgueD sadels 0 EL0E0SE0 J9ACEL
BEACED  LDGSTE G o 2000 abejuespy sodets 0 ELOZDLEC ASE0ED
BSH0EC  OOCOE'LS CH o £300 Bumsigrgl oweos 0 2L0EM0EED BSE0E0
58080 O0'SEFE =] op 2300 T ITEAYSUEWS 0 £LCTI0nE0 L8080
GEO0ED  ZRGES oy o 2300 UBENSABLSW-HUEYS O SLCEORED SE50E0
GES0E0 ERLOES o on 2000 Iy g ADOE QIWHAS AANY o ELCTI0REC §3E0ED
yoS080 RE'S0SES ofy ang £000 LOGESTRE UORIERd O SLOZ0TED FEE0RD
EHE0EN  VE'SEE o o £000 oU) hdEng Eapey uesaled D SLOTICERNE0 EE5020
EE8050 DL'SAE'EE ap ap 2040 afy Budid g [eRlg JeRwaned D £L0TCEED Pzl
LE20E0 O0LEES apy apy 2000 [epdsoy ofavsn D ELOECEIED LE502D
[ue{=la s I 1 T R=1 1 apy ap £0ac sAnsEal] 59008 Aunog obansd 3 ELOZOEED CEEIE
Bre0E0  000TE Bulpusle Iou J2upiesy BUUa  SLOIEAL SEA ap 2000 Tl UaERSESY FHEAN D BLOZ0ED EFO0E0
SO0s0 O0ECLE ap an BLOG jUSWLEdS] UCEINDT SEE WO MEN D ELOGDEED SrE0E0
Awg0en  OD'ECLE ap am £C00 uslLedsn uojEINDg SES oA MK D BLIZ0ZED Lranen
97a0T0  O0ECILS an et 2000 WaWUEdeD UOGRINAT B WO AN D ELOZ0EHE0 araned
Svd0e0  COEOLE oN CH 2000 wapedag UOREINP LG YO MEN D ELDZOSE0 FFAcEl
prancn COEOLE =] o R0 UAWHEda] UDGEINPY LIS 1AL AEn b SR 4 s o b L Pracoo
Evacic  COEOLE =Y & 2000 ualyRdac) UDREINES SIETS WOk AN 0 ELOZIDSAE0 FACEC
JE3quny  Junolly [CECER kg Plos,  Papoa3y pund  JUELIEAR a) pway  adAL g Jaquinp
¥IEyg  y3aeyn fed Yaayg Faays
[EIApad - WURG Ao - Aay|EmapEd URaSTY JUER
‘egsiGay YRy 4
wd gEEeisD
¢ abeg S32049 ALNNCD OS3MSO

TLAT "0 JO9e30



HEE D [ENJER =L

USSUE | BUALISE=T IUSWAES PRBWINY =Y YSay s ssindwos=n sedd ] tuanfey

LEVECOLEL MR CEGTEEY

OL620L  Q0oas op ap 2000 WESAND 2 ElCEMSLEC 0LBE0
BAEZO0L  Q0°SESE O o 000 TESAND 2 ELCEISLED BIET0 .
99620L O0CES aN o £000 CESYAND O ELODSLED SIEZCL
LAGE0L RLSFELE o =l bt} sa|cdng eoyo NS D ELOEISLED LAE2C
SEEZ0.  J0°00S'bE apn an il sEcuf o uodiels O gLOZOLED SIETCL
SIETCL Ahales el op el SENRd ey BLURD D ELOZMSLED SEEEC0
PIEEOL  O000L6E ap an Blwalv] ‘| 'ENOG FUCONIOS YEL BEED D BLOEEEED FEETAL
SEEE0L  0OIESOLS ap an BCOG OUp WALIBAOS AWMTD D ELOEZALAED SHEE0L
TEEEDL 09 EESEE ap M ulils] TU| RIEMPOS 2SED D BLOSMLED Zeszal
LEEEOL  00D0E an 5 2000 FUBYAEUOD VOGEINDT AHES R OIEEED D ELDZALED LS50
0EEE0L  ELUDEE.S an 0N £000 S390d vxibsy (eydeDn O ELOZMALED 0SEZTL
S5620L  CTELES oy &N £000 FlEuoEdeen O ELoZElist SG5EL
PESEOL CUGLLFE ] o 2003 pammEgdael 3 ELOEALASD RESEIL
LGEEIL CEERS CH oN 2000 NIQHYS T Y4 dED D EL0TELEC LGEEOL
ASEE0L  O000E'LE oN oy 2000 AEPURUUBLINZNG D EL0Z/BLISC 35620L
SeaZ0L  oD'CslE =] oW 2200 uekdyandony 0 BLEE/SLED SSEZ0L
FFRZ0L 2R'LesE o =13 =200 SLIVHD ¥ SANYHED QEWAHDES 23 SL0Z/ELED voEI0L
ESEEZO0L  O0TLIE'ES = o £000 dOddieng 3 ELCEELED BEEE0L
£SEE0L  15°.8% =l o £000 g dwess 8l 0 £LCRELED ECEENL
LEEZ0.  SLUAELS o ap £000 apmsioudag o SLCEIELED LSEZ0L
0SEE0.  O0'GGE'ES =14 an £000 OU| SfloeslEn) EONCRLEY O OZEZCL
EFEZ0L JC'2855 on ap ©0a0 AAUa0 snEN SRpoohs SJaWg ey 2 EloEfaliEd BREZC )
SPEECL  SEGS ap apy oac CARA CI0UL HPE 2 ELOZELED SFEE0L
LPEEDL  L2Rsd ap ap OO o CBUIRIL YaEe D ELOZMELED LEEEOL
SEEEOL  DOD0LLE apy ap Zooo cBamsiy 0 ELOZ/aLed apEEoL
GEEEOL  DOELF GES an ap ECO0 uy endwog addy O gL0EaLED SREZ0L
FRSEOL  EOLSLEE ap iy ECOg HSAp [BUCEDNRT pRaURARY D ELIEELED fEEl
EFEEOL  O0DLLE ap &N £000 ENUGLDET WoA0py O £LIZraka0 LFEEaL
ZySEaL  oODRDLE o ] 2000 IGd3A% O ELOZAALED Zragal
LFECOL CO0EEEE oM CH 2000 WENSPakELesy] 2 ELOZELS0 i rida]
OPSTAL EPEER'ER o = 2000 Agmep LBy 0 ELOZELSC I¥ELIL
SESC0L S0TGER'ERES o oN 2003 S0 ROYSE BHUSET B0 ApUBS O SLOZROASE 3E5T0L
BESZIL LrRLRATE N o 2202 huapedy ¥SElnd 0 EL0ZMOEC BSEZOL
LEEE0L O SSE'EELE =1 op 2000 |9CLDG [BLUS XUBCd 0 BLOEPED LEBE0L
STEZO0L  FRFILLLLS o oy £a00 IEi0 oyas A obamms 0 ELCEFOED CEEZ0.
GERZOL  SEERLLRS op of 2000 S0 SOYIS BBl caMEl D ELCEIFDIE0 SEEZ0.
7ERE0L  OE'FEQ'OTRS o apn £000 [ooLag RLUaD EGLUEH D £LOEFOED FEEZOL
ESEZ0- GESERBSE LY oN O 2000 o Poyas g uend - o ELOEMDIED SEEIC)
TEEZO0L  OOCLER0SOLE an ap 2000 BE0 Soyas EQUED etk ELURD D ELOZFNED ZLEECL
LEEEC!I  D9ZEL'bisd an ap) LAl [FOyzg EQEZ MDY D CLOSRDNED LESECL

Januwmp  punowy [T ajeq pios  PAR0ISY  puny  JUBLIERY o puay  adAp MHeg dagquiny

NIaYD  Woayg Aed Haayn HIaY3

PR UEs) - jueg Aay - Aay (BlEUss) UNooTy YUY
1aysifay yaayn diy
wd gLiggien
L-afeg S3308 ALNMOZ 0OD3IMED

LO0Z PO 4390300



JalEmnier ban Sy

YSEAD [ENLAW=l  ([ENCBPISISURL] SII0GDE|S = JUBILAR DRIRWICIN Y IS 180 Wi =] sEcs L e uNed

OLIEDL 00005 LE apl oM £o0a aupsA g EEAW O ELOZMELASO akagaL
s0024L  COCOOR'ES ap EH 2000 NEQEESIAEY 0 EL0ZALAED SC02E3L
BOOSDL  LEEI0LE ] CH £000 snEMlEY 0 ELOZMALSO BCIEIL
L0OEOL  STEES oH oM 2o0a SN US0HE ATIONGT 0 sLoZiElise £C0E3L
0EIL SEGLEE ] oH 2067 pEnpald sndwen yesifo]  Q £L0Z8LEC acazaL
SCOZ0L S1°S9EE 1] o 2000 s=foouysa) saoyg |eBay 0 gLOleLEn S00EOL
a1 [ Y- o oM £a00 sued oiry SIYEN Q) ELOZ/ELED Po0s0L
EOOE0L  SORLZILE oy oy £a00 ou|CfERET 0 SLCBMELED E00E0L
Zo0gnl  LE'GEFE o =1 £oo0 S|ELALEN WES] AIOySa¥E] 3 EL0ZIELED £00E0;
LO0Ra. 25028 op o slalal] WEWIBRINOET O SIOGISLIED Kl i
COOEO0:  OC'SIES apy o £000 EEOELDDY O ELOTISLED DOGEOL
BSEZ0L  BO'OSES am ap) £006 SR Iy HRr O ELOESLED ESEZC|
S5EZCL  DO'OBES an ap £nac Buliesr) (xl O ELOZELED SSEZCL
LEGECL  SE'YS ap apy £040 ST usEe D ELOZELED LEEECI
OREEZOL  05'5CE ap ap) aan SIANEMG IR0 FIBWLWNE D 2L0ZEIED SEEEOL
SEEEOL  LL'98Es ap) an ECOG SEWErVagnH 3 ELOZELED SaEE0k
FEEZOL  007009Ed ap an 00 oouUE EIYEnaH O ELDZELED FESZOL
PESEOL  DOO0RS ap oM S000 jan SAMEH D ELIZELED SHSEAk
TESZOL  STREETE ap ] £000 SEUSD BUSIEIYD PRSI D ELDZMLED ZESZOL
LBSZIL CHEELE BN BN £000 SEYIEN FIH D BLOZMELASD LESZIL
OESEOL  LO°E0EE CH oM £003 Adeduion pregoed-REIMaH 0 ELOZ/ELIEC JESEIL
gF5Tal  SESTLE =] o £003 fiddng Buipiang uneH O EL0BMLE0 555201
BRESOL  O5lEld oH oN £a00 SUJHRIS LS D ELOZELED BRGE0L
86Z0L OOTEEEE =T =l £a60 oupdeBuEig O EICEELED LEBZOL
SEEZ0L  O59IS'EEE oN op £000 aup uoisaudesans 0 SLCEMELED BEEE0L
SREZOL  OFRLTOTE oN =4 £000 Buipug [iauas O SLCEIELED GREZ0.
YEEZO.  ORSFLS op ap £000 O dsEBuEY D SLORELED FREZC
SREZ0.  OULERFETLE o ap 000 waweinbg Jes Bed D SLOTISLED EREEC|
TEEZOL  pA'S6ZS =T ap £0ae Wmpad 0 SLOZELED ZAEZOL
LEEZCL  D2'0SZS o ap 2000 MOPFCERE D ELOEELED LREzol
CEEZCL  LO'ZS0ES ap ap 090 5Z00E LEUS D TlLoalen CREZOL
BLEEOL  LE'SnZs ap ap Lo SU MW IUE O LLOEALED BLET0L
FLEEOL  BL'9ESLE ar an i) sapasEy uauUEModE 0 SLOZELED FLBEOL
LABEOL ALESLS ap ap folli[s] gEGAOENENYSIE D ELDZELED LiEEOL
QLEEOL DOESELE an oM £000 eI B CAUs jdng D ELDZMELIGD aLEEalk
SI6E0L DS TLFTD apy &N £000 sHuRgos|g R0 O ELO2ELS0 SLaE0L
FASEAL  CZrObE oM G 2007 [BuCHRUWANITCET D ELOZALED FasEalk
wiEEal  EELETLE (Y] CH 206D o Bunsseg A0 9 ELOZMLse ELEZOL
TiEZAL  COTS0SE i =l £aea Swlwd 0 EL0ZMELED TLEZOL
LLaEdl  LEEILE oH oN £a00 eccagayBlei 0 glomfELED LLEEOL
JAquINN  Junawy uoseay e plop, pOpooay pund  JUELERL aj pway  adi) awen BN

MHYD MG feg E 1Tk ¥aays

OUNS Uacy - JUBS A8 - ABM|RISUAS IUNCIoY ¥Ueg
JmgsiBay ¥284 D JdiY
wd gLELE0

7 abed 32008 ALNNOI C23IMS0 £L0Z '#0 1900920



FDALTERUEI = VAR UEPLASURI | ALsiEmeEss  UAlAE pRiEaniyEy  psal s sendwan=0 isedA ) uawiey

SUETDLEL JaN GTpITY

050E0:  O000ES ap aN £000 BFUEXBMSIANG O SLOEISLED GECECL
BROE0:  FFOLES ap o £000 Eeyamiedeys 0 SLORELHED EFLECL
SPCECL ES0GLS an an S MpEedg isoyas o ELOTIELED SFCECE
ARCECL SE'58t ap ap 200 updisRloyss 3 eR0EaLED AFCECL
SECECE  OFOZE an an BOIG OMIAAUER D gLOZE@LED SFOEQL
SEQEQL  GE9LT ap saA ECOD ‘DU SUORMAS SjEE PENBRES . 0 ELOZMLED SEOBOL
FOEDL  O0RESS am am ECOo Eua] EEa e D BLIZELED Fr0BaL
er0Enl 6028 ap an ECO0 F EEERLIUWET-ONIeaY O ELOZALED £r0EDL
Z0g0l  OO'PEE LIS am an £000 Mesmen oeay O CLIZALED Zmigal
LYOEDL  OFELS ap oH 2000 UOLESDEIES NG O ELoZsalisn LYOEDL
ay0eal  rEEsES an BN 2000 RINPALL [PILDE FWESA] D ELO&AELG0 arFazal
SE0E0L  CEIELE oH Gy £000 ASLNYADHd D ELOZALS0 S20E0L
BENSOL  CO'SRSEES &N CH £aca Engcid 0 ELOZALSE gEagalL
220201 LGS CH =11 2003 U amuaspy eelead 9 ELoZimlsc Fon o |
E020L FESLES GH =l £a03 QANBEISOd O SL0Z/BLSC asnsoL
GEDEDL  gLEISE =]/ =/} £aCa JTIHEdEYd 3 EL0Z/EL/EC sEoeoL
PEOSOL  FEFETLS =l o £300 UoREInE UosieRad O ELOZ/EL/EC feozal
EE0E0L  ZETOS0'ES o oM 2200 UonLESnp UosleRyd 3O ELO0Z/ELE0 EEDE0L
2020l GEEPSE o o 2200 S-Wod D ELCTELIED Te0eal
LEOgnl  GL'FESE ey oN 2000 AUEQWOD DBSIE BISUEY D ELCEELED LEOR0.
oEOE0l  SEOMEUS =1 o 2000 o fudig 5 |amg Eewesed O SLOTISLED neoen:
BZOE0.  O0'FEZS oN o £000 salyRan Aunos oBawEn 0 SLORSLED BZCEOL
SZ080.  RAFEES ar an 2000 of Bupal| [|\delg O ELOTISLED azZCECt
LZCEOL OL'es ap =1 2000 wdag ssik 2 SL0L9LED 1ZCRCL
SECE0L  PELEELE oN ON ©0ac U CHENpQd aadl B D gLOEMRLED SECECL
SECECL Q00 LS ap an 2090 ueuUuBYSEIEWG D ELOZRLED SECECL
FICECL  DOSES ap ap OO0 FRSEAN D ELOZSLED FECEOL
CECECL 0Crog s Op an eoac YHSEAN D ELOZM9LfED SEOEOL
ZEOEGL  00'OSE ap) anl ZCon YIVSAN D ELOZALED ZEOEOL
LEOEOL  O0RLES am am A ila] CESYSAN D ELIZaLED LEOEDL
CEOEOL  DOO5ES an an zono sang o7 9 SA009 M ENEN Ay SAN D TLOZELED [arduoto] 8
GLOEOL  GEESES an an BCOo AT ARSI Q20N 2 ELIZAELED GLOgaL
BEOE0L  lpPES M | 2000 ARMPUL | SENG HOA MEN D ELOEALED 2LOEQL
AlOal 00090 LE an ] £000 agindwes suozioy Man D ELOZELED F B ota
akoEal  Co'5zes = GH 2000 SWBNFIOT |BUSWLALALE 300 D ELOZ/ELE0 aLagal
SLOEaL ZOGLEd CH =] 20ca SUQLNQS DoFsy JUBInRsay Buolen 2 ELOZALSE0 sLaeal
FEIEDL  COO0S5E CH N fota o WEN|na a0 EL0ZA9LIE0 FLOE0L
ELOEDL  BELZR'EES oH oM £a00 SA00E SNYSTH0 - 2 I0UNDN 0 ELOLELED £L020L
CLOSOL  O0020'FS G O 2300 waRloEeel-uany 0 SL0ZELED TLoeoL
LLOSOL  L9729%'E8 op oy £a00 F[AOYIS (BT 0OmE) O ELCEELED LLOE0L
JAQUINK  JUNaLy LOSENY aeq Mas  pApoDaY  PUnd  JURLIEAL aj Jway  adh) EFEN FEGTITY

#ID  HIYD iy F T ®ID

PLN-| WSS - YUBE A3 - AeIEIEUas Uncooy KUeg
1mgsibay ¥oayD JiY
wd gL58m5D0
£ abied £3208 ALNNOJ C23IMS0

ELOT w0 4990530



HIBUD |BNUEW=I (IRNLEPMSYS IR | SIUGUD8|S=] JUBLARS DEjEOITY=y  HESU0 Snewes= 1gedd | luawiey

LALEC'DLEL aa

dhpard

OB0EOL  EUILEE o GH 2003 NEECIdELSES D ELOSELED JEIE0L
9080k SETLLE oN oN 2000 WRBcOsEd D ELOZ/BLIEC G5020L
BE080L  LEBEE'EIS = = 2000 JEI0 @oYSE BAUE] eRIg ApURS O £L0%ELED B0l
L5080 ATEITVES =i; | =i | 460 fuapEdy MEENd 0 ELCEMELED A20E0.
95020l OOSET'FRE oy o £000 [OoUDS [BLUB XUECYd O ELCEISLED SO0
SE020L  FELLSLES O o a0 Jarseal)| 92009 Lunoolamsn O ELCEIELED Geoen
FR0E0L  SASbELES oN ON £oon mEoyas [BiLad Mdy D EL0EIELED veget:
EROE0.  RLGLE oN o 2000 ApULANSEAcN, D CLOTISLED SRCECL
Ze0El.  tSEstls o oN engn SfosIBEUCH, D ELOESLED ZeCElL
LBCECl 0¥ EEZS oy ap T0a0 FUDRIILNWLO] Wesspuipny O BLOESLED LRCECL
CECECE  BSEyd any any Gl ¥ueg ey, D ELOESLED CROEGE
BLOEDL  BELLLLE ap am goag asniEds o uawsBeuey @sen, O ELIEMANED BA0EDL
SLOE0L 00202 LS =l an ECOD UBUEREIENY D ELOZraLED FLOEOL
LIDEOL  DOCDPES a an ulils] a7 ABQpUuDa ] g aueROs SRILIs, O ELOZMaLED LI0E0L
QL0801 05 OFFS ap o 2000 HLINEHD0T AZTTA 2 ELOSELED L0801
FA0EOL  BLBFRLE on CN 2000 12N 2 ELDZALiE0 SA08AL
PAOEOL  LIEDRLSLS &N CHN 062 AN GOSRIEIN0ESY F PoOMIaYs O ELOEELAE0 FLA20L
ei0gaL  lZoZs oN =1 2000 ARG [BOUEZS FRLUN O ELOZvELE0 ol
TLOEIL  CRLEEE = = 2000 fddng @iy pELUN D BLOZELEC TLOEDL
LAOSaL  OOELLE = o 2000 NOLLYHOSH0D LEdIIMN 0 SL08SLED Liosal
pipeol  shEZSE 1] o £200 SUSEdUnWes @l 3 SL0ZIELED nLoz0k
BI0E0L  9EELS o o £o00 | ssstadiauzg plall 3 ELOEELED [al1s
BapsoL. OV ILERS = =114 £000 SIEREST [RAEIL O SLCRIELED ga0ed.
90800 LETLELE oy oN 2000 ot Eedep slel o CLOEELED L30E0 L
g90e0L  Z0'Z5L8 =14 on £000 Flavdmsiygpoo. D SLOESLED Sacec!
59080,  Q0O0L'ES an ap P [EEySy warmAALEL D ELOZIELED SACECE
¥ILECL  OC'DOSS op o 2040 O Auedeog EYEg AVL D ELOTAOLED FACECI
A0 OOOERS an ap il Jopuficoey [BUDIFSOIg O Zuna 8yl D BLOBSLED £A0EOL
ZADECE  OOREL'SLE ap an) £CO0 Wewdinkal 3 £LOEELED ZE0201
LECEDL  OSFLEPE Foll=oues ead  gLOLSEIE 53N ap) i ] SATES dNOWD IDUWHISIEL 2 £L0EELED LEOEOL
0O0E0L  BELSES an ap bAwlile] UBUEWGIAEL D ELDZAbED 0E08aL
BEOEOL  OORELS ap an ECO0 dricug) Bipaly 2STORIAE O ELOZALED GEOZaL
EOE0L  EbREES an £ 2000 |[Bapap Bwadng O ELOZELED PLOEIL
LS0B0L  O00EE o o 2000 I Ersuwedry 0 ELOZMALSC 57201
AGOEAL  COULSE = = 2083 oOEME0 ANMS O BL0ZELED 251201
S5083L  £OOSLE C =1 2400 UOLESMES EHENS O ELO02/LEC 250801
PSOSIL 0AG5EE o oy £200 [BEiaWa] B DO SIS 0 SLCZIELED #5020l
ESDEDL  9E°SES =i\ Op £a0n abEmuenpy S9ICEIS O ELCEMSLIED oo,
T5020L  ¥OBE = oN 2000 BsTUESuEds o £LO0E/ELED TE0en.
ks0gnL  O0'CIC'RS =} o <000 ToHOISEY NdZELN0S D CL0EELED [£=11{>1 58

JAQWINN  JUNQWny [EECEET areg plas,  PAR0ISY  pund  JuelEp aj ey adhl Y JAGLINgY
HIUD  qIAYD Aed AHYD H3AYD

PN Las) = uUBg A5% = ASEIAULAS) JUNCSSY HURY
128150y Koaya diy
wd §LIELis0
t abied SID0E ALNNOD OD3MS0O

SLOZ PO JAQOI20



YA BN (ErUeasral] auc]sa|g=T Lawbed pRIBWCIMyEY. ¥aaU0 JEndwan="0 Sanh) awiey

JLETOURL U SRS

CELECE  E0AlZs an ap 000 DEAUSELSE O ELOZMEED OELEDL
EEZLEOL  BELvDS ap anl ECOO Addng jueg oy SUNE D BLOZAEED BELEDL
FELEDL  EOALES A an go0o W SUBE4ONENMCINE D ELIZLED RE1E0L
SELEOL  0O'ESRTLES an an ECO0 ®Ewdng 3 BLIENERED LELEDQL
= o | S 0 an o 2000 BUMMAIRING O CLOZOEED GZLEOL
GELEOL  E0LLEE an oN 2000 EduogeIRE D ELDENLE0 SZ1e0L
poigal  E0ALES aH GH 2000 WAEDOHLASi D ELOEIDE0 PELEDL
TZleal  0abEs & CH 2000 [ BloEduaacd 0 BELOZOSIS0 gZlEal
TEIEQL ETLLES CN N £0C2 N eDyEusacag 3 ELO0E0SEC LELEaL
T - T 22 = = 2003 g epufpalpiuaiaelg D EL02/DESSC LELEDL
0ZLEal  EEAFER oH oy 2007 Y ROy AEmIEsy O £L0R080E0 az1E0L
BLlEOL  E0LLES =11 op 2000 TyleqeREasey 0 SLOTDEEC aLle0L
T o R 1 v op op £300 DU AN 230 SHCOE O ELCEI0RME0 aLLenL
LLLEOL LETEALE op Ofy £000 WLaudHSUegIEqUalog o SLCTNOEED LbE0L
SLLEDL  EOLLES op oN £000 TJUMBYSAENOY D SLORCTED ELLR0L
GLLE0L  QL7LAgS oN oN bt o} udozaryomiog 0 SLOE/CEED L A
FLLE0L  EEOSES ap ap 2000 'oul moueug diegenig o ELOECTIED FLLECL
EILE0:  ZOOLLES ap ary 2000 W EREERpIEEURE D SLOE/CEED SLLECE
TLLECL BT iN¥ES an an =000 oaewauabag o ELOTORIED ZLLEGL
Lilect  BoiilZs = an T0a0 o usglLEEAaE D ELOBOLIED LLLECE
CLLECL DS'kad op ap BOI0 wAAUBMNEULEE D TLOZOSED CELEQL
BOLECL E9'ZOES oy an ooon Jugmapedsg 3 CLOZW0EED E0LEDL
SOLECL  BYLCLE ap e 2000 WESOHWEIOWER D ELOZ0EED 20LE0L
LOLEDL  pORERS an an ECOo WOASUBNGERIEE D ELIZ0SED LOLEDE
apLeal  FbERE an 3 2000 HOLI=E O ELIZ0LE0 an.eol
SOLEDL  BREEIS am &N 2000 W ueeasIyEUiER O ELDZOLED s0.80k
FOLEQL  EOCLLES an BN 000 ‘TEEWC | uRIaseg D ELOSIEMS0 to g3l
cOLEOL  BETICS o =] 2000 oM § S8BT O ELDEOLNED TOLEDL
ZOLEOL  CObES o o 2003 ‘Favkepihiapien 0 SO0 ZCLEL
WGLEDL  CAPES &4 oH £063 fapuyFvENEg 0 LS00 FOLEDL
QCLEAL  CATRS CN 1 2003 o WALERNSODOER D BLOZM0SE0 aCLEDL
SEIEIL  EXLLED CH =l 2000 W BISBSMOSIYY D SL0Z/DEMSC SE020L
BEOSOL  PREPE'ES CH &N £200 AW 181 0 EL0Z0%EC BE0SOL
AEDE0L  BETAOLE oy o 2100 JABPNEALY D LGRS0 JE0E0L
S60E0L  P5535 o =11 £a00 ESTAWAEN D ELCTOTED SE080.
SE0EOL  OOCLSE oy o 2000 aup Buiuoipdes iy g Bueed dwat oy o SLOEICERIE0 GE0R0.
7e0E0. 0096951 O ap fatial} ‘S| 'SWALEAS UAUSEESSY PEQUENTY T CLOEICEED FELEC L
£E080. A op oN 2000 apy D ELOZICEIED E5CE0
ea0ens  JB'FRE oN o ©oac WRNNASWERY D SLOSI0EED catatl
LECEOL  SPSLETLE =l ap BOIC AHIVSOIREW 40 ADYTA D ELOENEEED LECECL

JBOWRN U nowy uoseay ajeq pioA  papoaay JUBLIEM op muay  adig #Heq JAguIny

Naays  yaayn feg Haayg HOAYD

Uu_._n_ Uagy = ¥ueg .._rm_u.._ - hmz_mhmcmmu u_t_._nﬁﬁ:n_. HUeg
1asi6ad ¥y div
wd gi58:50
& afieg S3308 ALNNOZ ODIAMSO

LLOZ 'R0 4309520



LEVETALEL e STTELH
NIAYD [ENAEREl CERJdEPIaEELEL] DUANIRESE  IMEWARS FRIBWaINY =Y §IAU D BN dwan=n sadd] juawded

DiFEOL  O5T80LE =T} = 000 sydesg g daua dng o £LOZICRED 0ZLECE
BILEOL  O8'FEE on op £000 FEjaoREEd D SLORCEED BILECE
L0 TELLEE aRg ang £000 MRIOENR:] O ELOZICEED S3ALECL
19Le0s 20 LLES oN on e0on WElEsarERInG g o elLOZICEED Ll
SALEDL AESELE an ok £000 TERIEQEGIENEI D SLOZONED S3LEC)
GALECL  DOO0SEE ang any 20400 PN [BAEYIERUARD D ELOZM0EED SHLEDL
FALEDL  EOLLES ap an e J sfioagnirAsnaEg O ELOS0EED FELEGL
SOLEOL  PEL0LE an a eCoo [apEdsuodag 0 ELOZ0SED £5LEDL
ZALEOL  BEESLE ap am BCO0 ;mwag 2 EldgEED Z9LEDL
LELEQL  EQNALES ap an ECoo I esmiE BuoRg D BLIZED L5LEAL
OSLEQL 0L MEES an an £000 ‘gawembeoE] O ELOGDEED os.eal
BHIE0L  LTOSEEE an = 2000 2 EupEie 190 D ELDZA0LED &91E801L
PELE0L  COTES oN CH 2000 DUERABUIED D ELDZILS0 25180l
AIEDL  CEFRS o = 2000 TAYEMICUEIAT] D ELOEIZE0 L5lgal
agleal  oaTLass o o £0C0 ‘JumeUEag D BLO0S9E0 ag el
=1 B ot | R AR ol =] oN 2060 UESNSIWWEGE] 3 ELOZ0SEC SoLeal
PSLE0L  ODCIS'EE o o £000 SACOE W] 3 EL0Z/DEEC PSLEaL
EFLE0L EOCLLES oN oN £000 WenSSNED O EL0Z0EE0 ESLENL
TSLEODL  DEFES oN oN fota (e WosAIEEsenE] O 2LOZMEED Z5kens.
MELEOL  Br0OEE oN oy £000 o Aewesoguoduansg 0 ICH08ED E=TR i
0SLEDL  QEFES op opg 2000 T EUEMULED D £LCEI0EED 0sLe.
GPLE0.  15'9IE =l =l 2000 | 'sis|EERds smndwon wesnn O SLOECE/ED BFLE0L
Shie0:  A5'FE% oy apy £000 WyEREYSEIULWnG D SLOEICEED =Rl ol
LPLEDL  O0'SESS any ang 000 uolearpg euoiedroog ua paunon o ELGEICTIED LELECE
SPLEGL B9'SLES op o £0a0 SwasAg uaWieg aeucdion O SLORCEED SkLECL
SELECL  0OO0RS ang an 200C S0 YSER = BR-HASEI Lt o ELOEiDEED G LEDL
FRLEDL  BOLLES an an 0o I AOuENSIEID D RLOZIORED FrLeoL
ELEOL  DE'PEE ap ay ECoo 'HaAueryleln 0 ELOEW0EED TrLEQL
Zrlenl  E0ULES ap ap ECOD WOEILOOEEID D ELIZ0LED ZrLEoL
LELEOL  9E'505 L% ap an el i[o] cougued 7 Aped SUYD O ELOZDSE0 LELEGL
OFLe0L  LZ'E9LE ay an ECO0 TERUEgUELIEYD D ELIZ08E0 OFLEOL
GELEQL  09PES am oM £000 ERUIMUINg-ypavsEley 2 ELOZNSKSD 551801
PEIE0L  CODOOLES o &N 2000 DUE ooy elues A1ENhS [BIKAD D ELOZAOSE0 RELEIL
LEIEDL CU0O0RLE CH Ch 2000 AENDS RLAD] O ELOZISED LELEDL
AELEDL COYSECLS o on 2007 WU ST AOD 0 EL02/0E/E0 FTLEIL
5EI20L 05'E9g'ed G 1] £aC3a 53004 sEepuzugy 2Enfen O SL0Z/0SEC SElenl
FELEDL  SEESLE =1 of 2000 “ou) 'sa|deng poyas pERRE] O ELOZIOLEC bELENL
EZLE0L 0052595 = o £000 SUC YESIIRED] 0 SLOEORED SSLE0L
TELEOL  OOCSER = o 2200 [OCjE] CWED - WS 4 CWES 0 ELCE/OTIED TELE0L
FELEOL  ESLOLE o o £a00 W EDWMEUOBWES O ELC0EED LELEO.
JBQUIRK ULy ugseay apeg pas  papoday pUnd  JURLER] alilway  adil ayer daqunp]

MRYD  HRWYD ieg 3D YD

PLNA UA5 = YUy Ay = ASy|EI8UAD JUNESSy Kueg
15159y Koy div
wd g1EEi50
g afing 3208 ALNNOJ O93IMEC

10T 'p0 180320



SOLEICIDL LA, CSEDEE
HIEUD [EUE=l (e ESIE | TINCASAIT =T LEUAE PEBLGINYSY WIS JSNeLa0=0 5R0 AL uawiad

olgenl  LEaFls ap an BO00 BETYWEWNEN O ELOZ0S5ED QLZEL
GOZEOL  EOLLES anl aM £000 MESSWEH O ELI&IEE0 BOZETL
ROZEQL  EOALES ap ol 5000 1 oEouEEEALRH D ELOZ/0EE0 ROTSAL
LOZEQL  00OES 3N oM 2000 ‘S sAaWEmoUdWLE O ELOZISS0 LEZETL
QOZEDL  OFEES oM CH 2000 W elficagpedSEH 0 ELOZMIES0 ACZEIL
FCZEOL EDLLES CH o 2007 EpEpyEbiey 0 ELOZ/DEE0 SCTEIL
FCZEIL  ETLLES = =l 2063 wieEnbrg 0 £L0Z/0%EC PLESOL
ECESOL  05LELES =] =, boa [ 440 09 S2A7WE dNOWSD 0 EL0Z0TEC ECESOL
TOEEDL ST APER (=]} oM £300 I uBAODEYSWLEES D EL0Z0SED A1 1
LOEEOL  FOFEFE =1 op £000 0 EuCrEEICUARS O ZLCZN0RED LogEns
00EE0L  Z0LLES ON oN 2000 ToUREMIIG 3 DLCEI0SED ooEEn .
BELEOL  OS'ELEE op ap £000 SE00g A1 LSnog MBS o SLOTICEED BELETO:
S5LE0.  ZO0°SErS oN o 2000 T AuapseEnRs o SLOSCEED G510
LELEDL  0SORTLS ap ap) £000 U ssbEls D SLOTICLED LELECL
SELEGL  BELrEs ap) ap 2000 ' FlECIHWRYRIS O ELOTIORIED SELEOL
SELECE  DOPEZELS ap) ap 2006 L] USSEULSDAIS D EROEIORED SELEOL
FELECL  BLOS0ES ap ap 00 dEaHaneD 0 SLOZOSED FELEOL
EELEOL  EOALES ap ap 2CO0 o AEppESEUREOIS D RROSONED SELEOL
ZELEOL  0LbSES ap ap £CO0 S EETTMERQUBISS D ELIZN0L/HE0 ZAELEDL
LGLEOL  APAEE ap Y 2000 ‘oopawdinbg eooln 3 ELOZDEMED0 LELEAL
OB.E0L  ZOTALER o 5 2000 LUgomiES 0 ELOE0EED QB2
BELEOL  EOLLES oy &y 2000 UslEnUBUpUES O BLOZIES0 S81E0L
RILEIL  COBOLE EN = 2000 [F10H BZE|d VEIED O EL0EISE0 BELEDL
LELEIL FTLOES CH CH 2063 Bujles abebuen aes 0 ELOZ/DT/EC LFIE0L
b o | A o P K=ot =] =] £aE0 ESRIE AAmE O L0E0SEC agLEnL
CHLENL  DRTES N o 2300 Tuadegiaeeld 0 SICENLED 5glenL
PILEOL O8RS CH G £200 T ENAEIRELY O ELCEORED rELE0L
EFLE0L  OOCOEE o =] 2000 BN SRR D SLCEMOTED ggluo.
ERLE0L  O5vES =1 apy 2300 AVEMSEVEIY O SLCTI0RED ARV
LRIEOL  ERiped oy op 2000 ToEElMEYRY D EL0TACEE0 LBLEC:
0gLE0. SRS an an 000 ohAepMSEIEd D SHOTICDED CRLECL
BLLEDL  OSFES apy ap £000 TFREEDPEL 0 BLORCEED BLLECL
giLE0L  ®5'LOLS ]3] an £00C W pEs A 0 ELOECEED 5LLECL
LALECL  BLLE9'TS ap ap el BEUAIOL BIBNSS D TLOZIOSED LikE0L
SLLECl 0&'Pa% an ap ECOC astehallag D ELOZS0EED SLLEOL
SILEQL  ESTICLS ap am B0 WuBsEgAEIEaS O ELO0sED GiLBOL
TLLEQL loegle ap am soO0 "o [UETIENES o BLIE0SNED FALEQL
2ALEOL  OZ'EER LS ap an £000 ousH UEEH O SEEn 90 ELOE0gEn LIETL
ZLIE0L AOESES an &N £000 a0 BunEIgd JET3 D ELDESASD ZLLEOL
LAlEOL  ZOALES ey ] 2000 g epumiueles 0 ELDZAOSAEC LLigdl
Jaquiny  JunoLly uaseEay [T Ta] Plof,  paponay JUELIEAR a) pway  adAl weg Jaquiny

¥Iayz  Homeyg fed yaayg EE e

AUNZ UBg - yuEg Aay - ASMIUBUSE) JURIDOy YUED
JagmiBay yeyD JiY
wd gLiEei5h
4 abey S3208 ALNNOD 023ME0

EL0Z w0 JAGMIG



DAY T [BNUEP= CSMUE LIRS ] SLAREE=T  IUSWARL FRIBWMNy=y YSay D 2indwog=s sadi ) tuswiey

LECEDALEL UaA FEETY

052800 ZOLLEE op any £000 2 aciEdeTeyYET o SLOEI0ED 052801
GFEEOL  Z0°LLES o an £000 foueppuiisuEa) D SLOSCEED EFEEiL
arEe0:  SS0rSS on on £000 WO JREUILLET D BLOETTEED SkZeCl
LPEED.  BEORSS ang ap it WoTigieUWET O TLOZICEED LPEECE
SrEECl  BLLALE ap an 2006 UnEUIUEIZET O ELOZ0SED =l e]
SEZECL J8'+9E ap ap 0 N S=UR\paRT O ELOEIDEED SiZEdL
FPEECE  EFOSES ap an BCan pussnadinl Bl O ELOSOSED Frzel
SFEEDL FOPERS ap A ECOD RO At s R T ] W Pl 0 i ZHZE0L
ZHZEOL  LFOELS ap an eoon Jafo eyacy O £LOZ0EED Zrgeal
LEEQL  BOCALEES ap an palul il FiBLIEAMAUY D ELIENEED »7EEQL
OVEE0L  EOLLES ap o 2000 kaumddauy 2 ELOZA0SE0 aPEEdL
GEZEAL  DEFES ap oH 2000 lalESILY O ELOZMOSS0 s2zeal
BEZEOL  CO'sELE TN N £0Ca BUCisAEN O - ELOEDESE0 BEZTEIL
JETEL £oL0LE &N oH 263 T URIBL GBS O BL0T0TIEC LETETL
aszeal  ZTULLEE o o 2053 JuBEUEY D ELOZ0EEC QETE0L
SEEEDL LZ'BaLE =] o 2600 W BRSUDAsEY 0 SL0NDES0 =itA 1A
FEEEOL E0CLLEE =] oN 2200 Magaugy 0 2L0S0%ED tEEE0L
EETE0L  E0LLTE =10 =l 2300 o BULETSUNHERE O ELCZI0TED ESEE0L
CEEEOL  ZOLLER O oN £000 W Adfagsauor O ELCEINEED EEEE0L
LEEE0L  20LLES op o 2000 T UAESRIOr D ELCTIOTED LEEel.
DEEED: 05°vES L=/, | oN 2000 AAEEANULOSLYSr D ELORI0RE0 OEEE0.
BIEel.  00°00cE =l oN <000 AN AT NS VI o SLOEICEIED B2Zel}
92280  EEAFES Gy =1 £000 o BLUEEAMOSNSED D ELOGICEIED SETECL
LZER01L g’ LLZgs oN Qap T0ac AvEg o ELOZCEED LEEECL
GETECL I0'EELS ap ap 2000 laganay fausbas NefE 0 CLOZAORED =rAs ]l
ezzZECL  DO'EELS an ap oo Jasacoy fousbad uedl o £LOZ0ZED STZEOL
FEZEDE  BFOSES an an il o auanesaying . 0 ELOS0ED Freol
TEZEOL  EFRLLS ap an BCO EBCIBHUOSENH D ELOZAOSED forsra=(]
ZEEZEQL  EE'SS am an [} sswepagiH D BLIZMEED ZE2E0l
LZZEOL BT iFES an an 2000 aegegEsnaE O ELIZ0SED LEEEDL
O2ZE0L  EZivEs ap [ £ono TUHEAM@ESRAUOH 2 ELDZ0EKE0 OZZEQL
GLZEOL  yLOLE 2N CH 2000 AEUTPRACEIEE D ELOEISED SLEEAL
BEZEQL  EOCLLES ] BN 20Ca b T 4 s Ft Ll T BLZEIL
LLZEAL SLERES o o 2000 oA Man JpesiH D ELOZ/0ZE0 AlzEal
3LE20L  CE'PES =] oM 2003 audEr wAENaH 0 ELO0ZI0WEC JLEZ0L
SLEEDL  LOEOES CH oN £a00 Aledwon preyoed-EEaar 0 £LO0TI0E/ED SLEEOL
Flegol  oooos'Ls op =1 2300 TJeureTssEasH 9 ELCZIORE0 FLTEOL
ELZE0L  ZOLLEE oy o £000 AtauEpsiE O £LCEODED ELEEOL
CLEEOL  EOCLLEE &N oy £000 uyoruEndey O SLOEORIED ZLEE0.
LLEROL  LEEal'evd oN ap £000 Adeng Buiplang Lied 0 SLOZGEED [

Jequurepy unary (71 515 4 dleg 211K, papaday Ppund  JURLERL O JLa mnh._.. d1eg dRAGQLLITIN

WoagD  WIays feg NIED HoayD

BN Lasy = JuBg A5y = ASyELAUAS) JUNCSDhYy HURg
2563y Koays div
wd g1:55°50
7 abed SID0E ALNMOD OD3MS0O

ELOT ‘PO HA9NI0



YIEUD [ENLEW=L (BNLEWYISSUE! L SIUOLS8S =T WELARY DRBWGITy=Y  H38d0 1810cwo =" 58di] Jdeuiiad

LALZOCEEL 4B,

dmarg

OBZEDL 0o'2ws ap =] gQoo saiEaE, fuUnon cdamen 2 ELIEMERED DEZEQL
BAZEOL OO ELES: ap oy E000 odag sayn o ELOZLE0 SHIEUL
PREE0L  CLA0LLRLE M CH 2000 82208 W30 0 ELO0Zgs0 2EEEIL
LAZEDL  09bEs on CH 2000 sawepasugD O ELOEISAE0 L8251
AEZEL CO'5FES EN EN 2000 TNSSAN 2 ELOZRIENE0 FFZ2IL
SEEZZOL CO0elE CH = 2007 BAOYSAN D ELOZDESD SHELIL
PEEZEIL TULLES (=5 o 20C32 0 [ERYTDL G o EL0Z0ESEC peEsil
ESESIL  g0ilel CH O 2000 AT S| J EL0Z/DESEC ESETOL
CEEE0L SE0ES N ON Lo [ AEMIUL | SIES Y238 EN 3 S.0Z/0eE0 TIEe0L
LREE0L 09'Fes op oM £000 MESER|LEN 0 ELO0ENESED LEEE0L
DEEE0L  Srias O On £a00 PLE BUGEEN 0 ELO0Z/DEEC ozeEsol
BLEZOL Z0°LlES JORUEA RIS EL0Z4CL SR o £ac0 WONZEdEEI AN J SL0L0EED GLEEOL
BiZeOL  SveLEd o oy =300 'af Adeng [BSIEU SEM D SLOTI0RED 8LEE0L
LEEEOL ZO'LLES =] Opy £000 BUENTUOLCH 3 SLCT0ED FRA 1
SLEE0L o bz o Op =000 " dERSUBICY o EICE/0EE0 SLERDS
SLEE0L Q0°CteE o Op 2000 ol e s = - R o ElCZICEE0 LR
FLER0C 0%'¥EE =l ap =000 "o YEIOGEC S o ELCEIGEIED EIEAN I
£4EE0: 1920908 an apg £000 ssal Aempaadg s|lauci o SLOTICTED ELEEC)
ZiTe0l 20 1LES op ap =000 AL po B o4 Bu A eof -l ZLEnCl
LiERCE S5ZELS ] ap £0ac B|DOY2E |EQAST OdEE|n] 2 ELOECEED LAZECL
LEECE ECLLES an ap E0aG N R T o BEQEERED CLZEC
BIEEC EFOSES o aN T0ac FaARTRCLIE]ol D SROSSED EIZECL
SaZeC! LEEELE Qp I e0ac "1 AUBEHUEN] o BEQEMEED FEEE0E
LEZECE  E0LLES ap a ECo0 '8 BpleuS\BISCURY D BLOSA0EIED LEZEOL
982801 E0ULLES ap ap BCO0 WAINEPRAUOEN D ELOZ0EED Q82801
SHZEQL GLSFEEE ap M cooo piEEUR0iE0n O EBLIEMEED S5E2E0L
FEEEOL  09'PEE M M scog W BAZWUOSIER O ELIE0EED PEZEOL
EEZEOL o g an E=h| i ] 1BUEMIESNORSE] 2 ELJ&MERED 2EZ20L
Ze220l L&asls an EN £000 W EUCIEESNAESRY O BLOZF0SS0 ZHZEAL
LETEOL  TOLLES ap =1 s000 W ORULBETSSSEANADT 0 ELOZMISED LEEEIL
QEZEQL LLES =] EN 2000 [El=H=TH A SR L] 2 ELOEMERED QSZEAL
S5ZE0L 0arss N EN 000 TG aUlELaTEEL RO b I 4 R Pt B5ZE2L
252501 0aPres ] =] 2000 ‘AN SRWE ST 2 ELOEAERSD BEEEDL
LSZEDL LZEILE | BN 5062 ‘o AR ErHaT D ELOZMZED ASTEIL
9SZEQL CELFELE =] =i 2007 Ry dsnduwan persiian 0 EL0Z00%5E0 H5TE0L
SS2C0L EDLNES (=00 (=171 2200 S ALEFFOCMYSOT O EL0E0EC SoEeOL
FESESIL SOLLES BN o 2300 A HEEISIYLT 2 ELCE0ED PEESOL
ESEE0L  SETAPER CH ON £a00 g esuagdpe 0 £L0EI0TED ESESOL
TSTE0L ZOLLES ON op 2300 7 dpEsEgysTIpur] 0 ELCZIOEED fd=A 18
LsEenk 05" L0ed =111 =11 000 AcUUn JASWUEEI o ELCEMOEE0 LSEE0%
IR unagy Uoseay =Ty g papoIay  pUnd JUELEN al Nweay adil died JACLUNRY

WD ¥SayD fieg NI qFYD

pLN- Uas - Yueg f5% - ASM|BIGUAS SUNCISY RUEg
lmpsitay X8y D JiY
wd gpa8%E0
§ abieg S32048 ALNNDOD 09D3MS0

ELOT ¥ 4995530



WoEYD IENLEN=  (ENCEW USSR ] SIU0NDES=]  JUSWARS IRjRWOp Yy HISUD JENcWcg =D sedl ) jusieg

LALZEULEL EN

Lie bt ]

QEEEIL  EL0S0°ER =] ON £aC3 Ayoicowaes 0 L0209 JEE20L
SZEEL EOLLES oN oN bt | | W ERle iUl REsIRE g EL0Z/0EED fratsel i 1
BZEEDL SELOLE =] o 2200 g WHEAMEINY a ELCZ0T/ED BEZEEDL
AZEEO0L  ETAbEE ON ON 2200 TEIAcEyEsEnY 0 SLCE0RED AZET0L
SZETOL Q5°Fes ON on £000 g (M 2 ELCEI0TED SZEe0s
SEEROL  LETSELE ON Op 2000 BB\ FUEpADY o SHOEICEE0 SZETOL
7ZEED. \TBALS ON N [l o UL asey o ELOT/CEED vZeet!
SEZEED.  Z0°LLES ar O i la]H T UBSTS S0y DSOS CEED EZEECL
c2Eel! Z0LLES Qap an a0 'H UoaTEuleqoe o ELOZVCERED CESECL
LZEEn L 0% +a% O ap eaac I UAjENG LB o B o Ru il o] | LESEDL
DESED b 155915 an QM coon R e 2 ELIEMERED CETEOL
EBLEEOL 2OALES ap ap BCog dRULEMUGSRIELIEY D BLOE0EED ELEEDL
2hesdk BEELS ap Ehl jatul i} 1 EEIE LS 2 EBRIERLNED o Bstea B
LLEEDL 09'+5s an =] 2000 JueprUEYEURY 2 ELOZEfED LEEEDL
akesal RS =] =] 2000 ] ALUEIMAEEY 2 ELOZIERE0 ALBEIL
FLESOE w505 CN =] £000 Jeleqeguili.ag-alooay O ELOE0ZEC ELegdl
fol st Capes =] =] jta e  HEEHEICLAEY 0 BL0Z0SEC FLEEOL
ELEEIL E0LLES CN o 2300 BUASLYTISDARY a EL0Z/0E/EC ELESOL
TLESIL CE'rEs N oN 2200 LageyfeTILEy 3 SLCT0EED Thesol
LLEEDL O0COE'SEE =0} =1} £a00 1Y LSINT 3 ELCEEED LLETOL
olezol OE'ELES BN =l 2200 SN0 [OEI5 PILEA] b o ¥ s v I
BOEEOL  E¥0AZE On Op 000 JEElI 2 Lad o Shogiceen BIEE0
BOEE0. Z0°LLES =14 =] z0an “of Jadebipeld o ELOTICEIED SIEEC
LOEE0. TELFES =11 ap ©0ac o BB 2 BHOE/TEED LIZECL
L=l BEEOPS an ap ©0ac o7 HEUSyS o ELOZNRERED =l bwolul
SIEECL E¥'0SZS L=l aM £0ac ‘0 EuepuBisdeiyd D BLOBMOEED S0ZEQL
FosEC| ETLves Qp an e o Aepnsdiig g 2 ELOZ0ENED rOSEOL
Z0geol BOALES ap ap oo "o SINCTEUNL R 0 ELIZRERED SOZEQL
Z0EE0L g0 LLES ap M o uli]a] RS EUE s 2 BLIERIsE0 ZOEEal
LOEEDL E0'5ELS an an 2000 uojEIND UosieR 2 ELDZOENED SOREDL
QOEEdlk 00 Ak 5% an =] 2000 FEQYIE niE0ERg 2 ELOZREED ooeedl
BESEZOL  0MRL9S oM =] 2000 aiNod D ELDZAISAEC SEEEIL
BEZEQL  SELAFLE CH oM 2003 il s K o D ) S I R S A BEZEOL
LEEEDL LEEILE Ll ON po | ' WA R0 @ E.0Z/08r50 LBEEOL
EEEIL FA R CN =l 2300 o ERIRARWEY 2 EL0Z0RE0 aegeiL
SEZEDL COCOSE =V} op 2000 SN TSI WNIaYTYd 3 ELCTI0EED SEETOL
PRS0l BELFES N o =000 fem-fepnouefed O SLCEIORED A
BEEROL  0STZiFE ON Op 000 ‘0 Audig g (a8 JeyewEoe o SHEECRED SEEE0.
FAeTAs FO'PERS QM an =000 N UAEILE RN IEE0 o ELOECEEd CEERGL
LEZE0.  Q0'0aLs o I 200 Aupuzsug D eL0gCEED LEEECL

laquny  junoung uosead ajea plos  popolay JUELIED o Wiad  adal a1ea Jaquiny

PR E T =1 L] LR HIayD H28YD

PN Uas - suRg Aey - Aay [BLEUE0) LN JUBY
JapsiBay H9eyD JiY
wd gli8580
oL afizg 53208 ALNNOZ 023aMS0O

SLOE w0 89930



laLEnelEL uEs  dEun

$aeYD [EnUesl (EUep]ejEUR | SIUCESRE ST IWELARY IRBWCINY =Y  HIEDIS1I0Lca=T SRl Tewiag

OLEEOL  OO0'RLLEE an oM 2000 ewdinbal 0 ELOZ0ZE0 QLEEDL
BESEOL  09PSE ap oM 2000 WoEIUEOPMEREE] D ELOZIEED S5eEak
BECEOL  09PES an EN 2000 WRENeTEAEa)l D ELDEILNSE0 BEESIL
LEREOL  yRSEED o =] 2000 R Jaysea) O ELOZ/DEsaC L90Eal
9SEEQL  ZDALEE EN G 062 I AEPEAS O EL0SDEEC ggesol
QEREIL  CO0OLEE papasu ElayoN 538)  ELOZEMD. SS9k op 2007 abelg sEnoesfs O SL0Z0ESEC COET0L
FSEEIL  EZPERTE N ON Lo [ | dnoucy BIpaly 2ENIElS 0 ELCE0WED OEE0L
ESEEOL  LEGELE o ap 2000 W LBSIEMUENING O SLCTIORE0 EETNL
EHESOL  O081E = =1 £a00 Wnaaog gnio eepms 3 ELCL/OTED Zoge0.
L2EE0L  09'FRE o o £200 adEnbzemecns 0 SLCEI0SED LAERD.
09EE0L  O0°CILE ap any 2000 e Uy |4 AueniD avs o SLCRIORED 09sE0;
BSEE0L  09'¥RS o o 2000 EELEMUSES D SIOT/CEED BSER0.
geee0l $9°L0SE op ang 2000 BlRaswses g BelUoD SACEE D SLOEMCEIED GEERC )
LSER0L RE'SELS =1 apy 000 abeweapy sadels O ELOSICRIED L1SEECL
SIER0L  EY05ES ang ang 2000 UaEElAS D SLOZIORED SEER0L
SSEEClL E2LNES op ap £03E acpsugeads 00 BLOZOLIED SSEE0L
PSEECL  DErad an an =OIC BIRVES\BANGE . O ELOTAOEMED FESEOL
SSEE0L OOEYE an an £000 ATV ysud BuEiss D RLOEI0EED SLEE0L
ZEEEOL  LIERIS a a BEOD DIRERIBPRNILE D gLIZ0EED Z5g80l
LEEEOL L9095 an any ECOG udEorAEEEaWS 0 §LOZ08Re0 LREEDL
DEESOL  09'FEE ap an Coono BEUERMLBWE D BLISNESD O5TEQL
BESOL  09bEE apy am 2000 W AURPJRILNS D ELDZA0SE0 aregal
EFEEQL  DO'DOES I EN £0002 pabiny Ens 9 BLDE08E0 BFEE0L
LFEEQL  EOALER o EN £002 EljahErMERrausans 3 ELDEDEE0 L¥EEDL
AYEEOL  EEAVES &y Ch 2007 | BUUECMUBILELS D ELD&SE0 AFEEIL
SFEEDL LETOES CN N gaca ussngiapap-uess 0 BLOZI0SGE0 SFEE0L
FFEEDL  CEFES N =l ] E3CD Sjaleydnaualag . 3 ELOZ0SEC FPFEEOL
EFESDL  EDCLLEE G ON b [ W UIBYSNESAURS O ELOS0TIED ERESOL
TFESOL  09'FRS N o Lo [ Wallaprtufiloweas ] gl0Z/08ED [ 831
MFEEZOL  E0LPEE = op £a00 WAOPCaNEWNYAS O ELCTI0TED LrEel.
OvEEOL  A0TLOYVE o op 2000 MeRsds oodas. O ELCEIORED OvEen:
BSEE0L EZF5edE ON o £000 o Addng ssiny ooyag D SLOTIGEIED BEERC .
9TET0L BEESE o an £000 T EReYns . D ELOEIEED SEET0L
LEEE0L ZOTLIES of O 2000 o uwggeddiyas. O SLROEICEED LEEECE
SEERE0L  EOLIES arg ang 2000 " MME0:A3S D ELOTCLIED STEE0L
GTER0.  ELCEE ang ap 000 S UNONPRICILES D ELOZACLIED SESECL
FREERL L&aaLs o any £nac UALENEISEG-ELES O gLOZMOSED FEEECL
£ECECL  OL'EliE ap ap 2020 | seonEy ejegeiienes. O £LOZA0SED SETEOL
ZEEECIL ne'kas Op o £Coc ‘NiBUErUESICLSES. O BLOSN0EED ZEEE0L
LEEECL  BOLLES any ap ECon TEpLAEES D ELIZ0LED LEZEDL

JOqung  punowy UOSTaY ajea pios,  papaled pung  JUELE o) piay adAL EE] JaguIny

HIEYD  Wosyg feg yasyg HIMD

PN Uas) = YURg Aay - AT |EISUSS) LN HUBY
uﬂuwmm.wm H3AUD 4
wd 2150180

vLafeg 53208 ALNAOD ODIAMSO SLOZ PO 48Qaa0



YOEUD BN (EUepISISUET] SIUCASa|Z T USLAE DEISICIFaY IS IS LT sedi L WELind

panss|  EECECL

LabEmoles e dmpmy

BELEOL  (S2RLLE) wopEyD uswsssday UsRo ELOZELE SEA an $Z00 ‘NHEnodiswad O ELOEEES0 Ea. ek
FO0FEQL  BE'SES ap ap 000 pamssciooy BBey O BLOZMSRE0 2OFEDL
L0PEQL  LE'SELE aN | ja{ul i [ o Apesagiiunc) D ELOZAOLSD L0REQL
SOVEDL  09PEE am an £oao LREqIEgEUENND), O ELIZ0SE0 A0l
S0FEQL  EOVLLEER an G 000 BUUOMUCEIA0N, O ELOZ0E80 SOFEaL
FOvEaL  09'PES M oy £000 WELEIQRION D ELDZEED PORETL
wOFEal  EOALES = CH alile] aPIgpoop, D ELOZIEE0 SOFEIL
ZOPEQL  EO°LLES oN CN 2000 W ERIPUES\RUEPSONY O ELDZNISAED ZOrEal
LOFEDL  EOALES ey CH 2000 WLYEMWEEIRY D ELDZISED LCFEDL
JCPEQL CRRES Cn G 2000 TATIENE RN, D ELOZMISSE ACEEDL
SEEEIL  EDLLED £y op £0CT FIRIGMWEDDN, 0 ELOZ0%E0 SEEEIL
BEEEDL  ZOLIER =] =0} folawe Neosaiddaun, D ELOZDESSE BEEETL
LEEEOL  LE'SELE GH op 2000 TERSEEIE D EL0Z0%ED AEEEIL
HEEEDL  0TFES = = 2003 W EDYegEL, 0 BLO0Z0EED BEEEOL
SEEEOL  EELFED = o 2000 OAEPNESAAEEY, D SL0E0TE0 SEETOL
FEEEOL LEEALE [ o £J00 WeElEpuaes, 3 EL0EN0SE0 rEEE0L
EEEEOL  09FES e oy £200 WEMUADWaWEN, D ELOZIOESC 2EEEOL
TEESOL  ZEERL'PS = oN £200 FOUSG [RIMEN SEEN 0 ELCEODG0 TEEEO0L
lEESO0L 08 xRS o ON £300 TH EEREDRERY, 0 ELCZI0TIED LEEE0L
NEEE0L 90°iosh op oN £a00 AnWoD PEWEEY, 0 SLCRI0ED NEEE0:
AEEEO0L  OEELL'ES = oK 2000 DUl eD UoEEW A D SLCEOEED BREDO.
gerenl  00SES =1 o 2000 SMURE A B0RIN D SICEIDTIED 22ER0.
LREROL  EO0°LLES op ap £000 AgagvmEnes, o CLCTIOEGD AREROL
SREE0L  ZO'LLEE =i | oN coon PHONYSMIYEHIESNYA o SICEI0RED SeER0.
SREEOL  LZ'EALE op an £000 0 BJUEXCYVAINOUES, D SLOGI0TED SREREL
FEEROL  ZOLLZS oy any 000 UUG-ESMUDCIUEA D ELOEICEED FREDCL
SeEe0s  08'EeEE oN op £0an HELIMSHIOT A3TA 2 SLOBICEIED SRERCL
ZeEtll  O0TEEFS apy any £000 AN 0 SRED0SEY § PORVCAUSN D SLOZICENED ZRETCL
LesEqr  E'RLE o ap boti el Fnlag [Flleg palLn o ®0EGEED l2Eec!
OBEEQL  OL'LLZ§ ap ap falila 1o NOLYEOAH0D LSEAING D SHOECEED CESECT
BLERCL IHFEE an ap 2030 woeegegnil D SLOZCRED ELERCL
SLEECE  ECLLES any an ona0 suEEChEpaa ] D CLOTICDIED SLEECL
LIZRCL 0TFEE ap an o0 WMEDENATL D CLOTNCSIED LIEECL
SLERCL Jg'eres =l apy T0a0 BUGEBILAMLEC] [[axte]l D SROECEED SLEE0L
GLSECL  BOALES an apy £OIG e BPUBSEEINOL D ELOZAORED SLEEDL
FASECL  EEO0E ap apy 000 aTsEEpEn Edal D SLOZOEED FLZEOL
SLERDL LEank 1s ap ap 20ac TeadosUyeRal D ELOZORIED SLEE01
CLEBCL EEELLPS =l ap BCac BjgeEl JawEng sall D BLOZ0EED ZLEEOL
LIEECL  SER0LE an ap 00 S5@id LBWSIOOS AWl O TLOZV0EED LASECL

Jaglunp  puhody UOSTaM d41e0q g, papadey  pund  JUBLER EYRTTER LT HEQ JAcUr

WaEyo  yoayg feg EREL ] yaayg

BN Lasy = B ueq ___"m_._v__ = ._mux_m..m_...m_ﬂ uneeeng yuag
raasifen XI8UD diV
wd §L188i50
zL afied SA208 ALNNOD CDEMS0

CLOT w0 4359530



ISVETOUEL uEn  drpan

FOALD IECUSNEY  ECUS AU | AUSISaE =T uawdly pRIEWSiny=y woEaLs JErdwag=n sadd) uandiey

S0 L9 E00'RS 1ap
(54 BRE"FS) IR0 plog
DFEFETLE'RS [Bo] puelg pUng Uas - YURE Aoy - Aan|eauag GUNoady JUBE Jof [Rons
JAqWiny - Junowy uaseay aeg Plof,  Papoaay PUNd  JURLIEAL al puay  adAL e Jagunpy
EETIES S = fargd A3943 Y32y

PUrS UEE - YUBE ATy - ABHIBIBUES) JINaITY YUBE
Jmsiay ¥3auD 4y
wd gLi5gi80

gL afeg S33049 ALNMNOD 0D3MS0 CLOZ ‘p04390ia0



HIBUD [2RUEN = (ENUERUSISUE T SU0DsE=]  WeWAES PRBWONY Y YZayD andwes=g adi] (UBWAES

LELEDAVEL Ba SRl

NIEJ N3 L0k L CIO0E LS oM EN FOCD aselys) LeEIC 2 T 23 BLOLESE0 NIBdNILORE
WD IL0rE ConoEs oM N ey o] asey] vebow J T 3 ELOTLZS0 wNOdyliChl
Fudwlvdiore  02'00E% o EN |+l ssEUIUBRICR T 3 BLOZLEED  JuwOWlioel
HNYIRIL0RL 0056l LE oy =] e[ aseyn uebucyy 4 T 3 ELOZALZS0 HNYEWILCRL
FTEINLORL 00058 M [ 00 ey VBEICK o T 3 SLOZMERED  J0EINWICRE
LI A0RL ST IRt oM EH 00 aseyq vefucy 4 T 3 ELOZALENED WMLIWLCEL
ZELEIE  AF'S60'SFS oy oN FaCd fuedwas) BOMENSU| B DOH 0 ELOZELASE ZElele
LELELE  EE'Pe0'LE 2 EM 00D Fung sdileansy) Slecg =yl 2 £L0ZALEC LELELE
0o A 25 52LE =i L 00 T AHEPDERGEMU ] JERELLIANG 2 EloZsalsso AELELE
FLITIE SEOAFELS o oM ol CoWwcd D elodEbist JELELE
BELELE 2500LE =] CN m0a Euayg &panag chewsg 0 ELOZaLfsl BCIELE
LEIELE CELO8'es CH CH FaCa Flimla A Slayaea ] SAN 2 BLOZmLssc LELZLE
aglgle SERLE DT CN N 003 UEIRIENG) 2 ELOZALrEC ACLELE
ST COGEl EH EN 00 WHEAND O ELOEELSEC SELELE
FONTAI0EL COSLL'LE CM =) a0 aseys Lefcp d T 23 gLoZielst NNy AsctkL
WALMNR0RE  C2°0sS L BN ey aseyd ueBiop 4 T 3 ELOELSD  WALINNICEL
dIAHACkL 0SS oM G F000 ey ueliop J4 P 3 sLOEELED HINMHACTL
AMISSdICkL CI5LE CN CH FCD aseyq wefuop 2T 3 ELOZ/ELSEC ANISZdAckL
HNIde 0T BLBEE'ES CHN =l w07 aseyg) vefucg d 3 ELOZELSD  HNIJJOECkL
ANICEL LLAZ8'EES [s5) [=17) =0 AN [BIUAD |0 usg AR 3 ELOZELSE0 ANSCEL
D HONICRL  COSLLE EM N 760 asEyd UBRIOW 4T 3 ELOEELABC DWWHONIORL
LAMEcrL L 0oLy C CN FICa g3y VB g T =23 ELOLELISE LANACEL
[IWEcELE  COAFE'ELS N EN 70 AdBuegauRg Ae 9 RLOZELEE [l o ke of B
AQDINNECEE CELLyE CH CH 00 aseyg UBEICW d T 3 ELOZELIEC DDIMIEcE L
AITsaradeL CO'005% =] CN | asRU LREUSW 2T 3 ELoZilfsd AsnackL
ITAa142CFE Co00eE o N 60 SR LBRIOW o T 3 ELOZELEC [REMIEE 848
w2430k SREELZES BN BN Fa0a AN 1ENUagD ja wuEg fey d ELOZELSSC woIdackL
HFLOT490kL  SETOEE'ELE oN CH eyl AN [BRUAZ A YuRE A8 3 BLOTELED Logdactkl
NOISH3IA0EL COLEa'LE CH CH 00D SWASAS IUSWRAILAY (2307 F SAN 3 ELOZELSSC MWOSEIECrL
HdWSHIAOkL  SZEEZE TN N FOCT Swasis WEREY [FST P SAN T LLODELED  HuvSHIscEL
EErEE AR SEALES CH i Faca FUAEAG ALY |2IT] T SAN a3 ELOZELSSC AFEIFACEL
SEHI0rE  LEE0EE T oM 7007 TLAEAE ARILEY 2307 R SAN D SLOZELED SSHIICEL
bEUIF0rL  FRTISSE o o F00 PSS IWBLRIEY 225 R AN D ELOZELED PEEIACTL
LINCaaoel CO'008°CE [=h] CH F0CD aseyq weBuow 4T 2  ELOZ/ELSEC LIM2EactL
NISdWI20FE  CO00E'LE £ CH F00 SRy UBEloR LT F ELOEELED  NIBJWIFceL
YNDd¥Ia0rL CO00EE i) CHN A0 aseyq uebucw 4 T 3 ELOZELED  wNodwIlackl
EEL e bal=l) 00 00Es oM Eh | 7000 asey] velicw d 7 3 BLOZELSE 2dEwWdwlacrl
HMYEYI90kL COGLLLE ap =] e aseyq ueblow ‘4 T 3 ELOZELS0 WMNYEwIactkL
ATHINFE0F L 007355 M BN (] aseyq uetucp 'd T 3 ELOZELSE  FoEINwactkL
YhLIwE0RL  Er9s el an EN Fo00 aseyf uelicw dT 3 ELOZELED WRLIWECEL

JAQUWNN  JUnoy uaseay e piop  papoaay JUELIEAY o] juay  adhl @|qeq FEGTITITY

¥oaya  yaayn fed yaays EEG I

Pufd WL - HuEE fas - ABMWIRL IUNCSSy sueg
sasiBa JaaUDn i
wd gLIEgE0
L afieg £3208 ALNNOJ 093IMSO EL0Z v 129030



YE2UD |2nue =y

(ENUEL JEYSUE . SiUOLD3|T=]  JUSIWAES BSIEWOETY =Yy NISUD Jancwc = ssdd] juswied

LAUECOLEL e dEIEDY

BILOC'EESS 1aN
noo% IR0, PloA
K o= |Ejal pueis PUNd wFL - jueg Aay - ASMYRL IUNoIy qURE Jo| [RIRONS
Prigle  D0ES EH On ]V NS, D BLOZDESE FrLZIE
ErlEglE  CELFS = = bl JeqEEss) O AEM PRRUN O SLOEIDSIEC EFLZLE
Z¥IEIE  ZSEZLE =] = sl W IEFRESET ] UERWANE D SLO0E0SED EFLELE
IrLELE 9598’y CH = #OCT o] 'uB|d dneeg pakEEd D ELOZIDEAEC IrLZLe
aFLELE  CEwiEd oM = b [ CoWod D £.0%0850 oriele
BELZLE  FEEOLE o o #0000 puavg furog ofewsg 00 £L0ZM0TSEC BELTLE
BElZLE  ZVFLELS o BN #a00 Guunoocy LASAM 0 £L0ZI0%ER BEldbe
LELZLE 05TL04'es =] op #a00 uBlWELEY LSYSEA] SAN D SL0E/0E/E0 LELELE
gzigle  oo'oes o o o] dH03 SF2AHISINTT FAKDIH D ELCRI0ES0 SELZLE
SCLELE  SRElE'Es o op #a00 uBipsers 3 ELOS0RED i e B
PELEIE  BOTLSE'LE o = 0D SFEHCASEULEYS SLINYNLSINEID D SICZ0ESE0 el A B
ESLZIE  LETEES =1 oy #a00 AoEEy MBgoa] S320H 3 £L0S0usED ELELE
WRENYALOPL  O0SLL'LS o on 200 BERYD UBGRION ‘T 3 ELCEMEED  WNONYALOF.
WALINNLDWL  OD0SS ON op oo EERYSUBEION AT J ELCBUEE0  WALINMLOZL
WIAIMLORL 0058 o op 300 FEEYDUERON JT  F  EICTME/ED WAL L0,
ANISAd 0L 00545 op ap ¥aoo SFEUQUEAION 'd T 3 SICEMEED  ANISddL07.
MIShAsOlorL O0'ESS oN oN Faoo Jglag BUsseond SIS Yes MEN 3 SLCENMEED NOSMSOL0T.
HMNIdLSD0PL P09 L'ES oN O ] EERYD UERION ‘J T 3 EICEMEED  HNIdSGL0E.
ANLOPL  OD'EES'IZE = =10 Fooo AN lEUED JEqueg fay 3 SLCEMEED ANLO7
DTHONLORL 005l op o #000 eveyo UEflof g T 3 CICEMTED  DUCHONLDT.
BIE (UL TR ol PR &N oN Faon eERYD UELOW o T F ELCELZED LRz,
TNl Y SESORE o op 000 AN BUBDIEYUEE A3y T SLCTNEED [[sEl R
TOAMITL0PL OELLEE oN o 000 FERYD UBIION o T 3 SLOEMEED  TOONITLORL
ATSaL0FL. O0'SESE opy aN 000 sEEqD URfIOp 'd T 3 SICEMLEED SsaioE
MEQIdi0rL  O0G0FS op o 000 esEYDUEROW T 3 SLOEMAEGD [REIn(EFleES
WOLL0FL  A0ELZA9% oy =1 OO0 AN (ESUED O HUEE A8 3 BLOSNEED WOl 0
WYLOIJL000  LEE0E'SLE N o 000 AN [BIIED ;O URE f3% 3 SLOEMZED  WWl03<LL07.
MNOISHIL0xL a0Ees'.s oN aN e/l SRS uEWAIEY B0 B EAN 3 SLOEMEED  NOTSHILOFL
WowsyI Lozl Zces op ap 000 BWSAS JUAWAINaY B0 B SAN 3 SLOELEED  WuwsSH=Li0rl
gEdIL0rL BLLAZS oN op 000 BWSAG JUBLAIEY B0 B SAN 3 SHOELEED SEHZLITL
SEHIlozl  ELLESE o oM 000 SWRHSAS LaWaNaY BIC) B SAN I CLOE/LTIED 5894=L07L
FEHIL0PL  ZTFDSS o ap 000 BlUZSAg JUAWANEY B30 SAN 3 SLORNLTED FoH=L07
LiNp3Lor. 00°009'ES o ap OO0 aseug ueflol ot F  SLOZAEED LINDZL07L
JaOUIRR  JUNGEL LIS d41eg pags popodsy  pund JURLEn af yway adi] a1Bg daguing
4wy HEyD feg 428D HIAYD
OUA P L = juag Aa = AAYpgL Jdnanmy jues
1mpsiiay YIeyd 4y
wd gLIEEi50
7 afizgd S32049 ALNNOD OD3dMS0 £10Z*#0 J900100



JSUETDLEL vEn dEIEIA

UBENUEW URISUE! ] JUAIEE=T (UEWAED FaBWaNysy 428y Jaindwasi=1isadd ] tuswiey

Y2YT |BNE =1
CNZINIA F1IS1D A6 el
AEL HSAYgauBLEN, A Pog
TROEICEIGD PLB 20T/ L QUSE Leaviad & BlEp 323y D
Il Jneey Hueg
TUIND LoRIaes
FERPY IS 1AM
598 vs) [=1EL PIoA,
65 L00'ERC'ES I}0) puBIg
ABQUINN - JUnakey ucseay ARy Plof  papoady  pund  JUELIen af yway  adhj aleq Jaguny
B HIAYD feg HIALD NIy
DU L - queg A2 = AEyEl Junonoy jueg
imsiBay yaeyg Iy
we SLIESE0
£L02 "0 1306300

$3204 ALNNOD 023MSO

¢abeg



&Cﬂr

306’55

JAMI:E HUBER, Direclor of Special Education Fhone 315-063-4315
Fax 315-063-4391
R Jjhubsrifjoswagohoces.orn
MEMO
T AMICHAEL SHEIERD
FROM; VICKIE ROWE

SUBJECT:  STUDENT CLUR ACCOUNT REPORT
DATE: QCTOBRER <, 2013

Ateached please find the May, June, July and Auvgust Student Club Account Reports for the Doard of
Lducation Meeting in Octobet.

If you have any gquestions please let me know,

Mrachmeint

OSWEGO COUNTY BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
179 Counly Route G4, Mexico, New York 13114
Christopher J. Todd, District Suparintendent/Execulive Officer



Oswego County BOCES

Student Club/Class Accounts Report May 1, 2013 through May 31, 2013

51112013 613112013

Clubl/Class Account Beginning Deposits Withdrawals Ending
Balance Balance |
Adult Health Occupations | $ 651.34 $0.00 $0.00 $651.34
Auto Body $  1,310.75 $0.00 $750.89 $6559.86
Computer Exploration 3 364.52 $0.00 $0.00 $364.52
Cosmetology $ 209,93 $0.00 $0.00 $209.93
Deaf Education $  2,356.24 $0.00 $975.53|  $1,380.71
Digital Media Class $ - $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Law Enforcement #873 $ 505.17 $0.00 $0.00 $505.17
Manufacturing Plus $ 245028 $0.00 $100.00 $2,359.28
Retailing | $ 11,071.33 $3,614.88 $5,925.33|  $8,760.88
Signature Club $ 3,776.64 $0.00 $0.00 $3,776.64
Skills USA VICA $ 1,997.36 $209.00 $300.00 $1,906.36
Special Ed. $ - $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
The Star Ceramics Club | $ 472 .52 $0.00 $67.64 $404.88
S.T.E.R.N, 3 62.00 $0.00 $0.00 $62.00
Vocational Training Prog | $  1,487.44 $0.00 $0.00 $1,487.44
TOTAL: $26,724.52 $3,823.88 $8,119.39]  $22,429.01




Oswego County BOCES
Student Club/Class Accounts Report June 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013

6/1/2013 6/30/2013

Club/Class Account Beainning Deposits Withdrawals Endingg

Balance Balance
Adult Health Occupations | $ 651,34 $95.00 $300.00 $446.34
Auto Body b 550.86 $0.00 $144.72 $415.14
Computer Exploration $ 364.52 $0.00 $0.00 $364.52
Cosmetology b 209.93 $0.00 $110,22 $99.71
Deaf Education $  1,380.71 $63.00 $841.81 $601.90
Digital Media Class $ - $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Law Enforcement #873 $ 505.17 $0.00 $0.00 $505.17
Manufacturing Plus $ 2,359.28 $621.00 $0.00 $2,980.28
Retailing | $  8,760.88 $5,146.59 $1,663.85| $12,243.82
Signature Club $ 3,776.64 $0.00 $376.00 $3,400.64
Skills USA VICA $ 1,906.38 $0.00 $115.62 $1,790.74
Special Ed. $ - $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
The Star Ceramics Club | $ 404.88 $0.00 $128.80 $276.08
S.T.E.R.N. b 62.00 $0.00 $20.00 $42.00
Vocational Training Prog | $  1,487.44 $0.00 $200.00 $1,287.44
TOTAL: $22,429.01 $5,925.68 $3,900.82 $24,453.78




Oswego County BOCES

Student Club/Class Accounts Report July 1, 2013 through July 31, 2013

7172013

71312013

ClubiClass Account Beginning Deposlis Withdrawals Ending

Balance Balange

Adult Health Occupations | $ 446.34 $0.00 $117.61 $328.73
Auto Body 3 415.14 $0.00 $0.00 $415.14
Computer Exploration 3 364.52 $0.00 $0.00 $364.52
Cosmetology $ 99.71 $0.00 $0.00 $90.71
Deaf Education $ 601.90 $0.00 $0.00 $601.20
Law Enforcement #873 5 505.17 $0.00 $0.00 $505,17
Manufacturing Plus $  2,980.28 $0.00 $0.00 $2,880.28
Retailing | $ 12,243.82 $2.07 $472.23 $11,773.66
Signature Club $ 3,400.64 $0.00 $0.00 $3,400.64
Skills USA VICA $ 1,790.74 $0.00 $0.00 $1,790.74
The Star Ceramics Club $ 276.08 $0.00 $0.00 $276.08
S.T.E.R.N. $ 42.00 $0.00 $0.00 $42.00
Vocational Tralning Prog | $  1,287.44 $0.00 $0.00 $1,287 .44
TOTAL: $24,453.78 $2.07 $589.84|  $23,866.01




Oswego County BOCES
Student Club/Class Accounts Report August 1, 2013 through August 31, 2013

anr2ea

813112013

ClublClass Account Beginning Doposits Withdrawals Ending

Balance Balance
Adult Health Occupations | $ 328.73 $0.00 $0.00 $328.73
Auto Body $  415.14 $0.00 $0.00 $415.14
Computer Exploration $ 364.52 $0.00 $0.00 $364.52
Cosmetology $ 99.71 $0.00 $0.00 $99.71
Deaf Education $ 601.90 $0.00 $0.00 $601.90
Law Enforcement #873 $ 505.17 $0.00 $0.00 $505.17
Manufacturing Plus $ 2,980.28 $0.00 $0.00 $2.980.28
Retailing | $ 11,773.66 $2.03 $0.00] $11,775.69
Sighature Club $  3,400.64 $0.00 $0.00 $3,4{}{J;ﬁ4
Skills USA VICA $  1,790.74 $0.00 $0.00 $1,790.74
The Star Ceramics Club | $ 276.08 $0.00 $0.00 $276.08
S.T.ER.N. $ 42.00 $0.00 $0.00 $42.00
Vocational Training Prog | $ 1,287.44 $0.00 $0.00 $1,287 .44
TOTAL: $23,866.01 $2.03 $0.00 $23,868.04




KELLY R. WOOD, Treasurer Phone 315-963-4203
Fax 315-063-8477
lwood@oswagoboces.org

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: MICHAEL SHEPERD

FROM: KELLY R. WOOD, TREASURER

SUBJECT: FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
DATE: 10/7/2013

cC GISELE BENIGNO

¥ Included in this packet please find, August 31, 2013 the following accounts:
» General Checking — The main checking account for Oswego County BOCES.

o General Money Markets — Money Markets where all ACH deposits are made to and transfer out
to other accounts. Money is transferred into the account to earn interest,

o General Money Market Reserve Account - Money Market for Retirement Contribution, Employee
Benefit, and Liability Reserve.,

¢ General Unemployment — Checking account to pay all unemployment taxes.

¢ Federal Checking — Checking account for Adult Education, Grants, Preschool, Special Ed-
Summer School.

+ Trust & Agency Checklng — Checking account for employee's payroll deductions.
* Trust & Agency Health Benefits — Checklng account for employee’s health benefits.

= Trust & Agency Health Money Market — The health insurance reserve for active and retired
employees. Money Is transferred into the account to earn interest,

¢ Trust & Agency Payroll — Checking account for the payment of the net payroll.

e Capltal - Checking account for all our capital projects.

o Capital Money Market — Money is transferred into the account to earn interest,

¢ QCTC Excess Fund — Oswego County Teacher Center excess savings account,

= The Accounts Recelvable Balance reflects all account balances as of September 30, 2013,
» Please contact me If you have any questions,

OsSWEGO COUNTY BOARD OF COOPERATIVE ERUCATIONAL SERVICES
179 County Route 64, Mexico, New Yark 13114
Christopher J. Todd, District Superintendent/Executive Officer



VT EWEIML

QOOM ™ LT
pagns Agnadio
qw.mu =
L mewer &
“EEETE § ST W
R 5 SHIRARDHT: LORENES, IEY
LR ESER AR BUD IR ZAFIGL FT AL
PG 5 ERNIpApL SRS CERLEL L pung |ERpE
EvaE= UEETY FRL P
ey
.un.rﬂuﬂ_.w L m
EIRET RS
[ =ofa| =3k
TIOEEER Jawitenr % gl eer ARies wreESRITY  f RURLE TR WAL
SLEETEL chozEs avleomn $ R oflawsg CETESETST & SRRl 1ecuss BYEUEENG
ChOTTEE  CEERLL 4 inguides Eatmy EoGEEeeT 4 PN (BRI
T (R S [AE=5 T T SRR BRI EU PG T 3 PG L5, SR AEN T St

Fogl= e TAVER wbasase Faatdicg o [ - LEb i Ll eEl-

AL
T RETE FIEREEAT MSTORDT  TISEEOT'T

FFE=aE e R Tt T I

FFURLY U Sy
o el ) SUELL
IR VEREE' TOMESHEE CESADITT e TSLETRST-  BTHETSE Fag iy W G e o T LRI LS
grSIEEesE W GEC0'nsT LSS ESTHEY  EIHI FTRUES  GYRIERRST O DERMUTES TNEEEEL BE'ChE FEER FIREETSTT MR 1R
STESETISHT 0 HITHE'S ECTERENT  SETET SEELSGAYT ITOES  BYMASTEE QEWUAE ST AT SEEERT bOORETIE'E  DTLA'ERS muzeg Bauuisag
; L _ﬁwmﬁ.uh.a E_E...__"m.u__m__,_m”_ﬁﬂ E._.B_mmr-nlm...nﬂ E nwmu_.u_m_!._ E#E_Bjﬂ ﬁ _"mm.__un_u... B._“nunu_ww“:_._ i.m_“mﬁ.._mmxz x_.ﬂ_"wwmq_.n”_wr: LMB._“..&M.NE E"ﬂuunh.m_u
i w ik A N T o L) W ki LT R . 1T N 21 ] W N e [+



Omrega Cour

BOCES

GISELE BENIGNO, Coordinator of Business Administration, PR & Special Projecis Phone 315-063-4241
Fax 315-063-8477
ghenfgno@oswegohoces.oryg

MEMORANDUM

TO: Michacl Sheperd
Assistant Superintendent for Administrative Services

FROM: Giséle Benigno
Coordinator of Business Administration, PR & Speeial Projects

RE: Budget Status Report & Budget Transfers Greater than 350K

DATE:  September 4, 2013

Fnclosed is the Budget Status Report as of September 30, 2013,

The Oswego BOCES 2013-2014 initial budget is $42,437,375. The report indicates
adjustments totaling $1,152,340 resulting in a current budget for 2013-2014 of
$43,589,715,

There were no budget {ransfers greater than $50,000 between August 1, 2013 and August
31,2013,



lgvEnorel e desuy

IO0S'E L A0S ZL Qoo oog DIMDEEL oo Q00T EL SEOOE WoOrLeEInisl punag [EndsoH SEY
0rEE'E Q0 ¥SE'E alui} 00°8rE 00005 QoD OO°00s'E umES ARioida G2y
I0D00"E 20°000'2 000 oG Q0'o0'E Qoo Coong'z SET0E S1o-unELsy) puneg [Epdsol »Zy
0o 0000k oo poro Q000 oo ooo0e $300E LS uohongs) punag [epdscx €2
100Gl ooroaL's ooo ) Oz aoodEs aoo Lo aoe's MOLLYONIE TR LN IWNNOEIANS BEr
LLL'EEL [ =F - cd SFObL'LLL BPOCE'LL FELISLERS FEPIZE OOEEr 128 PREYLENTE T ANIWHDIMNG AHC Y03 2i
IELLLOR Z¥ELZ'Dee LT LBE'R9E LE'GEE'RS O0°E6E"LLE L SPE"L OFBPESLE L NOILY2NaT 2ILSHISTY - S1HY SNINLOLIE3d 5ir
PR B 8L ELEFEL- EEE05LL LELCE'R LY LO'EEE'LLE G OUEER"LLE WO LLFINAS TeEanED - TO0HDE U3WNNE v
Foaee b gsrAs R ZEREPONE SERAZ0E LUESE'SLE OESE'GLE oo NOLLYONTE SALLYNEZLTY HOH2S S130IN 0Ly
0°DO0°LE Q0RO L2 oo iloE 00000’ LE oo Q0000 L2 SIaT Ja O ~UBpLOIES-PT UAlY BOY
3050591 GLE0SaL AUESES 81548 O0'BEL'9E Qo 00'peL'SE SINES0NEG Q3INTTYL AN 031419 30+
WELLDS GEEL0'EY TR ISERES 0E 'S0 0 iBs'eag QU4EE' L oOroa L e AJBpUCCES-UOREINET BMBWE]Y 20k
26951 ZoZRe'saL LOZL0'EE (A S 08SZr' e ferine'se DUrgLELse IUcA Of - WOREDINRET SI8A00 BEE
STILEERE BT SCE'ESD ZE'Z99'E29 Z1'PEE'AS £EZLE'YES €20 OUZLe'vEE APHINLL HIHLD (O34 20N 258
WEEFEEL O SEFEEL ooa o0a noser'sEl KIEE'EEL oera MWOILYNIOE00D NOLLONELEN] ¥ NN MH0D 228
I HPE'03 2L LLEDS OOEsL'S 23'GEG 0O wEE'SY 0 (1 crdl=e] LS\ HTHL D30 - DAS LYY A24-YDI0MYH LEE
ILTEEY TLE6E'Y oo LTL KIDOL'S oo 00a00s WHIHL TRSAHS - 508 T3 13 034470 0N 082
LSFEaF SLGEE O 2EZL2E] PEEIE R COFETRIL oo oo PEERaL SNSLLYTEE DNEnd - LNYHINIL LEE
JO0a0°SL Q0 H0°EL 0o 0o 00000EL oo 00 000'sd D0 (BN STaUsng |90URS PRUBUS Q02
LGRE G- LIGREal BEEEESL LESLEE oog oo 0w NOILY2INOE TYDISAHd 908
IVZOLELL BLagL'SLL CELIY'A0T FIcR=lergeth 00 LEE' LTS aoo a0’ LE6'LEE 15l IHL HOF34S - LNYEENLLI 502
LEERDALE FLESE'ELE OEeEr' kD' L S LEE'ROL Qo-s0e'eas’t A00sE Q0ES0°EEE"L O DOMIEYEH - LNEENLL §08
IR0 LLL AUBLETLLL LB L9E [ 9LE'IE 02w2L'vay 0e'5e Q0 BEa vEr A ATTRTISIA © LNYEENLL 202
J'008"2 00005 L oea Lo 00335 L oo QO00S"L STO09 W00 padedi Ansa, 00
15°250°408' 2L¥L0E09') GLAZ0'EES"L LOLLTLRL DOESE LEY'E 0ao 00°BST'18¥'E 12155y HEHOVAL Ll Uajeanps euasdacns £22
PEFOLSEIL L FOEE0GEL'L SFSLL'EGE AERILELL BFLLE LLLE e o 00°0L8'9E0'2 wswieal| Aeq UOGEINS |BUCHRNE LLE
20'000's L Q00 EL a0 Qaoa [EARR=3E coa 00 0c0'sE 00 -Juondo P jBUcHdanE LLE
FPRELYS P RE LG 0070 85718801 LO°000'SS oo roon'ss oo e Ld0aLE
AL 606 S AL°E98"9F TE RS L 0400908 DO'G0E ZEE (i) FIE0E 2EE SoAHS HHIL INLISHNW OO SDEN0SEY 602
19°LLE SRR STERIGE £ LEP'EEST TLE'ELE COELE0EL'E 00 LEE'S L COZELFILE kil UoRESNTE |2udagdacis 02
0 000sE aoonoaE oo oo [KaRviairyard oo '0on'az L SUgElS 902
LZLERELL EEOES'ELE LERSE'ELL LOLEEEL OO E0v SFE 00raan° 00 Z0F' tFE Li g uogesnps [euandansa S0z
B #E9'28 rlrhLEe GHFEvLBET (K=l =ra=agtid 01 E'PeE 08 Lest 00285268 ¥ ZLUCIEINRS [BUARdaceg €02
LEOrL'S0L AEBGE'S0L ST G OZE FLL856E OO ELD'GLF 00000°L OoELL'S LY Apmg yiop, ABQ 7L LILIEZL 202
FEFPE LOE BEF L2 L0E DYEOE'ELE ELLDOLS 2TeaL'ELR 2CE08'Sl 00'g9s'ssE LihZL uoiesnps  euondessd L0Z
HIBE'SLL 00 LEE'SLL ooa DOBOLLL 0000 26 L Qo' O0°a0s EE L S0 MDD 2L Buyels poZ
LELELLES'L LEEEDFES'L BLOSE' T Y S¥PEE'COS rLPLE LIS FLEEE DL Q0aLz'nse’s WOILY0Na3 TeDINHIAL F 933570 LDk
0'LEFSEL Q0 DEF e Qo oero0s 0005655 L ao0o QO JSE'SS L SLOIrOEd TELEws 200
BRGSO B TELBEL LE'ERE'09L°L BLALG'IEL BYLEZ'¥H08 B LEEDE 0069 ER0"D MNOILYELSININGY L0
Joumeg aauejeg ELtpuelsing salny puadxy jebpng syusgsnipy .bmunm ueduasag unoasy Wwhpng
BGRIEAY PRLSQINIUIUL] SETUBIGUINSUS SEO-C)-IRa A FTTETR L) R
NN TYHanNED ¥ puUng
YLOZ <Eaj [BEI=l]
ELOZ/OS/ED -4 5y Woday smEsjeabpng
twel feEESis0
| 9Beg 832049 ALNNOD CO3MSO £10Z 90 1290190



LelEe el wEs, dEguLy

RESLEL aevsLak 25'968 SOEEE'L LOSEs'ne oo 00'88s'02 NGILYNIQEOOS 2ANLISENS g
WA0B'S 00°008's 000063 BUZE6'L S0°ZEE'L SUZEE'L Lo'o LH0EdNS LNSWESYHN Y SONINNY L 008
J'000's 00000 oo nog DOOD0'E oo LO'000's Sunmeosy 209
IEEFRIET £TEEH'2LEE 000 e A A CHCLLRESE SFELL'EE [Paaslelals =44 STD0E WOD LNOD-Y WAY EDIANES S31N&noDT 908
IXEED'EL SESE05L oo FL¥IE'E oOoo0's L aen CO'000'E - 53008 | 2u3- eainag Bulueld 09
3L990°6YL BLGEN'EYL BL'829'ELZ- LO'E0e'S oo oen oo SH SNYEDONEL S300F - NOIFLEOdSHNYEL Tidnd 209
PLEratens §1EyS00S oo 55 /5E'ES 00 000 e oo 00000’ 098 LOSHNOSHILN INOHLZTEL 209
LE ST LEE L5 /55'108 0o 80'Zr'Ee 00°000°06L 00D 00°000' 05 SNOILFDINARINGDZTEL Log
osk De06L 090 a¥'B 00 IE 00 oo'ngE S300E WO -ucRepodsees | pdng 0og
EErELEE ST antid LLSITEL TLELES6L BEHEE0ZE BSULISES 00654 IEE SMILNIEd 865
WIS 00'F05'6g 00’0 00°966'9 00005 2L a0 CO'00S"EL ANSWNACTISAS0 STPTEALYIN TYNOLLDNELEN 65
000G L 00008 L oo'o 0o o0oos'L 0o v e L S0IUCYY WROUGS-Y 15U WAAAW| (0DYSS 255
WO0LL 00002 L oo'a o ooons'L oo 0004 L SIo0A M, 295IUBD WEND 85 £55
ITBGE LS 056526 oo 050FL'E DIFOno'o0E Fe v OL0e0 0oL SIAD0S WDO -WNINKLND S5 GrE
w000s 00'0as oo oo 00ra0s 000 oorong ey |Eydeg-juaswancidi| Wnnng S5 o5
10°D00'S LGOS 0og aog 00 ooo's oo'g Ooon's BT PRA-UBWSAoId| WNnsuInD §5| G
W0 Lo'o 0o BELEEEE BELEE'ST BE LT 0000’ LE 7 Sculoy uBwsnoud] WANoWINT SSI 145
0nss DIFOSL 0o Q00 00'nEL o 00'0ss 23008 ESnfegAusuanoidi WhNaLIND S5 0ws
WOLELL FXOLVLL L L0YE LLG0G'S¥L 90' 060" L+E o LEr e 00 E28'00Z SN=0TEAI0 NOLLDSTI00 SALYHIL000 AvHar L85
WEEREE DI SZE'ZE oo 00'gLL'E 00'000°5E ao'e 00'O00'sE SID0E WoO-UDNEWCITY AT 585
3EBrSeL BEEFTEL Ot 50E'+E BETEYE'IL RT'E59'ES 22E00EL a0'eag L NOILYINGLNY ASvEan #£8
1ELLE'EE 151080k IFZLOEET +LZLE'IEL 2L IS EEE £1'ESE'E 00§29 0ES LNSIWEACHLN HHNON00HDS 885
[£-g=F7 1550 L Bo'o LESLD'L aan 0o'o a0 SAIC AusdoReE IS Zes
wisLe 05484 oo 05ZLE 00'on' 0a0'0 00000y 3008 LS9 KOYnS AWaH 75
B 5658 2FEES'S PSZIVE SE0RZE DSl 0a'n O0E0t'yL MOLLYNITEO0D TOOHDS SN0H 9E5
0005 00T 00'g 0o'o 000082 000 0070062 BlES APEPUSLDS-ALR|OYSS ALBSNY - COSID 15
5HCERZY SFSTEE a5 LS BEZ GOYIELS oO°ZEn'0aE DOOFE'T DOE5L 158 SI00HDS TSA0W LLS
99'BES S 'S8T Lo A0BES TR BO'39L'ELS o0y il Feass'ng 0OrvL'a0s'L (o) ADOTIONHSAL TYNOILINELSNE G1S
SE'DELOEL LENeRiaslL 305 5 L BLZCHBE 00 LOE'ELE oeo DO LDE'ELE HivdTd HALNGNODOEDIN ¥LS
LELEE'Y 15 1ER'Y age E0°205 DOa0s'S oo 00'00g's SIT0D OO BIPAY ARG ELE
LS 9ES'SDL 15 EES'50L 28700 LB EFULE L D0'BIL'SFL ooa DIFesl gkl VIO ARVEEN E1S
wEERAS ¥EOL' LG 3120668 LE'LE8'E JEE0E'SE L LBEGLEY DOE0L'aLL STIDOIONHDAL DMINGYET LIS
B2 BHO'E00'E BEESYE00'E aon LLIA0E0E S0°45L'602°2 805 0T 0OODC'SELE S320d WoorAboouysyos ] [BuCRISU] BOS
TEEeE'0% LLEDg'as gL LarezL L0SLLE SEEEEHIZ PoeRG- DO EL0B02 1HOdANS TYNOLLSMTEL LN - SMINNY IS £05
DLZ36'E 01 Z2E'T g0 08'LL0'E 00Ny oo poTuo00's AEACOTY ONIOYIE B SLSOH-EOEAST 4=VAS 05
Lo'oos oorans 0oo Qoo 00004 aleNi) 0oL ST PR RS B LBINSILRSELE 205
(R et Lg'vez'as LESEE'S0L PRl T SLGIZELE SLges'ol 00 LLE LOZ ONINEYSTIONYLSIO Lix
Lo ao0e 0o'o coclle SU'GLLS £05LL'S oo'o oo -pauces Sulea-3 gy
ooaos a0'eos oo'o [ra] 0o0'HS oo 00008 1 Sl - Buwest Jabuageys g2
souTEg ss0E[eg BUIpURISN0 somppuadxs  Jebpna Snounstipy | j9bpng uondLzsag NIy Jebpng
sqepEny PAIAGUININGUT SEIUTIQUINSUT ajeg-opden), wanng freesty T
GNNS TVEINIS ¥ Cpund
L0 HEa ) [eds)d
ELOZ/OSIS0 0 Sy poday smeys wbpng
wd [pi2Ei50
¢ sbed 53003 ALNNOD ODIMS0

SL0T v 4aqeian



LGrEnoLeL wes, deadiy

“LELOES'TE RETOE'ZEE"EE BISPL'TIS L ISTBET'LIT'S FEOEDERLEY  PLUELO'SET oosieLerey ONNd TYEENZD [BeL
se- ErDes- GO9S L ooook QoL oo SANUIBS FEM0D ZEL
o0 0000 BE0SZ (BT 000 Coo oo fdesay [ jpuonedreog Lo
LESD'eEE FLEA0RET 0598 Le2- SECLELL 00z Lo DoTELL’ L MNCLLOMTE SN "ONINNY TS ZTL
LBBEE'ESE L1EEEEST S YRR IEE 0L CFEFE IFESEE ZrLSE 00'ess's NOLLYELSININGY S32AEES LNIANLS 128
i L0L 608 TELSE'ELE FEL00" L8t BLZLL 'PrL 008482 OO FOFEL- 0oEEL’ Ok UDRRNSHELITY LSIEINET jPuandahg 021
HZER'E SFTEY'E 08452 L EESEE'L [slapy oo oo Rapes B Sl
H00y'ss GEVIES OEEE6' 2L YEEDS'EE el ook oo Aumoss musu) g1
EET0LE 625L818 OESLF P Lav0e'ss ey oo QrENE'y NI SOA5 L Odd NS TYNTHLIMELSN] ZLL
0 LEL D08 O0°Ens°L0E 0L IEE LETLTE'SRk 0 0EL'SS ooLER'ss O0'BEE'2L 1H04dNS ASCTONHDAL ToMHILN] LLL
oo 0588~ 0ELL LE'SE 0o oo o' SEDINIEG O0L B OO S04
P ESRnYe SLE5LERE SELLELEL L LUPOE'SEE OO LEL W LRaEL 00 BEY ST SONYNILLNIYIN B SHNOLLYHESH0 102
WOLD L 0020 %L acta OOOEY'E 00 0os'aL 0ao Q0005 aL (i splosey) Bassy 089
IESLNLS OB'GL0°EE (elsgi] OLFEy's 00" 00G 52 ' 00°005'sL S200A 00 Usleupiocs) auss sedodws ais
wirssy 00" A8 ooa nhEsE's 00°00S'05 M0 00°n0s o8 53009 WO0 wewsbeuey ARSUS L9
598 (Bt ide] FLBEEGE OEFELSE DO LER'08 6o 00'LER'Ds DMISYHIEN 3AILYHIL00D 045
WLBEES OO EEEEE ao'n OOE0L'S LO'DO0'ES oo'o 0Ooo0es Suissactid Jawasnguiay Peapay] 554
X aa°o 00ooL i) Cooon'L oorooo's Mo TS - LINSWNSO1IATA J4YLS Lve
0 a0 aon ooroon'L £O0oeL ooang - 0 DD - Sussadaid TV LS GBS
0B05SL 00°00s"aL oo'n ooa it =g =} H oL 0000881 Sussenald WASRINGLLUIEE PIEHEAY |EG
15B2T'Ts ol ] Qo' 05 LiE's 000ST LG ooo noa0stLs W S0EE SONYLSISSY SIA0 LS 085
nesz'ze 00GLZ'EE Qoo oasEL 'zl 00 000"sL 000 a0aansL san0g ebepueug efinfeg-uagegabay £29
005542 00as'L2 o G052 a0°00sE 200 Q0e000'ss 1| seysany-afl ‘aomdag Buluueld $7g
000 00Coe'ZE aeg oOnoE' a0 CAa e 400 007000 +Z SATOE *XeSsT UolD-SLUeld S A5V £29
AT BELEL Y Q0°Ga0'0L- ZLELEDL Q0000 s oo oo pon'sy 82004 uoibay [Eade- ¢ 98D 229
EEE'LS e[V E=rA=gs-) oo CO'gE8's 00°000SE a0 00°000'sL SI0E Moo suonenabay 0z
Losses O0OEEEE oo LOoLs's 00000 000 00°000' L8 DAES SNIMDYEL TYIDNYNIE - 5D 218
WO20'vE a0 0Z0FE ooa COOSS'E 007300728 noe 00000’ Le WoD VANBELIRINaD ONS LLD
37 oD oo'a DELEL 05" LEL =g oea S3008 D0 ¥ESEES L
0000k 00000t o 00 0000 e oo oo'0on'ot NINTY P00 SHEHEOM GLS
0551 an' 0SS oL oo 005l OCrooo'EL oo OIoDs'EL 1] LBV SPESYD F1
L9895 L BAS GEERS'ZE FEELS ST O0'+99'ES L oc'o OO rEE'Es L LNFWIS NI WS ALTIYSN00HIE 219
asuejeg aoueERs Bwpuesng SaInppusdng JeBpng RuouRsnipy 196png uondliusan wunoasy wbpng
HOEEAY PRISLUNDUBUT SSAUBIGLUINIUT SIEJ-0- BB A JuaLnD |eqiu|

QNN TYRIENID Y pund
FLOZ HBay, (B354
g oday S abpn
CLOZ/0L/E0 MO 5 Hodad smeg 1ebpng we Jpieeisa

¢ abegd S3208 ALNNOD O93MSO £10T ‘b0 Jaq0i20



ﬁuwgm Cmm:i’e

BOCES

Gistle Benigno, Coordinator of Business Adwinistration, PR & Spectal Prajects "hone 315-963-424 1

Fux 315-903-8477

ghenignofioswegobaees.org
MEMORANDUM
TO: Christopher J, Toadd, District Superintendent
FROM: Giscle Benigno, Coordinator of Business Administration
SUBJECT: Approval of Surplus for October 16, 2013 Board Meeting
DATE: October 4, 2013
CC: Michael Sheperd, Assistant Superintendent for Administrative Services

Alyson Tnman, School Purchasing Officer
Tammy Bigelow, Receiving Clerk

I am recommending that the equipment listed on the cnclosed documentation be deemed
surplus and prepared for auction and/or disposal as per Oswego County BOCES Board Policy, as il
has been determined the cquipment is either obsolete, past repair, and/or of little practical value to the
BOCES,

Enclosurcs

OSWEGO COUNTY BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
179 County Boule 64, Mexico, New York 13114
Christopher 1. Todd, District Superiniendent/Executive Qfficer



-

RECEIVED | Print Form

Gifice of the Assistant Superiniendent

Location Change or Di¥posal’éf Equipment

& a2 G Adminis‘tr“ﬂwe Sarvices

-‘.'?smwga Cowili j

I siwodo Gounfy BOGES

Directions: Enter all information and elteck appropriate hoxes. Sign af botfom mmf britard o TR SEJ wices for processing,
Description of Equipment® Dell Optiplex GX620 ya0r2013
Asscl Tag # 08052 Scrial Number 1GC4TC1

Originally purchased with Grant Funds: O yes [ no [ Tdon’t know
* Please use reverse to add addilional items if necessary

B Sur plus of Equipment (Board Action Required)

Recommended Action; Reason for Disposal:
O Auclion [0 Obsolete
[ Discarded/Scrap E Unrepairable
1 Other (or Additional Delails) [0 No longer of practical use to the BOCES
Bad Hard Drive will not boot [0 Other (or Additional Delails)

Bod bpsd dewe.

B Transfer of Equi pm;nt

Transfer from: Transfer to:
Department: Department:
Roomd#: Roomi;
Building: Building:
Employce: mployce:
Mooty il iobors Wnaca Rty 7477
Requestor "Dite Director ~~_)
i’ é)(,«::’f L - ?/ //
Assistant Supermlandenl Ddle
For Admin, Services PLEASE ATTACH TAG HERE
USWEGO COUNTY B.O.CES.

I



I Print FE.'L
Location GlangdFEDIosal af Equipment

SEP - § 7013

Directions: Inter all information and elieck appropriate boxes. Sign at bottom and forward fo Admin, T —
: L ——- . Administrative Services
Description of Equipment* __Doll Optiplex GX 620 Osweqno Counly BUGES 813012013

Asset'Tag# 07158 Serial Number 4G84D81
Originally purchased with Grant Funds: [J yes [ no [ I don’t know

* Please use reverse to add additional items il necessary

ﬁﬂmﬂgﬂ il’a:mzfi;

[ Surplus of Equipment (Board Action Required)

Recommended Action: Reason for Disposal:
[0 Auction [1 Obsolete
& Discarded/Scrap M Unrepairable
[0 Other (or Additional Details) O No longer of practical use to the BOCES
Bad Hard Drive wan't boot [0 Other (or Additional Details)

Pulaans Csbs
R

] Transfer of Equipment

Transfer from; Transfer to;
Department: Department:
Room#: Room#:
Building: Building;
Employee: Employee:
- — = {r) .
Mol M’ g/;% by ey, /%Li
Requestor  © Date Director () ate
éé:ﬁ el g 5“4/;’3;'
Assistant Superintendent Dalte
For Admin. Services PLEASE ATTACH TAG HERE

OSWEGD COUNTYB.O.CES |

TR

1



0&:5’(’?& County RECEWED

B aﬁ 252 et Sameﬁntﬂﬁem

o

ocation Change or Disposal of Equipment

Divections: Fnter afldufimidaiiy ﬂ:ﬁl&ﬂmﬁrﬁﬁa ‘apriate boves. Sign at bottorm and forward to Admin, Services for processing

Oswege County BOCES

Description of Equipment* A f /f:“fgm))(?f; j;}t_'{’{}w(jzy T

Asset Tag #

Originally purchascd with Grant Funds: O yes

Serial Number

Ul no ?’ 1 don’t know

* Pleasc use reverse to add additional items if necessary

— W 655

C(/Surplus of Equipment (Board Action Required)
Reason for Action:

Aecommended Action:
& Auction

Q@ Disposal Service (T'ech Usc Only)

Q Discarded/Scrap
O Other (or Additional Details)

A

0 Obsolete
0O Unrepairable

0O No longer of practical use to the BOCES
O Other (or Additional Details)

R 'T'ransfer of Eqmpment \

_Iransfer from:

Transfer to:

I Q/ 3

Department: .ﬂ{f / WW x’\., Department:
Room#: £ /05 ) 1 Room#:
Building: /U4 f,’V/ CANCAUS Building;
Employee: \E ;{‘-‘{7 J;’f VA (f/ Employce:
e, A~
/4,!&{/;”/‘%?_ : .l 7
Requestor Date Direclor
A ,ﬂr”‘j( o /ég/ 2
Assistant Supexmlendent Dat

For Admin. Services

BO-08-02-10

[ Date

PLEASE ATTACH TAG HERE




INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Christopher J. Todd
District Superintendent
FROM: Michael J. SheperW =

Assistant Superintendent for Administrative Services

SUBJECT: Resolution to Accept the Independent Audit Report and Management Letter
Containing the Administrative Responses/Action Plan to the Management Letter
Comments )

DATE; 10/04/2013

Please find enclosed the Oswego County BOCES Independent Audit Report and Management Letter
Containing the Administrative Responses/Action Plan to the Management Letter Comments for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The audit was performed by the firm of Raymond F. Wager, CPA,
P.C., and Tom Zuber will be attending the next board meeting to present the report and entertain
any questions from the Board,

Please note that the Audit Committee of the Board met with audit firm representative Tom Zuber on
October 1, 2013 to review all documents and ask questions. During the meeting, Mr. Zuber
commended the work of the BOCES business staff and the overall positive financial status of the
BOCES. Success in these regards is due to the |leadership and overslaght efforts of the Business
Office, the cooperation from the staff of other departments in supporting protocols, and the decisions
of the Board to fund reserves,

As such, I would like to extend special commendation to Gis¢le Benigno, Kelly Wood, and all the
members of the Business Office for their hard work and efforts In successfully executing the 2012-
2013 fiscal year, and also to the Board and all BOCES staff for their support, positive decision making
and for cooperative efforts helping us all to achieve this level of success.

As a result of that meeting, the Committee is recommending that the Board of Education accept the
repott as enclosed.

Therefore, the following resolution can be presented for approval at the October 16, 2103 Board of
Education meeting:

Resolution to accept the Audit Report and Management Letter Contalning the Administrative
Responses/Action Plan to the Management Letter Comments:

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services accepts
the Independent Audit Report and Management Letter Containing the Administrative
Responses/Action Plan to the Management Letter submitted by Raymond F. Wager, CPA, P.C. for the
year ended June 30, 2013,

Thank you for your consideration of this matter.

MI1S:mak
Enclosures



OSWEGO COUNTY

BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tor Year Iinded June 30, 2013



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors’ Roport
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unawdited)

Basic Finunelal Statements:
BOCES-Wide Finanecial Statements -
Statoment of Met Position
Statoment of Activities
Tund Financial Statements -
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenyes, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Governmental Funds

Reconeiliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expendilures and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds {o the
Statement of Activities

Statemont of Fiduelary Net Position

Notes to Financial Siatements -

Required Supplemental Information:
Schedule of Punding Progress of Postemployment Benefit Plan (Unaudited)
Sechedule of Revenues, Bxpenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Dudget (Non-GAAP Basiz) And Actuzl - Genoral Pund (Unaudited)
Supplemental Schedules:
Analysis of Account A431 - School Districts
Capital Projects Fund - Summary Schedule of Iroject Expenditures
Schedule of Expanditures of Fedoral Awards
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Pape

MNumber

1-3
4-11

12
13

16
L7
18-37

38

39 - 40

41
42

A4 - 45



Raymond F. Wager, CPA, P.C.
Certified I"'ublic Accountants

Shiaveholders; I!v_'lcmi-:rs of
Amcmml_]ustimb;uf
Raymond F, Wager, CPA Cetificd hT::jAt‘m’.m‘lanbs
Uhomas J. Lovifer, CRA Hew Yook State Socisty of
Thomas (2 Zuher, CPA Cerlified Pyblic Avouuniunts
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Board Members
Oswego County

Board of Cooperative Educational Services
Repori on the Fipancial Statemeniy

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Oswego County Boand of Cooperative
Educational Services, New York, as ol and Tor the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the BOCES' basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents,

Munagement’s Responsibility for the Financiol Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accopted in the United Statss of America; this inclades
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal conlrol relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that arg free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error,

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on thess financial statements based on owr audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governnient Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller Gensral of the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arc free from material
migstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures Lo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statoments. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessmoent of the risks of material misstatement of the finaucial statements, whether due to frand or greor,
In making those risk assessments, the audilor considors intemal control relevant to the BOCES’
preparation and fair presentation of the finencial statements in order to design andit procedures that ave
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the BOCES® internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion, An audit alse includes evaluating
the appropriatoness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sipnificant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evalualing the overall prescatation of the financial statements,

10720 Tachiph Station Road » Snites 2 & 3 = Hendetta, New York 14467
“fok (385) 321-3643 » Fax: (585) 321-5644 » T-Mail: theoffice @ raymondiwagercpa.com



We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions,

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective Minancial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Services, New York, as of
June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters
Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedule of funding
progress postemployment benefit plan on pages 4-11 and 38 40 be prosented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although uot a part of the basic finaneial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it 1o be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial stalements in an appropriate opsrationsl, ceconomie, or historical
contoxl, We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquirics of management about fhe methods of preparing the information and comparing tho
information for consistency with management’s responses to our nquirics, the basie financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do notl express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information becavse the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion ot provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpoge of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Oswego County Board of Cooperative Bducaticnal Services, New York’s basic
financial statements. The sccompanying supplementary information as listed in the table of contents and
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as reguived by Office of Management and Budgel Cireular A-
133, Audits of Slates, Local Governments, and NMon-Protit Organteations are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying supplementary infonnation as listed in the table of confents and schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget Cireular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governmonts, and Non-Profit Organizations is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records usad to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been suhjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic Minancial statements and certain additional procedures, meluding comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
[inancial statements or to the basic financial statcments themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In our opinion,
the accompanying supplementary information ox listed in the table of contents and schedule of
expenditires of federal awards, as vequired by Office of Management and Budget Cireular A-133, Andits
of States, Local Gevernments, and Non-Profit Organizations is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation o the bazie financial statements as o whole.

Raymond E Wager, CPA, P.C.



Other Reporting Requived by Govermment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 18, 2013 on owr consideration of the Oswege County Board of Cooperative Educational
Services, New York's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational
Services, New York’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

September 18, 2013

Raymond F. Wager, CPA, F.C.




OSWEGO COUNTY BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
MEXICO, NEW YORK

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

June 30, 2013

Introduction

This section of the audit report provides an overview of the financlal activities of the Oswogo County
Board of Cooperative Educational Services (BOCES), located in Mexico, New York, for the year ended
June 30, 2013. Tt should be read in conjunction with the basic financlal statements, which Immediately
follow this section, to enhance understanding of the BOCES financlal performance.

Vinancial Highlights
Kuy financial highlights for fiscal year 2013 aro as follows:

» The BOCES governmental fund financial statements report a combined ending fund balancs of
$3,496,843 representing an increase of $928,301 or 36.1% from the prior yeur. The fund balance
s comprised of: $485,997 rescrved in the General Fund for puposes ol paying prior yoar
obligations; $3,748,017 also reserved in the General Fund for purposcs of aiding the BOCES in
long-term planning; $24 1,470 held in the Capital Fund for construction tind renovation; and
{$1,018,641) in the Special Aid Fund representing shortfalls as a rasult of the faulty and
insufficient reimbursement straclure for preschool program operation as prescribed by New York
Stale (note; the BOCES has discontinued the operation of such programs as & result). The changss
in the balances of each fund are as follows: Goneral Fund increased by $495,592, of which
reserve halances increased by §170,254 (establishment of 3 student program equipment reserve &
additional finds contributed to an employes retirement contribution reserve), and funds carried
forward to seitle apen purchases increased by $325,338; Capital Fund Increased by $192,350
(ropresenting the partial rocelpt of proceeds from companent districts that will be used to pay for
work In progress on a capital project); and Spocial Aid Fund increased by $240,332 {reprosenting
final reccipts relative to outstanding prior-year revenue as & result of New York State compleling
rate ruconciliations for preschool programs, and alse due to exceptional student envollments {or
the Adult Edueation program).

o On the governmentwide financial statsments, the BOCES' assets aie illusteated as being less thon
its liabilitics by $13,518,105, representing & change of (31,485,843 from the prior year, This is
mainly due to the GASB-45 requirement to illusteate the impact of the actuarially detarmined
liability for post-employment health insurance benefifs. The full caleulution for this lizbility 10tals
£77.275,711, representing an increase of $213,053 over the prior year. Beginning with the 2008~
09 financial statements, the lisbiliny has and contlnues to be phased in on an emortized basis over
230 year period. Tho smount applisd to this year's statements is $3,116,229, which represents
45,258,588 reduced by currcnl year funding of $2,142,35%, Without this requirement impacting
the financial statoments, total Net Position would have shown an increase of $1,630,386, which is
discussed further in the Nel Position portion of e MI3&A., Additionally, the implementation of
GASB-54 required that the unrestricted portion of Net Position be represented net of reserves,
However, il adjusted for the fmpact of this revislon, unrestricted Net Position would be
$2,187,042 representing an increase of §789,204 from the prior year,

Overvicw of the Financial Stalements

This discussion and analysis is intended to scrve as an intraduction to the NOCES® basic {inancial
statements, The BOCES? basic financial statements are comprized of three components: (1) government-
wlde financial statements, (2) fund financial statements and (3) notey Lo the financial statements, This
repoti alsp contains individual fund statements and schedules in addition to the basic financial statemeants,




Governmeni-Wids Finuneial Statemenis

o I'he govermmentavide financial statements ar designed to provide readers with & broad overvisw
of the BOCES? finances, in « manner slmilar to a private-sector business.

» ‘lhe stetement of Ned Position presents information on all of the BOCES” assets and liabilities,
with the difference berween the two reported as Met Position, Over time, increases or decreases in
Nel Position could serve as a possible indicaior of whether the financial position of the BOCES s
improving or deteriorating.

o The stafement of activities presents inlormation showing how the government's Net Position
changed during the most recent fiscal year, All changes in Mot Position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving riss to the chango oocurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

s The governmental activitics of the BOCES include administration, career & tech education,
Instruelion for the handicapped, itinerant sorvices, gengral instruction, instructional support, other
services, cost of food salos (if applivabls) and depregiation,

I'he government-wide financial statements can be found on the pages Immediately following this section as
the fivst few pages of the basic {inancial statements.

Fund Finoveial Statementy

*  Afund s a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources thal have
been segrogated for apecific activities or objectives. The BOCLS, Tike other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensurs and demonsirate compliance with finance related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the BOCES can be divided into two categories:
governmental [unds and fidueiary funds.

o Governmenicf fineds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmenial aclivitles in the government-wide finatcial statements. However, unlike the
sovernmenl-wids financial statements, governmental fund {inancial statements focus on e ferm
inflanes and eulfiows of spendable resowrces, a8 well as on balarces of spendable resources
avallable al the end of the fiscal year. Such information may ha useful in evaluating the BOCES'
neat ferm financing requirements,

s Beeatse the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide linancial
slatemonts, |t is usefil to compars the information prosented for povermmental fands with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financlal statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near term
flnancing decisions. Noth the governmental fund belance sheet and the governmental fund
statemeont of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmential fitnds and govermmental activities,

e In general, BOCES' can maintain several individual opeorating funds including: General Fund,
Special Aid Fund, School Store Fund, Capital Pund, Fixed Assots, Trust & Agsncy Fund, Privale
P'urpose Trust Fund, Trust Funds-Nenexpendahle, and Long Torm Dbl Information iz presented
separately for “major funds™ and in aggregate for “non-major funds” in the governmental fund
halance sheet and in tho governmental fund statement of rovenues, expenditures and changes in
fimd balances. Tho BOCES maintains and reports the General Fund and the Special Ald Fund as
major funds.

s Tho BOCES adopts an annual budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for the General Fund within the basic linancial statements to iliustrate vnd-of-year
avtual revenue and expenditure variances {vom the oripinal budget,

s The Fiduciary Funds are used to secount for assets held on behalf of othors by the BOCES in an
agency capacify. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the povernment-wide financlal statements
becanse the resonrces of these fimds are nof available 1o support the BOCES' programs.



The Dinancial statements for the governmental and fiduciary funds can be found in the basic financial
statenent section of this report.

Notes ro the Financial Sialemenis

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes Lo the financial statements can be found
following the basic financial statements section of this report,

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Az noted earlicr, observing the Net Pusition over tinie could surve us a possible indicator of the BOCES
financiul position, As of June 30, 2013 the povernment-wide financial statements fllustrate the BOCES
assuts a5 being less than its labilities by 213,318,103,

Met Posifion
“2013 2012

Current Assels 5 15,733,714 % 13,874,534
MNon-Current Crpital Assets 6,369,333 5,734,630
Tolal Assels 3 22,103,047 % 19,613,164
Current Liabilities b 11255003 % 10,263,550
Long-term Liabilities 24,366,149 21,381,876
Total Liabilities 3 35,621,152 % 31,645,426
Wet Position:

Met Investmenl in Capital Asssts b3 6,360,333 & 5,738,630
Restricted for Capilal Projects 259,599 49,120
Restricted for Other Purposes 3,786,017 3,617,763
Unresiricied (23,935,054) (21,437,775}
Total Met Position b3 (13,518,105) § (12,032,262)

A large component of the BOCES” Met Position in the amounl of $6,369,333 rellests its investment in
capital assets, less any related debt stlll outstanding used to acquire thoss assels, Ths BOCES uses these
capital assels (i.e.; equipment, furnishings, infrastructure ftems, vle.} to provide services o the students and
districts, and therefore they are not available for future spending. Although the BOCES' investment in
capital assels is reported net of related delit, it should be noted that the resources needed (o repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital sssets themselves must be retained to facilitate the
dalivery ol educational services.

The BOCES also has a portion of Nel Position in the amount of $259,599 in holding for use in the capital
renavation project approved by volors on February 28, 201 1. The increase in this eatogory represents
partial receipt of proceeds from component districts that will be used fo pay for work in progress ona
capital projest, In addition, the category of “Restricted for Other Purposes™ in the amount of 53,788,017
reprosents ihe total amomnt of roserve funds held by BOCES. The remaining balance of Met Position
lotalling (§23,935,054) is considered unvestricted, As is evident in the table, this category changed from
last year by ($2,497,279). which is largely due to the on-going GASB-45 requlrement to represent the
actuarially estimated amorlized share of the liability for post-smployment health insurance benefits.

At iIstrated in the table to follow, the boltem-line aggregate change in tolal Net Position was
(%1,485,841), The dollar amount of the change attributed to the GASB-15 requircment is (33,1 16,229 and
the halance of the change attributed to othor regular operating factors was a positive $1,630,386. This
“pon-GASE-45" Increase is mainly attribuled to increases in cash and receivables for: a) BOCES Ald due
to increased activities in districts that drive BOCES aid, b) increased contract billing recelvable from
districts the recslpt of which was dolayed beyond the end of the flscal year, c) receipt of the [inal
outstanding catch-up payments from Oswego County relative to outstanding preschool balances, d)
increased tultion activity from the adult education programs, and e) pariial receipt of proceeds [rom
districts used to fund the capital construction work,



Changes In Nel Posilion

Revenues:
Program Revenues
Chargres for Services
Opsrating Grants and Conlributions
Capital Grants and Confributions
Total Program Revenues
General Bevenues
Investment Earnings
Compensation for loss
Miseellancons
Total General Revenues
Total Revenuss
Program Fxpenses
Administration
Career & Tech Education
Instruction for the Handicapped
[tinerant Services
General Instraction
Instructional Support
Other Services
Total Ixpenscs
Change in Net 'osition
Mel Position, Beginning of Year
Mel Position, End of Year

2013 2012
$ 44,887,177 § 38,451,989
3,150,504 3,560,301
18,131 ’
g 48,055,812 5 42,012,290
$ 1338 $ 18,720
13,670 136,327
1,207,689 :
$ 1234742 % 155,047
g 49,290,554 $ 42,167,337
$ 5,048,879 § 4,645,208
7,815,967 7,400,124
14,751,403 12,826,127
3,301,720 4,739,365
3,793,074 3,756,666
8,257,078 7,289,280
6,906,476 5,662,380
§ 50,776,397 § 46,319,150
g (1,485,343) § (4,151,813)
(12,032,262) (7,880,449)
§ T (13518,105) 3 (12,032,262)

Sowrces of Revenue for Flecol Year 2013 - Goverpmental Activities

Inlaresl & Eemings
Cperaiing Granls
& Conbibutians 002
G.aG%

Caplad Grants
0.04%

Gompensallon fer

Mizcellansous
245%

As indicatcd in this graph, the BOCES relies upon servives to school disieicts as its primary revenue
solres, which is illustrated as approximately 91% of total ravenues. The BOCES also utilizes operating
grants and contributions from the federal, stato and other local governments, which represented
approximately 6% of the total revenues. Theso grants allow ROCES to operate additional programs without
charging for the services. The degling in this categovy 15 due to shrinking rescurces and diminishing
availability of grants from the state and fedoral lovel,



Pragram Evpenses for Fiscal Year 2013 -Governmental Avlivities

Admintsirallen
Suppod 1L.72%

Carger & Tech
Instnugibanal Eduzation
Bunperl 15.39%
16,26%
Conois]
Insiruciion Excoplional B,
T.47% Inglruliog
8.05%

As nated in this graph, the BOCES' Exceptional (Spoclal) Pducation programs account for approximately
20% (or approaching one-third) of total expenses. These services are requested by component school
districts bazed on the requirements outlined in students” Individualized Education Plans,

Carcer and Technical Fducation represents just over 15% of total expenses. The main goal of CTE iz lo
promote strategies for student achievement and success in their continucd education or quest for post
secondary employment, Tn support of this goal, the BOCES and compoenent districts continually consider
new programs that will offer relovaney to the current job market, and alse work collaboratively with
businessfindusiry partners to obtaln feedback about skills studonts will need for success in the svolving
warkplace,

Instructional Support represents about 16% and Management Supporl represents almost 14%. The
expenditures for cach group are determined by the level of services as requested by districts. The
Instructional Support programs [ocus on providing support for the direct instruction of students. Services
consist of such things as: iraining for teachers, statistical snalysls & planning, acquisition of eyuipment or
supplies, duplication of materials, library support, and technology hardware and software support. The
Management Supporl category provides services to the business, managerial and non-instructional sides of
school district operations such as Cooperative Purchasing, Studsat ‘I'ransportation, and Substitute Teacher
Coordination,

Tinancizel Annlysis of the BOCES® Funds

As noted earlicr, the BOCES uses fund accounting to vnsure and demonstrato compliance with finance
related legal requirements.

Croversment Funds

The focus of the BOCHS® governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows sl
balances of spendable resources, Such information is vseful in assessing the BOCES' financing
reguirements. In parlisular, surplus distribution could serve as.a possible measure of a goveniment's
consistency in budgeting over the fiscal year.

45 of the end of the fiscal year, the BOCES’ governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
£3,496,843, an increase of $928,301 from the prior year. Of the total combined fund balances, $241,470
constitutes fimd balance in the Capital fund, which is in holding for nse in the capifal project approved by
voters on February 28, 261 1. Additionally, ($1,018,641) is the amount of unassigned fund balance in the
Special Aid fund. This negalive halance is largsly due to declsions by New York State to sel insufTicient
rates for reimbursoment of preschool programs & services, and to then freeze those rates for multiple years,
As of this year, the rale setting process has been comploted by the State for all proviously outstanding years
and all eliglble ulstanding revenue has been recouped from the County of Oswogo through reconciliation
billing. As llustrated by the fund balance figure, & significant deficit stlil remalns, and there §5 no known
legal mechanism for BOCES to recoup revente, Ours is not the only BOCES In this situation and the
administration of Oswepo ROCES is partivipating in conversations at the state level with state officials and
oiher BOCES to explore how this may be rectified. Ameong the possible solutions is to work with
component disiricts to fund the outstanding balances, but it is also unclear whether distvicts have legal
authority 1o fund these expanscs.



It is worth reiterating that during the 2010-11 school year, BOCES ceased operation of its preschool
programs and assisted tho County of Oswego in (ransitioning them to private providers, in order to avoid
sccumulation of additional doficits. Also of note, the Special Aid Fund was positively influsnced by an
influx of enroliment in the Adult Bducation programs this fiscal yoar. This resulted in resolution of the
existing deficits of the Adult programs and contributed positively to the overall unassigned fund balance of
the fund.

The remainder of the combined fund balances reside In reserves to indicate that they are earmarked for
cerlain purposes and not available for now spending. The ressrve categories include: reserve for
encumbrances of $485,997, rosorve for liability, casually, and other types of losses of $590,606, reserve for
unemployment insurance of $547,709, reserve for employes post-employment benefils of $1,037,472, and
a resorve of §1,462,230 1o asslst with required employer contributions foward the retlrement benefits of
employees belonging lo the New Yorl State Employees Retiroment System.  In addition, ROCES
eoiablished a new reserve this year to set aside funds toward the purchiase of new or replacement
equipment for the Career & Technical Education (CTE) progtam. This program offers courses in the
irpdes, some of which requirs individually expensive equipment items (i.e.: backhoe, loader, dump truck,
ete.), and the amount contributed this year was $150,000.

Ciencral Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Genoral Fund is the chisf operating find of the BOCES. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total
fund balonce of the General Fund was $4,274,014, which reprosents an increase of $495.592 from the prior
year. As previously imentioned, these funds have boon sol aslde in reserves to assist with long-term
{inancial planning for the BOCES, The higher amount Is largely attributed to an increased encumbrance
reservi in the amount of $325,338 illustrating transactions ot completed and clossd prior to year-end, thus
tieding to be carried forward to the subsequent flscal year. As previously mentioned, the BOCES
cstablished & new reserve for CTE equipment in the amount of $150,000. Additionally, through a
combination of use, targeted reduction, and/or additional contributlons and interest eamed, changes
oeeurred in the other reserves as follows: Unemploymenl 52,632 (interest sarnings), Retirement
Contribulion $101,807 (contribution plus interest camnings), Liability ($11,509) (some minor usage), and
Employee Denefits Acoruad Liability ($72,676) (reflective of the updated liability tabulation for payment
of unused leave time to existing employees agos 40-49),

et of amounts eatried over from the prior yoar, at yoar-cid the final ageregate expenditurcs &
encumbrances for the General Fund came in approximately $1,157,278 less than originally budgeted, This
Is altributable to & munltitude of factors, the most significant of which involves an exceptionally healthy
yoar for employees and dependents in the BOCES® salf-funded health, dental, and vision insurancs plans in
the amount of ($1,950,569), In addition, varving degreos of savings were reéalized in employee cost aroas
including FICA, TRS, Workers Compensation, and some elective employes benefits for reasons including;
Mew York State Retirement systems setting mandatory smployer contribution factors slightly lower than
originally estimated, and grant funding opportunitics oscurring following the establishment of the budgst.
Furthermore, for a variety of reasons noteworthy savings wers realized in other oreas including: Interest
expense for he annual note, use of consultants & sorvlve contracts, staff conference & travel expenses,
cerinin larze leases & rentals, classroom rental foes, and utility costs as a vesult of milder temperatures and
[nvorable rates realized from cost saving cfforts (1.e.: participation in the energy consortium snd s-rate
reimbursement programs), Howover, the full Impact of these reductions was significantly oflsel by
increases in budget lines accommodating roquests of school districts for purchases and cross-contraghed
services with other BOCES,

In addition to the savings discussed above, the BOCES also realized greater rovenues lor cerlain ssrvicss in
the agpregate amount ol $1,834,322 than were anticipated during budget development, The lion’s share of
this was dus to the cstablishment of iwo new services, Special Education Day Treatment bringing in
§1,185,383 and Safely and Risk realizing $118,274, Other services realizod incroased revenus in varying
amounts including: Special Bducation 12:1:1, Muolti-Oce, 12:1:4, and 6:1:1 programs, School
leprovement for staff development teaining, Tibeary services, Instructional Technology purchases, Printing
pnd Educational Envichment services (Lo Huploratory Enrichment), In addition, relunds were also
recaived from othor BOCES as pass-through revenue for Oswego component dlstrlots in the amount of
$210,488, and fnereases in the amount of cross contract revenue collected for other BOCES were
experienced in the amount of $319,61 5. Given all factors previously lsted, the overall year-end revenues
exceeded expenditures and oncumbrances by $4,221,703. Tn-accordance with Education Law, tlis balancs
is 1o he refunded entirely to school districts as a surplus distribution, following the close of the fiscal year,

a



Capital Assets

As of Tune 30, 2013 the BOCTES had $6,369,331 in tota! capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
This represents an increase of $630,704 or 11,0% from the prior year. ‘These assots are Invested in s broad
range of categoriss including land, Luildings, work in progress (i.e. capital improvements) and machinery
and equipment. The change in capital assels net of aceumulated depreciation is reflected in the following
chart.

Class 2013 2012
Land 5 32500 % 312,500
Work in Progress 3,171,267 2137, 753
Other Capital Assets 2,885,566 3,288,376
Total Capital Assets, net of
Accumulated depreciation $ 6,369,333 § 5,738,629

Tha increase illustrated in the “Work in Progress™ cntegory represents the work directly related to or in
support of capital Improvements to infrastructurc un the BOCRS campus. The majority of this value is
result of the renuvation project that was voter approved on February 28, 2011, The decrease in the “Other

- Capital Assots” category is comprised of a) sule and disposal of & number of obisolete items that were
deemed fo be of no practical use to the BOCES; and b) depreciation on existing assets in amounts grenter
than the acquisition value of new and updated cquipment items. Capitalized acquisitions for this past year
included: instrustional program vehicles for driver's education, replacement of some print shop equipment
and floct vans.

Long- Term and Revenue Anficipation Note Obligations

As ol June 50, 2013, the BOCES had outstanding Long-term obligativns, a3 follows:

2013 2012
Compensated Absences $ 2032070 5 2,164,026
OPER 22,334,078 19,217,850
Total $ 24,366,149 “§ 21,381,876

Inn addition to the ilems Indicated in the table, annually the 130CES pursues & shord term Lorrowing in the
form of a Revenue Antlcipation Note (RAN). This is [or the purpose of cash flow to oparats summer
programs and cover any temporary revenue shorifulls resulting from delays in district payments of monthly
contract bills. The BOCES coordinates the annusl RAN to have the issuance and the maturity ocour within
the same fiscal year, which resulfs in there not belng a RAN value appearing in the table above. However,
RAN proceeds were roceived and paid during tho 2012-13 fiscal year in the amount of $5,000,000,

The campensated absences ealegory represents an aggregated amount of compensation for which BOCES,
through contractually ncgotiated agresments, is responsible to pay employces in the cvent of absences.
This obligation is calculated by multiplying the applicable accumulated sick time for employees age 40 or
over and the applicable accumulated vacation time lor all employess by cach employee's per diem rale of
pay (or ather amounis as indicated in volleclive bargaining agreements) and then aperegating the values for
all employees. The cumulative number of days for each employes tends to increase annually as cach year
additional slek fime is pranted and unuscd, Also, the employes's por diem and reimbursement rates
increase annually as per contractually nogotinted labor agresments. However, both of these factors are
offsct when personnel separste from service, thus freeing the BOCES [rom the long-term lisbilily. The
Compensated Abssnces catogory illustrated in the preceding chart has decreased by $131,936, which
resulted from the accumulated contractually nepotiated leave time and reimbursement rates for employees
being fully mitigated and offset by decreases in staffing levels duc to layoffs and attrition, One significant
orcurrence was the board’s decision to discontinue transportation services effective Junc 30, 2013, "This
decision was made dus to sharp declines in subscriptions and resulted in the reduction of approximately 12
positions, which also sorved to offset lnereases,

10



The OPEB line repressnis the estimated value for Other Post-Employment Benefits, which appears In
response to Lhe requirements of GASH-45, As previously discussed, the full calculated liability Is catimated
at 877,275,711, however beginning with tho 2008-09 fnanclal statements the liability is being phased in on
an amartized basis over a 30 year poriod, The amount applied to this year's statements is $3,116,229,
which represents $5,258,588 reduced by current year [unding of $2,142,359, When aggregated with the
prior valucs, tho total GPEB liability recognized st this point is $22,334,072 as indicated in the tahle above.

Factors bearing on the BOCES® fulure
Peclining Inrollment

Oswegn County school districls have beon exporiencing steady annual declines In studeént population for
all of the provious decade. From school years 1998-99 to 2012-13, the Rosident Weighted Average Daily
Attendanco (RWADA) factor has dropped by 4,766 from 27,162 (o 22,396, This reduction represents &
17.5%4 decling, or about 1.4% annual decline over this period. I iz iImpovtant to note, however, that this
does not necessarily translate to @ decline in BOCES cnroflment. Other factors play a role such as school
disteiot economic constraints, student needs basod on Individualized Education Plans derived by distrivls’
Committees on Special Bducation, socictal forces or trends, and swdent chaice. However, continud
countywide envollment decling iz a factor that could produce an impaect,

Olifvar Econanic mdicators

The economic challenges being experienced in the United States and the world continues to impact school
business in our region. Also, New York State’s budgetary issues have translated into frozen and reduced
State Aid to districts. Additionally, the property tax cap for school taxes enacted by the Siate Legislaturc is
having an extremo impaet on school district finances, As the County wades through thess troubled wators,
the BOCES continues to pursue sificiency efforts (L.e.: inter-municipal cooperative efforts to facilitate
savings through vombining el{ors toward the same goals), and continues to Invits requests and promote
sharing/cost-savings elforls among school districts where possible. In addition, factors such as County
cfforts to atlraet and/or expand existing facilitics for the production of nuclear power and/or expansion of
other eilors to allmet business to the area continue to hold some promise for increased population.
Succass in these areas could, in turn, benefit the BOCES as they may lead to increased student enrollment
and the neod for adults to be trained in career and technical edueation fields,

Capiral Consiruction/Benovaiion Improvaniests

'The project votors approved in February 2011 is finally getting underway, The facilities arve lavgsly original
dating back to 1969 and I need of repairs and upgrades. Programs will alsa receive updates &
enhancements, technology will be infused and safety incorporated. Conversations with other BOCES that
have completed renovation projects suggest that programs expetience enrollment increases upon
vompletion, which will further add to the stability of the BOCES. In addition, ss part of the praject, onc
£l sized “multi-purpose” room addition is being constructed thet can be tsed as a full sized gym and
Infrastructure is being included to accommodate lunch production and service. All of these itoms will make
the BOCES well suited for full-day propramming options, which is a general discussion topic ccourring =l
the state level refative to all BOCES, In this event, our BOCES will be well equipped and ready to be parl
of the salution for educationgl programming in Oswogo County as we move into tho futurc.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a gensral overview of the BOCES' finances Tor all those with
an interest in the BOCES? (nances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial Information should bo addreased to;

Oswegn County BOCES
Atin: Micheel I. Sheperd, Assistant Superintendent for Administrative Services
174 County Route 64, Mexico, MY 13114
{315) 962-4260

11



OSWEGO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013
Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 7,517,750
Accounts receivable 8,215,924
Capilal Assets:
Land 312,500
Work in progress 3,171,267
Other capital assets (net of depreciation) 2,885,560
TOTAL ASSETS s 22,103,047
LIABILTTIES
Accounts payable 3 753,058
Aecerucd fahilitics 17,796
Detarrad revenus 278,300
Due to other governments 57,777
State aid due to districts 6,788,553
Due to school districts ' 1,626,830
Due to teachess' retirement system 1,462,591
Due to employees' refirement system 209,108
Long-Term Ohligations:
Due in one year 981,568
Due in more than one year 23,384,281
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 35,621,152
NET POSITION
Met investment in capital assets 3 6,369,333
Restricted Fors
Capital projects 259,599
Capital reserves 150,000
Unemploymont reserve 347,709
Tetivement confribution reserve 1. 462,230
Liability reserve 590,606
Employee benefits accrued liability rescrve 1,037,472
Unrasteicted (23,93 5,054
TOTAL NET POSITION $  (13,518,108)

{Ses accompanying notes to financial stateinents) 12



OSWEGO COUNTY

ROARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

FunciionsFrograms
Primary Government -

Administration
Carcer & tech education

Instruction for the handicapped
Itinerant scrvices
General instruction
Instructionsl support
Other services

Total Primary Government

Statement of Activities

For Yesr Ended Junc 30, 2013

Net (Expense)

Revenue and
Changes in
Program Revenues Nel Posiiion
Operating Capltal
Charges for Grants and Grrmmts and Governmental
Fxpenses Seryices Contributions  Contributions Activities
$ 508879 & 58798BE % - & 18,131 % {30,860}
7,815,967 6,703,490 336,850 - {755,597)
14,751,403 12,091,992 1,685,742 - (971,669)
3,301,720 2,483,271 - - (818,449
3,793,974 3,176,997 556,932 - (60,045)
8,257,978 7,989,512 307,710 - 39,244
6,906,476 5,562,027 243,240 - (101,209)

§ 50,776,397 8 44,887,177 8

3150504 § 18,131 S (2,720,585)

General Revenues:
Interest and Earnings
Sale of property and compensation for losy
tiscellaneouns
Toial General Revennes
Chanpes in MNet Position
Met Position, Deginning of Year

Met Position, End of Year

(See accompanying notes to financial statements) 13

5 13,333
13,670
1,207,689

§ (1485.843)

_ (12,032,262)



OSWEGQO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCA'TTONAT, SERVICES
DBalanee Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2013
Special Nonmajor Total
General Aid Capital Projeet Governmental
ASSETS Fund rund Fund Tunds
Cagh and cash equlvalents £ 6799480 % 476,365  F 241,845 % 7,517,790
Receivables 7,493,580 722,344 - 8,215,924
e from other funds 1,639,744 - - 1,639,744
TOTAL ASSETS § 15932804 % 1,198,709 & 241,945 § 17.373458
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCI
Liabllitles -
Accounts payabls ¥ 732,461 & 21,022 % 475 % 753,958
Acerued Habilitics 1,046,060 13,604 - 1,059,664
Due to other funds - 1,639,744 - 1,639,744
Due to other governments 36 57,741 - 51,711
State aid due to districts 6,788,553 - - 6,788,553
D to districts 1,626,830 - - 1,626,830
De 1o TRS 1,280,132 182,459 - 1,462,591
Due to ERLS 184,718 24,350 - 209,108
Deferrted revenues . 278,390 - 218,3%0
TOTAL LIABILITIES & 11,658,790 ¥ 2217350 ¥ 475 ¥  13,876.615
TFund Balances -
Restricted £ 3788017 8 - % 250,590 F 4,047,618
Assigned 485,997 - - 485,997
Unasgsigriod - (1,018,641) (18,129) {1,036,770)
TOTAL FUND BALANCE § 4274014 %5 (1018641} F 241470 & 3,496,843
TOTAL LTABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES $ 15932804 & 1108700 % 241,945

Amounis veporled for govermnental activities in the
Statement of Net Position ave different becavse:
Capital assets uzed in governmental actlvities are not
finuncial rasources and and therefore ave not reporied
in the funds. b 6,369,333

The following long-term obligations are not due and
payable in the current period and therefiore are not
reporled in the governmental funds:
OJI'ERB (22,334,079
Compensated absences (1,050,202)
MNei Posttlon of Governmental Activitles (13,518,105)

]

{See gocompanying notes to financial slatements) 14




OSWEGO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATTONAL SERVICES
Statemenl of Revennes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Yoy Vear Ended June 30, 2013

Special Monmajor Total
General Airl Capital Projeet  Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Kunds
REVENUES
Charges for services 3 16729 % §53,202 & - £ £69,051
Charges o components 40,714,183 - - A0,714,183
Chargest (o hon-components and other BOCES 1,588,850 - - 1,882,850
Intcrést and earnings 11,532 - 44 11,576
Sale of property and compensation for loss 13,670 - - 13,670
Miizcellaneous 1,359,216 54958 1,207,689 2,621,893
State sources - 1,933,075 [8,131 1,951,206
Feidernl sourees - 1,217,429 - 1,217,429
TOTAL REVENUES £ 44,004,189 5 4,058,604 5 1,225.864 5 40,288,747
EXPENDITURES
Administration £  4,8980600 % - 8 < % 4EBUR600
Career and tech education 5,248,410 1,085,480 - 6,333,399
Instruction forthe handicapped 11,003,793 1,595,209 - 12,599,702
Itnerant services 2,210,442 585,988 - 2816430
General instrostion 2,886,663 ANy 710 - 3,194,373
Instructional supporl 7.36849,807 131,482 - 7,501,289
Eher services 5819433 111,757 - 5531,190
Capital outlay e - 1,033,514 1,033,514
TOTAL EXIENDITURES 5§ 30457148 £ 3818335 5 1,033,514 § 44308997
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENULS
OVER EXPENDITURLS £ 4,547,041 % 240,359 8 192,350 b 4,979,750
OTHER CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Surplus to be distributed (4,221,70%) - - (4,221,703)
NMet unemployment roscrve oansaclions 2,632 - - 2,632
Mol capital reserve lransactions 150,000 - - 150,000
Met retirement conhribution reserve transactions 101,807 - - 11,807
Met employee benefit accrued liability reserve transaclion: (72,670) - (12,678)
et 1iubility retention transsclions (11,509 - - (11,509)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEARR ~ 3,778,422 {1,259,000) 44,120 2,508,542
FUND BALANCE, END OF YRAR S 4274014 § (LDIBG4N) 5 241470 8 3496849

{See geeompaying notes 1o finaneial stalements)

== |



OSWEGQO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds {o the Statement of Activities
For Year Ended June 30, 2013

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS B 928,301

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the Statement of
Aclivitics the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense, Tho following are the amounts by which eapital outlays and addilions

of assets excecded depreciation in the current period:

Capital Qutlay $ 1,033,514

Addition of Assets, Mot 67.981

Depreciation (470,792)

630,703

The net OPEB liability does not require the use ol current financial resources and, therefore,
is not reported ax an cxpenditure in the governmental funds. (3,116,229
Tn the Statement of Activities, vacation pay, teachers' retirement incentives and judements
and cluims are measured by the amount accrued during the year, In the governmental funds,
expenditurcs for these items are measwed by the amount actually paid, The following provides
the differences of thess items as prosented in the governmental activitios:

Compensated Absences 71,382

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 3 j1,435-_.343]_

{Bun necompanying notes to financial statements) 16




OSWEGO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
Stutement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30, 2013
Privale
Purpose Apency
T'rusi Funds
Assets
Current Asscis
Cash and cash equivalents 3 69,658 $ 2,247,857
Total Assels ] 69,658 ¥ 2,247,857
Liabilitics
Current Liabilities
Accounts payablo $ - 704,128
Student activity balance - 24,454
Other Habilitles - health/dentalivizsion - 1,485,590
Other liabilitics - 33,685
Total liabilities 3 ; $ 2,247,857
Net Position
Restricted for scholarships 3 69 658
Total Metl Position 3 69,658

Statement of Changes in Fidueiary Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Private
Purpose
Trust
Additions
Interest and carnings 3 409
Deductions
Scholarships and other trust expenses 160
Change in Net Assets b 249
Net Position, Beginning of Year 69,409
Met Position, End of Year 3§ 69,658

(Ses accompanying notes to financlal statoments) 17



OSWEGO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
Notes To The Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2013

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The financial stalements of the Oswego Counly Board of Cooperative Educational Services, New
York (the BOCES) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) s the
accopted standard setting body fur establishing governmental sccounting and financial reporling
principles. The more significant of the BOCES’ accounting policies are described below.

A Reporting Entity

The Oswego County Board of Cooperative Educational Scrvices is governed by the laws
of New York State, The BOCES is an independent entity governed by an elected Board
consisting of nine members. The President of the Board serves as the chief fiscal officor and the
Superintendent is the chief exscutive officer. The Board is responsible for, and contrels all
activitics related to public school cducation within the BOCES, Board members have authority to
make decisions, power to appoint management, and primary accountability for all fiscal matlers.

The reporting entity of the BOCES is based upon criteria set [orth by GASB Statement
14, The Financial Reporting Fntity, as amended by GASB Statement 39, Component Units. The
financial reporling entity consists of the primary government, organizations for which the primary
government is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would
cause the reporting entity’s financial slatements to be misleading or incomplete.

Doards of Cooperative Educational Services wore established by New York State
legislation in 1948 to cnable smaller schuol districts to offer more breadth in their educational
programs by sharing teachers, In 1955, Legislation was passcd allowing BOCES to provide
vocational and special education. A BOCES is & voluntary, cooperalive association of school
districts in a geographic arca that share planning, services and programs to provide cducational
and support activities more economically, efficiently and equitably than could be provided
Incally, BOCES provides instructional and support programs and services to the following 9
school districts:

Altmar-Parish-Williamstown Phoenix Sandy Creel
Central Square Dswego Pulaski
Fulten Hinnihal Mexico Academy

BOCKS programs and services include special education, vocational education, academic
and allemative programs, summer schiools, staff developmenl, computer services (management
and instructional), educational communication and cooperative purchasing,



(L) (Continued)

The decision to include & potential component unit in the BOCES' reporting entity is
based on several criteria including legal standing, fiscal dependency, and financial accountability,
Based on the application of these criteria, the lollowing is a brief reviow of certain entities
included in the BOCES’ reporting entity:

1. Extraclassroom Activity Funds

‘The extractassroom activity funds of the BOCES represent funds of the students
of the BOCES. The Board exercises general oversight of these funds. The extraclassroom
activity funds are independent of the BOCES with respect to its financial transactions,
and the designation of student management, Separate audited financial statements (cash
basis) of the extraclassroom activily funds can be found at the BOCES® business office.
The BOCES accounts for assets held as an agency for various student organizations inan
ngency fund.

Is. Basis of Presentation
1 BOCES-wide Financlal Statemenis

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities present financial
information about the BOCES® governmenial activities. These statements include the
financial activities of the averall government in its entively, sxcept those that are
fiduciary. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal
transactions, Governmental activities generally are financed through state aid, sale of
property and eguipment, investment revenues and miscellaneons revenues which consist
primarily of refunds trom other BOCES. Operating grants include operating-spocific and
discretionary (vither operating or capital) grants, while the capital grants colunm reflects
capital specific grants.

The Statement of Activitios presents a comparison between program cxpenses
and program revenues for cach function of the BOCES® governmenial activities, Direct
expenscs are those that are specifically associated with and are clearly identifiabletoa
particular imgtion, Indireet expenses, principally employee benefits, are allocated Lo
fimetional areas in proportion to the payrell expended for those aveas, Program revenuss
inclucle charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offored by the programs, and
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
reguirements of a particular program. Revenucs that are not classified as program
revenues are presented as general revenues,

5 Fund Statements

The fund statoments pravide information about the BOCES funds, including
fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category (governmental and fiduciary)
are prosented, The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds,
cach displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated

and reported as nonmajor funds.

The BOCES reports the tollowing governmental fonds:

19



(L) (Continued)

.

In

Major Govermmental Funds

General Fund - This is the BOCES primary operating fund. If accounts
tor all financial transactions that arc not required to be accounted for in
another fund,

Special Aid Fund - This fund accounts Tor the proceeds of specific
revenue sources, such as federal and state grants, that are legally
restricted to expenditurcs for specified purposes, and other activitics
whose funds are restricted as to use, These legal restrictions may be
imposed either by governments that provide Lthe funds, or by outside
parties.

Nonmajor Governmental - The other funds which are not considerad

major are aggregated and reporfed as nonmajor governimental funds as follows:

[

Capital Projects Fund - Used to account for the acquisition
consteuction or major repair of capital facilities.

Fiduciary - Fiduciary activities are thosze in which the BOCES acts as

trustee or agent for resources that belong to others. These activities are not
included i Uie BOCESowide financial statements, because their rezources do not
belong to the BOCES, and are not available 1o be used. Thers wre lwo classes of
fiduciavy funds:

Private Purpose Tyust Funds - Thess funds are used to account [or
trusl arrangements in which principal und income benefits annual third
party awards and scholarships for students. Hstablished criteria govern
the use of the funds and members of the BOCES or representatives of the
donors may serve on cemmiltees to determine who benefits.

Agency Funds - ‘I'hesc funds are strictly custodial in nature and do not
involve the measurement of results of operations. Assels ave held by the
BOCES &s agent for various student groups or cxtraclassroom activily
funds and lor payroll or employee withholding.

5 Measuremenl Focus, Basis of Accounting

The District-Wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
ceonomic resources measurement focus and the acerual basis of accounting, Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses ave recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of
when the relaled cash iransaction takes place. Noncxchange transactions, in which the District
gives ot receives value without divectly receiving or giving cqual value in exchange, include
property taxcs, grants and donations, On an accrual basis revenue from property taxes is
reeognized in the fiscal year for which the tixes arc levied, Revenue from grants and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

20




{ L) (Continued)

The fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modificd acerual basis of accounting, TInder this method, revenucs
are recognized when measureable and available, The District considers all revenyes reported in
the governmental funds to be available if the revenucs arc collected within onc year after the end
of the fiscal year. :

Expenditures ate recorded when the related fund lability is incwred, except for principal
and interest on general long-lerm debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which
are reeognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions
are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases arc reported as other financing sources.

n, Resiricted Resources

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
position are available, the BOCES® policy concerning which to apply first varies with the
intended use, and with associated legal requirements, many of which are described elsewhers in
these notes.

E. Imterfund Transactions

The operations of the BOCES include transactions between funds, These transactions
may be temporary in nature, such as with interfund borrowing. The BOCES typically loans
resources between funds for the purpose of providing cash flow, These interfund receivables and
payibles are expeeted to be repaid within one year. Pevmanent fransfers of funds inclide the
transfer of expendilures and revenues to provide financing or other scrvices.

In the BOCES-wide stalements, the amounts reported on the Statement of Net Mosition
for interfund receivables and payables represent amounts due betwesn different fund types
(sovernmental activities and fiduciary funds). Bliminations have been made for all interfund
receivables and payables between the funds,

‘I'he governmental funds report all interfund transactions as eriginally recorded. Interfund
receivables and payables may be netted on the accompanying governinental funds balance sheot
when it is the BOCES? practice to scitle these amounts at a net balance based upon the right of
legal offset.

Refor lo Note V for a detalled disclosure by individual fund for interfund receivables and
payables.

F. Estimnles

The preparation of financial statoments in conformity with accounting principles
penerally accepted in the United States of America requires management fo make calimales and
assumptions that affect the repurled amount of assets and liabilitics and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilitics al the date of the financial statements and the reported revenues and cxpenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those cslimates. Bstimates and
assumptions are made in a variety of areas, including computation of encumbrances, compensated
absences, potential contingent liabilities and useful lives of long-lived assets.

21



(L) (Continned)

G. Cash and Cash Bguivalonts

The BOCES® ¢ash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

New York State I .aw governs the BOCES' investment policies. Resources must bo
deposited in FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust companics located within the State.
Permissible investments include obligations of the United States Treasury, United States
Agencies, repurchase agreements and obligations of New Yark State or its localities,

Collateral iz requived for demand and time deposils and certificates of deposit not

covered by FDIC insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the
United States and its agencies and obligations of the State and its municipalities and Districts.

IL Reccivables
Receivables are shown gross, with uncollectible smounts recognized nnder the direct

write-off method. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since it is belicved
that such allowance would not be material,

I Tuventory and Prepaid Iiems

Inventories of food and/or supplies for school lunch are recorded at cost on a first-in,
first-ont basis or, in the case of surplus food, at stated value which approximates markel.
Purchases of inventoriable items in other funds are recorded as expenditurcs at the time of
purchase, and are considered immaterial in amount.

Prepaid ilems represent payments made by the BOCES for which benefits extend beyond
year end. These payments to vendors reflecl costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recarded as prepaid items in both the BOCES-wide and und financial statements. Thesc items
are reported as assets on the statemont of net position or balance sheet using the consnmption
method, A current asset for the prepaid amounts is recorded at the time of purchase and an
expense/expenditure is reported in the year the goods or scrvices are consumed,

J. Capital Assets

In the BOCES-wide financial statements, capital assets are accounted for at historical
cost or vatimated historical cost if aclual is unavailable, except for donated capital assets which
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

epreciation of all exhavstible capital assets is recorded as an allocated cxpense in the
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation ieflected in the Statement of Net Position.
Depreciation is provided over the assels® estimated useful lives using the staight-line method of
depreciation. A capitalization threshold of $3,000 is uscd to repert capital assets. The range of
catimated nsefl lives by type of assets is as follows:

22



(1) (Continued)

Capitalization  Depreciation Latimated

Class Threshald Method Useful Life
Buildings and Improvements 3 0,000 L 25-50 Yoears
Maclinery and Bguipment 3 5,000 SL 5-20 Years

The investment in infrastructure type assets have not been segregated for reporting
purposes since all cosls associated with capilal projects are consolidated and reported as additions
to buildings and improvements.

I Uneavned and Deferved Revenue

Unearned revenues are reported when polentizal revenues do not meet both the measurable
and available criteria for recognition in the current puriod. Unearned revenue also arises when the
BOCES receives resoutces before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received
prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when hath recognition
criteria are met, or when the BOCES has legal claim to the resources, the lisbility for ungarned
revenues is removed and revenues atc recognized,

Many deferred or unearned revenues recorded in governmenlal funds arc not recorded in
the BOCES-wide statements.

E. Vested Emplovee Benelils

1. Compensated Absences

It is BOCES policy to pay employees lor unused vacation and compensatory time
when there is a scparation from service, BOCES has funded vested sick days for all
employees 40 and over based on the contraclual agreements in effect at the balanco sheet
date. The BOCES eslimales those cmployees older than age 55 to be current,

For governmental activities, the current portion of this lisbility is accrued in the
appropriate fund and any long-term portion has been reported as part of the employee
benefit accrued lability reserve, On the BOCES-wide Statement of Met Assets these
amounts sre reported as long-term obligations with the current amount reported as due in
one year and the long term portion iz reported as due in more than one year,

M. Other Benefits

BOCES employees participate in the Mew York State Employess® Retircment System
and the New York State Teachers® Retirement System.

In addition to providing pension benefits, the BOCES provides post-employment health
coverage o retired employees in accordance with the provision of various employment contracts
in effect at the time of retirement. Substantially all of the BOCES’® employses may become
eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the BOCES.
Health care bensfits are provided through plans whose premivms are based on the benefils paid
during the year, The cost of providing post-retirement benefils may be shared between the
BOCES and the retired employce. The BOCES recognizes the cost of providing health insurance
by recording its share of insurance premiums as an sxpenditure.

23



(L) (Continued)

N. Shorvi-Terin Debt

The BOCES may issue Revenue Anticipation Notes (RAN) in anlicipation of the receipt
of revenues. These notes ave recorded as a lability of the fund that will aclually receive the
proceeds from the issuance of the notes. The RANs represent a liability that will be extinguished
by the use of expendable, available resources of the fund.

0, Acerned Tinbilities and Long-Term Oblipalions

Payables, accrued liahilitics, and long-term obligations are reported in the BOCES-wide
financial statements. In the governmental funds, payables and acerued liabilities are paid ina
timely manner and in full from current financial resources. Claims and judgments, other
postemployment benefits payablo and compensated absences that will be paid from governmental
funds are reported as a liability in the funds financial statements only to the extent that they are
due for payment in the current year. Bonds and other long-term obligations that will be paid from
governmental funds are recopnized as a liability in the fund financial statements when due,

J.ong-term obligations represent the BOCES” future abligations or future economic

outflows. The liahilitics ave reported as due in one yoar or due within more than one year in the
Stalement of Met Position.

P. Eguity Classifications

1. BOCES-Wide Statcincuts
Inn the BOCES-wide statemonts there are threo classes of net position:
a. Net Invesiment in Capital Assets - consists of net capital assels (cost

legs accumulated depreciation) reduced by outstanding balances of related deht
obligations from the acquisition, constructions or improvements of thase assets,

b. Tiestricted Net Position - reports net position when constraints placed
on the assels or deferred outflows of resources ars either externally imposed by
ereditors (such as through debl covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation,

(8 Unrestricted Net Position - reports the balance of net position that
does not meet the definition of the above two classifications and is deemed to be
available for general use by the BOCTES,

2. Fund Statcmcnts

In the Tunil basis statements there are five elassifications of Tund balance:

24



(1) (Continued)}

Restricted Fund Balanees — Includes amounts with constraints placed

on the use of resources either externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or imposed by law
through egnstitutional provisions or enabling legislation. All encumbrances of
funds other than the peneral fund ar¢ classified as restricled fund balance. The
BOICHS has established the following restricted fund balances:

Capital Rescrve tor Equipment - Established to fund the purchase of
new feechnology equipment in accordance with New York State
guidelines,

Emplovee Benefit Acerued Liability Rescrve - According to General
Municipal Law §6-p, must be used for the payment of accrued employee
benefits due to an cmployee upon termination of the employee’s service,
‘This reserve may be established by a majority vote of the Board, and is
funded by budgetary appropriations and such other reserves and funds
that may be legally appropriated.

Liahility Reserve - As allowed by Fducation Law Sections 1709.8-c
and 1950.4-cc, is used to pay for property loss and liability claims
incuired, This reserve may not in total exceed 3% of the annual budget or
$15,000, whichcvet is greater, This type of reserve may be utilized only
by school distrivts, oxcept & city school distriet with a population preater
than 125,000, This reserve is-accounted for in the General Fund.

Retivement Contribution Reserve - According to General Municipal
Law §6-r, must be used financing retirement contributions. The reserve
must be accounted for separate and apart from all other lunds and a
detailed report of the operation and condition of the fund must be
provided to the Board,

Unemployment Insurance Reserve - According to General Municipal
Law §6-m, must be used (o pay the cost of reimbwrsement to the State
Unemployment Insurance Fund for payments made to claimants where
the employer has clected to use the benefit reimbursement method. The
reserve imay be established by Board action and is funded by bundgetary
appropriations and such olher funds as may be legally appropriated.
Within sixty days after the end of any fiscal year, excess amountls may
cither be (ransferred to another reserve or the excess applied to the
appropriations of tho net succeeding fiscal year's budget, IT the BOCES
oleets fo convert to tax (contribution) basis, excess resources in the fund
over the sum sulMicient to pay pending claims may be transferred to any
other reserve tund.



(L} (Continued)

Encumbrances - Encumbrance accounting, under which purcliase
orders, contracts and other commitments of expenditurcs are recorded tor
budgetary control purposcs in order to veserve applicable appropriations,
is employed as a control in preventing over-cxpenditure of established
appropriations. Open encumbrances are reported as restricted fund
balance in all funds other than the General Fund and the School Lunch
Fund, since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities and will be
honored through budget apprapriations in the subsequent year,

Kestricted fund balances include the fu!!ﬂw.ing:

Genersl Fund -

CTE Byuip. reserve £ 150,000
Tmployee Benefit Acorued Liability 1,037,472
Liability 590,606
Retirement Contribution 1,462,230
Unemployment 547,709
Capital Fund -

Waterline Project 58,106
BOCESwide Project-2011 201,493

‘I'otal Restricted Funds 5 4,047,616

b Assigned Fund Balance — Includes amounts that are constrained by the

BOCES? intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor
committed. All encumbrances of the General Fund are classified as assigned fund
balance. Encunbrances represent purchass commitments made by the BOCES®
purchasing agent through their authorization of a purchase order prior to yoar
end. The BOCES assignment is based on the functional level of expendifures.

Significant cncombrances for the general fund, management has
determined (hat amounts in excess of $59,000 for the General Fund are

considered significant and ave summarized below:

- F112,093 Career and Tech Hducation
- $186,087 Instruction for the Handicapped
- $78.127 Instructional Support

Assigned fimd balances include the following:

General Fund Eneumbrances -

Administration
Career and Tech Education
Instruction for the Handicapped
Hingrant
General Instruction
Instructional Support
Qther Services

Total Assigned Fund Balance

26

$ 20,356
112,003
186,087

41,035
34,180
78,127
5119

$ 485997




(1L} (Continued)

[ Unassigned Fund Balance --Incldes all ather general fund amounts that
do not meet the definition of the above four classifications and are deemed to be
available for general use by the BOCES,

3. Order of Use of Fund Balance

The BOCES® policy is to apply expenditures against nonspendable fund balance,
restricted fund balanee, committed fund balancs, assigned fund balance, and unassigned
fund balance at the end of the fiscal year, For all funds, nonspendable fund balances ave
delermined first and then restricted fund balances for specific purposes arc delermined.
Any remaining fund balance amounts for funds other than the general fund ave classified
a3 restricted fund balance. In the general fund, the remaining amounts are reported as
unassigned, Assignments of fund balance cannot cause a negative unassigned fund
halance.

Q. MNew Accounting Standards

The BOCES has adopled all current Statements of the Guvernmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASE) that are applicable. At June 30, 2013, the BOCES implemented the
following new standard issued by GASD:

GASD Statement 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferved lnflovws
of Resources, and Net Position.

GASD 63 provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources, and amends the net asset reporting provisions of GASE 34 by
incorporating deferred inflows and outflows into the definitions of the residual measure and by
renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets,

R Fulure Changes in Accounting Siandards

GASB has issucd Statement 65, Trems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,
effective for the year ended June 30, 2014,

GASE has issued Statement 66, GASB Technical Corrections — 2012 — an Amendment of
Statements 10 and 62, cfTective for the year ending Junc 30, 2014,

GASB has issucd Stalement 68, Adccomnting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an
Amendment of GASE Statement 27, effeclive for the year ended June 30, 2015,

GGASD has issued Statement 69, Governmen! Combinations end Disposals of Government
Cperations, effective for (he year ended June 30, 2015,

(FAST has issued Statement 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Financial Guarantees, effective for the year ending June 30, 2015,

The BOCES will cyaluate the impact each of these pronouncements may have on ils
financial statements and will implement them as applicable and when malerial.

a7



1L Stewardship, Compllance and Accountability;

By its nature as a local government unit, the BOCES is subjuet to various federal, state and local
laws and contractual regulations. An analysis of the BOCES's compliance with significant laws and
regulations and demonstration of its stewardship over BOCES resources follows.

A Budpetary Information

Section 1950 §4(h) ol the Dducation Law required adoption of a final budget by no later
than May 15, of the ensuing year.

BOCES administration prepares a propused administrative, capital and program budget,
as applicable, for approval by membors of the BOCES board for the general fund.

Appropriations for cducational services are adopted al the program level and lapsc at the
end of each [iscal vear, ;

A tentative administrative budget is provided to the component BOCES' for adoption by
resolution, Approval of the tentative administrative budget requires the approval of'a majority of
the component school hoards actually voting. During the current year, the administralive budget
was approved by a majority of its voting component school boards,

Dudgets are adopted annually on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles. Approptiations authorized for the current year are increased by the amount of
cneumbrances carried forward from the prior year. The Special Revenue Funds have not been
included in the budget and actual compatison hecause they do not have legally authorized
(appropriated) budgets.

The BOCES Neard can approve budget revislons based upon requests for additional
sorvices and surplus revenues,

Dudget(s) are adopted annually on a basis consistent with gencrally accepted accounting

principles. Appropriations authorized for the currenl year are increased by the amount of
eneumbrances carried forward from the prior year.

1. Deficit Fund Bulonces

1. Specigl Aid Fond

The Pre-school program incurred an operating gain of $89,834, decreasing the
deficit fund balance to $1,182,457. In addition, the health accupations program had a
deficit fund balance totaling $214,360, As a result of these program deficits, the overall
fund balance of the Special Aid Fund reports a deficil of 1,018,641, The BOCES has
decided to transition the Pre-schoo! program to a private ssctor and is working to enhance
the health ocenpations program.

2. Cupital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund had a deficit unassigned fund balance of 18,129 at
June 30, 2013, which is a result of expenses incurred by the wind turbine projeet before
reeeiving permanent Mancing,

28



IIT. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Custodial eredit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the BOCES® deposits may not
be returned to it. While the BOCES docs not have a specific policy for custodial credit risk, New York
State statutes govern the BOCIS® investment policies, as discussed previously in these notes,

The BOCES’ aggregate bank balances (disclosed in the financial statements), included balances
not covered by depository insurance at year end, collateralized as follows:

Uneollatoralized & u
Collateralized within Trust department or agent 10,985,056
Taotal F 10,985,056

Restricted cash represents cash and cash equivalents where use Is limited by legal requirciments.
These assets represent amounts required by statute to be roserved for various purposes. Restricted cash as
of year end included $4,029,962 within the governmental funds and $69,658 in he fiduciary funds.

v, Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2013 for individual major funds and nonmajor fands, including the
applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Governmental Activities

General Speeial Ald
Descripiion Tund Fund Total
Accounts Receivable - Trust & Apgency B 705,027 % 91,920 % 796,947
Due From State and Federal 0,788,553 630424 7,418,977
Tatal 8 7493580 722,344 § 8215924

Y. Interfund Recelvables and Pavables

Tnterfund Receivables and Payables at June 30, 2013 were as follows:

Interfund

Reccivables Payables
General Fund $ 0 1,639,744 3 -
Speeial Aid Fund s 1,639,744
Total government activitics F  1.639.744 $ 1.639,744

Interfund receivables and payables bolween governmental activities are eliminated on the
Statement of Net Position.

The BOCES typically loans resources between {unds for the purpose of mitigating the effects of
transient cash fow issues,

All interfund payables are not necesaarily expected to be repaid within one year.

29



YI. Capital Assefs

Capital asset balances and activity were as follows:

Balance Balunce
Type /12012 Additions Deletions 6/30/2013
Grovernmental Aciivifics:
Capital assets that ave not depreciated -
Land 5 312,500 % - % - % 312,500
Work in progross 2,137,753 1,033,514 - 3,171,267
Total Nondepreciable b 2450253 % 1,033,514 3 - & 3,483,767
Capital asscts that are depreciated -
Buildings and improvements b 7022307 % - 5 - % 7,022,307
Machinery and equipment 3,889,160 100,369 (160,844) 3,828,685
Voial Depreciated Assels f 10911467 % 100,369  § (160,844) § 10,850,992
Less aceumulated depreciation -
Buildings and improvements 5 5074428 % 111,180 & - & 5,285,617
Machinery and equipment 2,448,663 359 603 (128.457) 2,679,809
Total cccumdated depreciation § 7623001 & 470,792 % (128457 % 7,965,426
Total capital assels deprecinted, net
af weenmnlated depreciation b 3,288,376 % (370,423) § (32,387) % 2,885,566
Total Capital Assets £ 5,738,629 . 8 663,091 §  (32,387) ) 6,369,333
Depreciation expense for the period was charged to Tunctions/programs as follows:
Governmental Activitics:
Administration b 17,957
Career and Tech Education 252,197
Instruction for the Handicapped 101,933
Ttincrant Services 15,543
General Instruction 47,596
Instructional Support 22,862
Other Scrvices 12,700
Total Depreciation Expense ¥ 470,792
VI,  Shovi-Term Debt
Transactions in shori-term debt for the year are summarized below:
Interest Balance Balance
Maturity Rate 7442012 Issued Redeemed 6/30/2013
AN 2013 1.500% 3 = & 5,000,000 . 35,000,000 b -

Interest on shori-lorm debt for the year totaled $53,081,

30



"PFET] HOA MaN “Aeqy Seeng aTEg 011 Jspondmor

2YRIS 1 30 SOIO SIS AN 01 Suniim Aq paulggo ac Azw dodal sy uoyeuUoiw Arzuswsjddns pannbar pue sjustsTE)s [RIDUBLIL SSPR[2UI 1B

odar rerowzny sjqz(eae Aoiqnd B sansst mansAs oy [, seado]dws ;1 suausq pue ‘Hnquuos op ssafojdws pue siafo[dius jo suonzEqo uzsacs
MET ALMDIG [B1008 PUE JUS0UNNY 8IS JI0A MaN "SHFauaq AI[Iqesip pUe Yiesp 5B [ St S)anaq Jusmarnar sapiaoid SYIS AN

"CEET-11TT1 AN “AuRqly 'spoog sierodio] 01 “SULSAN @

Funii Aq paerqo o Arw wodal o4 “W0MSAS 21 10] ToneuLou Aruswalddns pennbal pus SjuSWIafe]S [BIOUBUL] SUIRIUOD JBY) 1OdaT [BIteuL)

ojqe(reAt Aforqnd B sanssi SYILSAN TIOA MON JO S1RIS 91 J0 2] AUN0IG [2120g PUR JUIWSINY 9 PUR ME] LOURINDT 9 Aq PIZLIOTRE SB

SOLBIIITETRG PUE sraquistn teld o sijateq soptaoid magsiAs o] "SYLSAN SIeISIUILpPE preod JUalerey] SI90Ea ] ST81S 10 R MEN 2L

TONERSOIOPY PEE SO01SIADL] |

- AIqEsip puUB (B3] "SIeUSd JUSTLAINET 0 Sunsaa A1eEs sERIoAE [BUL PUE 901AI9S JO SI8a4 O PRSI 2IE YOIy s)jeusg pue sueld jo sSust

opla 2 J2[J0 SWS)SAS 27 ] SwalsAs Jmsmamar sadofdins ogqnd 1sdordine spdiynm Suireys 1s00 sie SWASAS 555U T, (9IS AN WISAS [USTIAmTY
(SISUIRS], OFRIG WHOK MAN 213 pue (SWHSAN) Wweisdg mewamsy seakofdury 12yg st0 4 sman sy ut ssjediopred 30504 941

TONEWIojH] [elonar) W

:SOE[J Uoisaag T

19U WWMOLS &I SUONS|Ep PUR SUODIDPY

[REFREEZ S GPI9SSHT §  9S6 Il § GTTOII'E §  9LRISEIT § SHOYESIqQ WA [-6u0] [BI0],
IREYRECT S 6FI995%ZC § 9%56°1¢E] $ 6TTOITE §  9.8°18¢1Z § SAUIG el MG [FI0L
6LOPEE” LO'YESTE - 672911 088°L1T61 Aunaery gado
Z0T0S01 § 0L0TE0'T § 954TIE1 . g 9z0We1T % sa0ussqy pajesuadmor)
= SanIIqer] 12410
LTS ET0C/05/9 SuonR[a( SEonIppY TI0TTL SONIALOY [GIUDWILIDACE)
WA 9] nuEEy aoueeq

W0[aq PAZLIBLILINS T8 Jeak 21y 107 £1IAL08 PUB S90UBRY AQIlqRl] uie-FueT

SEORESNq0 19P0 WL 0T IA



{IX. ) (Continued)

. Funding Policles

Plan members who joined the System before July 27, 1976 are not required to make
confributions. Thoss joining after July 27, 1976 and before January 1, 2010 with less than ten
years of membership are required to contribute three percent of their annual salary. Those joining
on or after January 1, 2010 and before April 1, 2012 are required to contribute thres and one-half
pereent of their annual salary for their entive working career. Those joining on or afler April 1,
2012 are required to contribute between 3% and 6%, dependent upon their salary, for their entire
working career. Bmployets are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate, currently
11.84% of the annual covered payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Rates applicable to
the Tigeal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 were respectively, 11,11% and 8.62%.

The BOCES contributions made to the Systems were equal to 100 percent of the
confribulions required for each year. The required contributions for the current year and fwo
preceding years were;

TRS LERS
2013 $ 1,395257 0§ BI2986
W12 % 1,201.828 0§ 633,128
2011 $ LI122711 § 547436

The BOCES funded their FRS reserve in the amount of $100.000 in 2012-13.

X. Postemployment Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the BOCES provides post-employment medical and
preseription drug benefits (QPEB) for refivecs, spouses, and their covered dependents through the
BOCES's Postemployment 1lealth Care Benefits Program (Plan), The benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions and employer contributions are governed by the BOCES and can be amended by the
BOCES through its" union contracts. The Plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust
has not been established to account for the plan,

The BOCES implementod GASD Statement #45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
emplayers for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, in the school year ended June 30, 2009,
This required the BOCES to caleulate and record a nst other postemploymenl benefit obligation at year
end, ‘l'he net other postemployment benefit obligation is basically the cumulative difference between the
actuarially required contribulion and the actual contributions made.

The BOCES recagnizes the ost of providing health insurance annually as expenditures in the
general fund of (he funds financial statements as payments are made, Por the year ended June 30, 2013

the BOCES recognized 32,142,359 for ils share of insurance premiums for currently enrolled retirees.

The BOCES has obtained an actuarial valuation report as of Junc 30, 2013 which indicates that
the total liability for other postemployment benefits is $77,275,711.

32




{ X.) (Continued)

Aninad QPER Cost and Ner OPEB Obligation - The BOCES' annual other postemployment
(OPEB) cost {expense) 15 calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC),
and amount actuarially determined in accordance with the pavameters of GASE Statement #435. The ARC
ropresents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirly
years. The following table shows the components of the ROCES® annual OPRED cost for the year, the
amount actually contributed to the Plan, and changes in the BOCES® net OPEB obligation by
governmental activities:

Annual required contribution $ 5017492
Interest on net OPER obligation 960,893
Adjustment to annual required contribution (719.797)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) £ 5,258,588
Contributions madc 2,142,359
Increase in nel OPEB obligalion $ 3116229
Met OPER cbligation - beginning of year 19,217,850
Net OPER obligation - end of year $ 22,334,079

The BOCES® annual OT'EB cost, the percentage of annual OPEBR cost conlributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB obligation for tho fiscal year end 2013 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage of
Tiscal Annual OPER Met
Year Anual OPEDB Cost OPEB
Ended OPERB Cost Contributed Obligation
a/30/2011 b 5,616,070 36.43% % 15,417,064
Gf30/20132 b 5,989,159 31.16% 3 19,217,850
6/30/2013 b 5,258,588 40.74% § 22,334,079

Fumded Status and Funding Progress - As of Tune 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the plan was unfunded, The actuarial acerued linbility for benefils was 577,275,711, and the
actuarial valuo of asscls was $0 resulling in an unlinded actuarial accrued Hability of $77,275,711. The
covered payrall (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $13,993,280, and the ratio
of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 552.23%,

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of the occuirence of events far into the future, Bxamples include
assumptions about future cmployment, mortality and the healtheare cost trends. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates arc made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplemental information
following the notes fo the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrucd
linbilities for benefits.

33



{ X.) (Continued)

Actuarial Methody and Assumptions - Projections ol henefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and
includes the types of benefits provided at the time of cach valuation and the historical paltern of sharing
of benefit costs between (he employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions nsed include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilitios and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspeclive of
the calegulations,

In the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost methad was used. The
dizcount rate used was 5%. Bocausc the plaw is unfunded, reference to the general assels was considered
in the selections of the 5%. The valuation assumes a 7% medical cost trend, reduced by decrements toa
rate of 5% nfter nine years. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2013 was twenty-five years.

XI. Risk Management

A, General Information

The BOCES is exposcd Lo various risks of loss related to injuries to employces, theft,
damages, natural disasters, ete. These risks arc covered by commercial insurance purchased from
independent third parties. Scitled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial
insmance coverage Tor the past two years.

BE. Worlkers® Compensation

'The BOCES incurs costs related to the Onondaga/Cortland/Madison Self-Funded
Waorkers' Compensation Consortium Plan (Plan) sponsored by the Board of Cooperative
Fducational Services, Onondaga/Cortland/Madison. The Plan’s objectives are to furnish workers
compensation benefils to participating districts al a significant cost savings. Membership in the
Plan may be offered to any school district with the approval of the Board of Directors. Voluntary
withdrawal from the Plan may be effective only once annually on the last day of the Plan year az
may be cstablished by the Board of Directors, Notice of the Infention fo Withdraw must be given
in writing to the Chairperson of the Board of Directors and the Treasurer not less than sixty (60)
days prior to the end of the Plan year.

Plan membership is currently comptised of 19 members and Onondaga / Cortland /
Madison BOCES, If a surplus of participants’ assessments exists after the close of a Plan year, the
Doard may retain from such surplus an amount sufficient to establish and maintain a claim
contingeney fund, Surplus funds in excess of the amount transterred to or ineluded in such
contingency fund shall be applicd in reduction of the nexl annyal assessment or to the billing of
DPlan participants. All monies paid to tho Treasurer by participants shall be commingled and
administercd as a common Mund, No refunds shall be made lo a participant and no assessments
shall be charged to a participant other than the annual assessment. Howover, il it appears to the
Doard of Directors that the liabilities of the Plan will exceed its cash assets, alter faking info
aceount any “excess insurance”, the Board shall defermine the amount needed to meet such
deficiency and shall assess such amount against all participants pro-rata per enrollee. Pursuant to
General Municipal Law, the municipal agrecment does not transler risk,

The Plan purchascs, on an annual basis, stop-loss insurance to limit its exposure for
claims paid.

34



{ XL} (Continued)

The Plan gstablishoes a liability for both reported and unreported insured events, which
includes estimates of both future payments of losses and related elaim adjustment expenses.
TTowever, hoeanse actual claims costs depond on complex factors, the process used in computing
claims liabilitivs docs not necessarily result in an exact amount, Such claims are based on the
ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported hut
not seltled, and claims that have been incurred but not reported, Adjustments to elaims liabilities
arc charged or credited to exponges in the perods in which they are made. During the year ended
June 30, 2013, the BOCES incurred premiums or contribution expenditures totaling $193,922.

The Plan financial information is available at the NOCES! administrative offices,

C. Self-Funded Medical Plan

The BOCES participates in a self-funded medical plan administered by POMCO, The
Plan iz referred lo as a premivm credil plan. The BOCES pays actual elaim expenses and
administrative charges, The BOCES also, has stop-loss insurance coverage on specific claims in
excess of $150,000. :

Liabilities are recorded when it iz probable that an azset has been Impaived or a liability
has heen incwred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimaled.

The incutred bul not reporled claims (JBNR's) are fully funded and reported in the
Agency Fund as part of the other liabilities-health balance at June 30, 2013.

Acreconciliation of the elaims recorded for 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013 2012
Beginning liabilities § [378,814 § 1,373,926
Incurred claims 7,380,149 7,592,373
Claims payments (7293,077)  (7.587.485)

Ending liabilities  § 1465886 § 1,378,814

The following statistical information is presented;

Contribution Incurrved Claim

Year Revenug Expcusc

2013 § 7025861 7,380,149
2012 $ 7,127,082 % 7,592,373
2011 ¥ 6815305 3§ 7,440,553
2010 3§ T424577 § 7.614.356
2009 ¥ 6608878 % 6,941 057
2008 ¥ 6349286 % 6,408,176
2007 3 6445730 % 6,145,920
2006 £ 6520472 3% 06,653,236
2005 ¥ 6,111,818 § 6,158,143
2004 T 5,404,340 § 4,962,403
2003 $ 4968743 § 4,532,380

33



( XL ) (Continued)

Contribution revenues consist of the expenditures charged to the funds plus the
employes's payroll withholding plus the retiree’s contribution. There are additional revenues
which offset the claim expense such as rebates and refunds which are not included in confribution
revenues.

The Plan has funded the incurred but not yel reporled claims liability. ‘The funding of this
linbility indicates that the plan’s self funded insurance program is fully funded.

1. Sclf-Funded Dental Plan

The BOCES solf insures for dental coverage for itz employees. A third party
administeator is usod who is responsible for processing claims and cstimating liabilities. BOCES
dous nol carry exoess insurance coverage relative to this plan. Bxpendilures are recorded as
claims are presented for payment with a cap of $1,000. Liabilities are reporied when it is probable
that a loss has ocewred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.

A reconciliation of the claims recorded for 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

2013 2012
Bepinning liabilities 3 26,113 3 31,846
Incurred ¢laims 275,318 261,129
Claims payments (273,899) (2066,862)

Ending liabilitics 5 27,532 § 26,113

The following statistical information is presented:

Contribution Ineurred Claims

Year Bevenue Expense

2013 ¥ 176,603 % 275,318
2012 ¥ 199222 § 261,129
2011 5 212293 3§ 318,456
2010 3 302,231 ¥ 312,068
2009 3 213,342 % 267,758
2008 5 276,005 ¥ 279,969
2007 3 G2l § 200,539
2006 5 202,009 % 304,590
2005 & 185,635 § 285,015
2004 ] 126,230 &% 326,301

E, Uncmployment

BOCES employses arc entitled to coverage under the New York State Unemployment
Insurance Law, The BOCES has eleeted to discharge its liability to the New York State
Unemployment Insurance Pund (the Fund) by the benefit reimbursement method, a dollac-for-
dollar reimbursement to the fund for benefits paid from the fund to former employees. The
BOCES has established & self insurance fund to pay these claims. The claim and judgment
cxpenditures of this program for the 2012-13 fiscal year totaled $45,916. The balance of the fund
at June 30, 2013 was $547,709 and is recorded in the General Fund as an Unemployment
Insurance Rescrve, Tn addition, as of June 30, 2013, no loss contingencies exisled or were
considered probable or estimable for incurred bul not reported claims payable.

36



XIIL

Commitments and Confingencies
A, Litigation
Management is not aware of any patential litigation as of the date of this report.
B Grauts
The BOCES has received grants, which are subject to andit by agencies of the Statc and
Fedoral Govermnents, Such audils may vesult in disallowances and a request for a return of funds.

Bnsed on prior years® experience, the BOCES® administration belioves disallowances, it any, will
be immaterial,

£ Subsequent Tyvents

On July 8, 2013 the BOCES issued n Revenue Anticipation Nate in the amount of
4,000,000 at 0.70% which maturcs June 27, 2014,

37




HReguired Supplemental Information
OSWEGO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
Schedule of Funding Progress
of Post Employment Benefit Plan
(Unaudited)
For Year Ended Junc 30, 2013

(4) (6}
Unfunded UAAL
(2) Actunarial (5) Asa
Actuarial (1) Actuarial (3 Accrued Aclive Percentage
Valuaiion Actuarial Accrucd Funded Liability Members of Covered
Date Valoe of Liability Ratio (TTAAL) Covered Payroll
_ Junedd, Agsets {AAL) (1)/(2) (2)- (1) Payroll {4)/ (5)
2009 b - 84,869,100 0.00% £ 84,869,100 & 18,480,000  459.25%
2010 b3 - $ 91,348,029 0.00% 91348029 § 15388255 557.40%
2011 £ - ET?.,GEI,{}SE 0.00% & 72,681,056 - $ 14,013,269 518.66%
2012 5 - ¥ 77,062,658 Do0% 577,062,658 F 1398455 550.90%
2013 ] - §77275711 0.00% % 77,275,711 £ 13,993,280 552.23%
{Seo lndependent Auditors' Repmt) k1



Required Supplemental Information
OSWEGO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual - General Fund
(Unaudited)
For Year Ended Junc 30, 2013

Current Variance
. Original Revised Year's Favorable
REVINUES Rudget Budget __ Revenmes (Untuyvorable)
Administration 001 5 5,840,120 $ 5822211 § 5,80231% b 70,107
Career and Tech Education
100-199 5,430,911 5,819,369 5,839,755 20,384
Instruction for Handieapped
200-299 10,452,400 12,819,916 12,001,992 (727,924)
Itinerant 300-3%9 3,682,582 2,534,320 2,483,272 (51,048)
Geaneral Tnstruction
A00-499 3,164,054 3,357,912 3,147,942 (209,970}
Instructional Support
500-599 6,196,100 B,141,935 7,989,509 (152,22a)
Cither Scrvices
GO-689 5,773,597 6,070,422 6,559,401 488,079
TOTAL REVENUELS F 40,939,764 44,565,885 % 44,004,189 3 (561,696)
{See Independent Anditors' Report) 19



EXPENDITURES

Administration 001

Career and Tech Education
100-1599

Instruction for ITandicappet
200-259

Ttinerant 300-359

General Instruetion
400499

Instructional Support
500-59%

Othor Services
GO0-699

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)
OF REVENUE OVER
FEXPENDITURES

(Sco Independent Auditors’ Report)

Reqguired Supplemental Information
OSWEGO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual - General Fund

(Unaudited)

For Year Ended June 30, 2013

Current Varlance

Oriplnal Revised Year's Favorable
Budget Budgpet ixpenditures  Encumbrances (Unfavorahle)
$ 5842650 § 5,822,211 % 480R600 % 29,356 & B94.255
5,870,750 5,819,369 5,248,410 112,093 458,866
10,464,662 12,819,916 11,003,793 186,087 1,630,036
3,683,871 2,534,330 2,230,442 41,035 262,843
3,173,824 3,357,012 2,886,663 34,180 437,069
6,199,320 8,141,735 7.369,807 78,127 693,801
5,704,678 6,070,422 5,815,433 5119 245 870
$ 40,939,764 § 44,565,885 i 39,457,148 § 485,997 ¥ 4,622,740

H - & - F 4,547,041
40



OSWLGO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
Analysis of Account A431 - School Districts
Yor Year Ended June 30, 2013

2013
July 1, 2012 - DEBIT (CREDIT) BALANCE b {1,553,543]
DEBITS: )
Billings to school distriets T 3 42,603,042
Retund of balances made to school districts 2,978,062
Refund of balances made to other BOCES
Erate distribution 580,066
Encumbrances - Juns 30, 2013 AR5,997
Total Debits £ 46,657,007
TOTAL 45,103,519
CREDITS:
Collections from school districts £ 42,022,649
Adjustment - credits 1o school districts -
revenues in excess of expendilures 4.547.041
Encumbrances - June 30, 2012 160,659
Total Credits £ 46,730,349
JUNE 30, 2013 - DEBIT (CREDIT) BALANCE g ! 1,526,330!

(See Independent Anditors' Report) ¢l



43 (oday sioupny ioopuadapu 255}

BLFIFE S5  SS9OIIES  S6YSOS1S  TSOGOCIS  IEISL 5  CFLI96ZE §  SGIGBLC§  FIDESOL S FL0U9L1 S  OCGOSLGE §  (OLCUSLoE § 1£10.],
251 0T TEO4RY T DTS | ECY T = 6T GEG L GL1ERFL PISEE0] [FTR ] CE0ECY ST SSOEZVEL [10F - 12%fo14 sp1a £9308
lsz1°81) 1818t - - LErEL ooz 09z'9s - OoToE - - Teafond g poiy
90088 & SiEEET § figWET o3 - g = §  eoige & et £ - $  SOMSiT 8 EIPEET 0§ gigtef 8 peainnd sy
EEITEE] FELNN ey, Faanog PV EES  dopoEdoiny [T T3 SAEX oogendeaddy  uoneLdoIddy TP TN LT LR
mung ey papuadxansy L EREly ELOTH pasiasy] (emig
SUDUEUL] jO SPOYIIEN 520 OjIp Lo

£L0T '0g ANOr
STANIMNGINE LOHr0dd 40 ZTTIHDS AdVININS
NN SELOACOEd TYLIIVD

SADIAYES TVNOLLYDNAE FALLYHIA00D 40 TIV0E
ALNNOD GOTMS0



OSWEGO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDIRAL AWARDS
FOR THE. YEAR TNDED JUNE 30, 2013

Pass-Through

Grantor { Pass - Through Agency CIFDA Grantor Agency Toial
Federal Award Cluster / Program MNumber Number Number Expenditures
.5, Vepartment of Educafion:
Divect Program
Stoadent Financinl Assistance Program Cluster -
Pell Grant 84.063 12557 MA £ 112,661
Indirect Programs: -
Student Financial Assistance F'rogram Cluster -
FPassed Through NYS Department of Wigher Education - .
Vederal Dircct Student Toans 64.268 MIA MiA 154,238
Passed Through NYS Educaiion Depariment -
Migrant Education - Basic State Formula Grang 84.011 M/A 0035-13-0027 435,016
Migrant Education - Dasic State Pormula Grant 84,011 N/ 0035-12-0027 115,856
VATEA 84.048 NiA BO00-13-0021 175,989
WIA Title 2 84.002 A 2338-13-1065 51,753
WIA 84.002 MNiA 0040-13-1053 1,526
Raoo to the Top - VAP - ARRA 84.305 (S 5580-13-0008 111,757
Title 11D - Technology 84.318 A 0291-12-2038 126,012
Special Educatlon Clusier -
[DEA Part B - SETRC 84.027 MNiA C-010293 307,219
Total TLS. Depariment of Edueation 5 1,592,067
National Endowment for the Humunities;
Indireet Programs:
Passed Through NYE Deparimen! of Eduealion -
School Library System 43310 NIA 0070-13-1035 3 1,997
Total National Endowment for the Humanitles 5 10,997

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

43

$ 1,603,064



Raymond F. Wager, CPA, P.C.
Ceriified Public Accouniants

Shareholders: lenbors of
American Instibsle of
Kaymond ¥, Wager, CFA Certified h!&ﬂ;;ﬁmunmls
Themas.J. Lauffer, CFA Mew Yark Stale Society nf
Thomaz C. Zuber, CPA CertifEd Puhlic Acediminis

Report an Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Maiters Bosed on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance Wilh
Government Audittng Standards

To the Boand Members
Oswego County
Board of Cooperative Educational Services

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accopted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to finanecial audits contained i Govermment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United Siates, the linaneial statements of the governmental
activitics, cach major lund, snd the aggregate remaining fund information of the Oswego County Board
uf Cooperative Educational Services, New York, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the
related notes tothe financial statements, which collectively comprise the Oswego County Board of
Cooperative Educational Services , New York’s basic financial statements, and have issued owr repori
thereon dated September 18, 2013,

Internal Contral Over Financial Reporfing

Tn planning and performing our andit of the financial statements, we considered the Oswego Counly
Board of Cooperative Bducational Services , Mew York's internal control over financial reporling to
determine the andit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effeclivencss
ol the Oswego County Board of Cooporative Bducational Services ; New York™s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectivencss of the Oswego Counly Beard of
Cooperative Hdueational Services, New York's infernal contral,

A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation of a control doss not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misslatemenis on & Umely basis. A materiol weakness is a deficicney, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that o material misstatement
of the BOCES’ financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficicneies, in intormal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

44

1020 Lehigh Stalion Road + Soites 2 & 3 » Hemdetta, New York 14467
Tel: (5B5) 321-5647 + Fax: (385) 321-5644 » E-Mail: theoffice@raymendfisagercpa.com




Cur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this scetion and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might bo material
weaknesses or significant deficiencics, Given thess limitations, during our audit we did not identily any
deficiencies in internal control that we considet 1o be inaterial weaknesses. Ilowever, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Cther Matiers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Oswego County Board of Cooperative
Educational Services, New York's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we
performed lesis of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncomplianee with which could have a direct and material offcet on the determination of
financial statement amounts. Howover, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
diselosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to deseribe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
BOCES? internal contral or on compliance, This report is an integral pait of an awdit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the BOCES? intemal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication iz nof suitable for any other purpose.

ﬁfﬂ% — J;Oa?,ef drp- 7

September 18, 2013

45

Raymond I Wager, CPA, P.C.




OSWEGO COUNTY
BOARD OF COOPERATIVE EDIFCATIONAL SERVFICES
NEHW YORK

COMMUNICATING INTERNAL CONTROL
RELATED MATTERS IDENTIFIED IN AN AUDIT

For Year Ended June 30, 2013



Sharcholders:

Haymond B Wager, CPA
Thomas J. Lanffer, CTA
Thowas C, Zuber, CPA

Raymond E. Wager, CPA, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

Mambers of
Amasican Instilute of
Ceplifed "obiic Accounbanls
and
Newt Yook Sate Boclety of
Coniifbed ebile Accounlanls

September 18,2013

I'n the Board Members
Oswego Counly
Board of Cooperative Educational Services, New York

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statoments of the governmental activifies,
cach major [und, and the sgerregate remaining fund information of the Uswego County Board of
Cooperative Educational Services, New York as of and for the year ended Tunc 30, 2013, in accordance
with audiling standards generally accepled in the United States of America, we considered the Qswego
County Board of Cooperative Educational Services, Mew York's internal control over financial reporting
(internal control} &3 & basis [or designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the eftectiveness
of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, wo do not express an opinion on the offeetivencss of the
Disiricl’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or cmployees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to provent, or
deteet and cotrect misstatements on a Uimely basis. A material weakoess is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a rcasonable possibility that a material misstatement.of
the BOCES’ financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first pavagraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or inaterial weaknossos and, therelore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencics
have been identified, We did not identify auy deficiencies in infernal contro! that we consider to be
material weaknesses,

BOCES" wiitten responses to the deficiencies identified in our audit have not been subject (o tho
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we expiess no
opinion on them.

1020 Lehigh Station Road » Suites 2 & 3 = Henrictts, Mew York 14467 1
Tel: (585) A21-5643 = Fax! (385) 321-5644 « B-Mail: theefTice @raymendlvagercpa.com



Prior Year Deficiencies Pending Corrective Action:

Deficit Fund Balanee — Preschool Program —

Az avesull of Nscal stress related to cost screens and ditficulties with the State reimbursement
process, the BOCES transitioned the Preschool Program to private providers as of June 30, 2011,
The BOCES will be working closely with the State Education Depariment to close out the program in
order to maximize their reimbursement; hiowever, a deficit fund balance will remain,

The BOCES is in the process of working with Districts regarding the revenue shortfalls. We
recammend the BOCES consider contacting the Commissioner of Cducation and request a formal
apinion as to.the specific process to follow when climinating this deficit.

BOCES' Resporise -

BOCES continues to keep the Districts informed regarding the deficit status of these programs.
During 2012-13, New York State finalized their rate setting process for all outstanding programs and
BOCES was able to recoup additional revenue from the County of Oswego. As our BOCES is not the
only one in this situation, conversations are being conducted at the state level among SED officials
and BOCES Districl Superintendents to determine how deficits relative to these programs can be
addressed. We plan to give that process some time 1o sve whal develops, oxpecting that guidance will
be forthcoming. Upon receipt of such guidance, we will discuss with our disfricts to defermine a-
reaspmable approach to eliminate the deficits, which is in line with that guidance,

Adult Edueation -

The DOCES has made significant improvement in the Adult Education Program which generated
an ingroase in lund balance totaling $145,000 and eliminating the overall deficit fund balanee in the
Adult Education Program. In addition, it was noted that the Health Occupations program (CoSer 881)
had an operating gain of 16,724 during the 2012-13 fiscal year; however, a doficit fund balance of
$214,360 still remains for the prograim, as of June 30, 2013.

We recommend the BOCES continue o monitor the Health Occupations COSER in order fo
eliminate the program deficit,

BOCES' Response —

Continual efforls in budget development/monitoring to maximize efficiencies, strategically plan
course delivery, streamline staff and other expenses seems (o be working, In addition, during 2012-
13, the Adult Bducalion programs experienced an influx of student envollments, which played a
significant role in fiscal success. BOCES will continue to keop a sharp eye on those factors and also
continue the work toward acercditalion in order to open the door for student access to additional
financial assistance. BOCES is about half way through the process as an applicant under review for
acereditation, Tt is believed that the added lunding benefits for students will strengthen the fiscal
lhiealth of Adult Education through increased enroliment in all program offorings. The Oswego
County Board of Education conlinues to receive progress reports on operations and supports this long
tetm plan,



Currcnt Year Deficiencics in Internal Conirol:

Capital I'roject Vendor Contracts —

During the course of our examination we noted that the BOCES paid their construction manager
in aceordance with the original contract in place at the beginning of the project. However, as a result
of construction delays it was noted that the contract should have been amended in December 2013, it
was nol mnended until July 1, 2013,

We recommend an improved effort be made to monitor contract terms, to chsure when
modifications 1o contracts are requived they are done more timely,

BOCES’ Response —

This situation was brought to the attention of the BOCES by the suditors in the late spring of
2013 and the contract was subsequently adjusted and finalized in July 2013. In advance of the
contract adjusiment, however, the BOCES ceascd all payments to the constroction managers in the
late fall after it became apparent that the contract bids wers not able to be awarded and construction
planning meetings slowly revealed that significant construction delays were inevitable, Moving into
the future, the BOCES will keep an active eye out for any such similar situations that impact
timelines relative to contracts and agreements and will adjust contracts accordingly in & more timely
fashion,

Prior Year Recommmendations:

Wo are pleased to report the following prior year recommendations have been implemented to our
satisfaction:

1. The BOCES has implemented a plan to modify the way the Team Sheldon program is being
tracked and accounted for.

2. All required federal grant time allocation documentation was on hand for our review.

3. We wore not required to make an adjusting entry for revenues in the special aid fund.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board,
andit commitiee, and others within the organization and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyonc other than these specified parties.

We wish to express our appreciation to the business office staff for all the courtesies extended (o

us during the course of our examination.

September 18,2013



OSWEGO COUNTY BOCES

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Christopher 1. Todd
District Superintendent
FROM: Michael J. Sheper g -~

Assistant Superintendent for Administrative Services
SUBJECT: Resolution to Appoint Interlm Deputy Treasurer
DATE: 10/08/2013

At their annual Reorganizational Meeting on July 10, 2013, the Board adopted resolution 7.3
specifically appointing Eileen Dreher as Deputy Treasurer, However, Elleen Dreher is currently on
an extended medical leave and will be retiring shortly following her return. In order for the flscal
operations of the BOCES to continue without significant interruptions or delays, I would like to
recommend that an Interim Deputy Treasurer be appointed to assume the duties of this position in
Ms. Dreher's absence,

Therefare, the followlng resolution Is belng provided for consideration by the Board to appolnt an
Interim Deputy Treasurer in the absence of the Deputy Treasurer:

BE IT RESOLVED that further to the Resolution 7.3 Appolntment of Deputy Treasurer,
originally adopted at the July 10, 2013 Reorganizational Meeting of the Board, the Oswego
County Board of Cooperative Educational Services hereby appolnts Jennifer Woods as
Interim Deputy Treasurer in the absence of the Deputy Treasurer for the school year, at a
stipend of $895 to be prorated to her duration of appolntment.

Thank you.

MI15:mak



INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO: Christopher J. Tedd
District Superintendent
FROM: Michael J. Sheperdplf .-+

Assistant Superintendent for Administrative Services
SUBJECT: Resolution to Amend Audit Committee Charter
DATE: 10/09/2013
cC:

During their meeting on October 1, 2013, the Audit Committee dlscussed amending the
"Internal Audit Focus” section of the Charter by deleting the word “annual” to reflect the
Board's decision to adopt the Internal Audit Exemption. As a result of this discussion, the Audit
Committec voted to recommend this revision to the Board of Education.

Therefore, the following reviston of the Audit Committee Charter may be presented to the
BOCES Board of Education for their consideration:

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oswego County BOCES Audit Committee Charter be revised to
include the following language in the “Internal Audit Focus” section of the Charter:

o Review the Internal audit plan to ensure that high-risk areas and key control activities

are periodically identified, evaluated and tested.

Thank you for your consideration of this matter.

MIS:mak



155 Monthly Update-September

Received from Linda Nichols on 9/30/13:

The news for the VAP grant is that the mandatory report to SED was submitted on time.
The courses are up and running.

Received from Laurie Ouderkirk gn 10/2/13

Distance Learning Bullets:

Staying Connected — Coordinated and set up connections for two additional
homebound/hospital bound students in Dryden and Binghamton for a total of four
students this fall,

Coordinated “Monster Match” videoconferencing collaboration across NYS. 31 classes
are participating including 8 from Oswego County,

Met with Mexico librarians to explain videoconferencing opportunities.

Received from Tracy Mosher on 10/2/13

Special Education School Improvement Specialists {SESIS)
Teri Marks and Tracy Mosher - BOCES Board Report
October 2013

Teri and Tracy began work with their respective districts to complete the self-review
Local Assistance Plan (LAP) process for each identified school. The initial work has
included completing walkthroughs in special education classrooms and assisting with
the report writing. The reports must be Board approved and submitted to the State Ed
Department by the end of October.

Tracy began a series of trainings in one of the component districts, An overview, What
is Scaffolding ?, was provided at an elementary special education meeting. There were
two follow-up trainings: Scaffolding with an ELA Focus and Scaffolding with o Math
Focus (provided by Teri). The next step is to provide instructional coaching in October
for those teachers who attended the trainings in order to provide feedback of their
scaffolding strategies in the classroom.

Tracy attended NYS Alternate Assessment (NYSAA) training with the purpose of assisting
districts who are looking to strengthen the structures in place to prevent
misadministration of these assessments. Many misadministration errors are a result of
incomplete paperwork.

Teri is mentoring a new Special Education Director as she transition to her new position.
This included IEP and CSE processes,

Teri assisted in the Public Forum on the implementation of the Common Core in one of
the component districts,

Teri has provided training at several faculty meetings on supporting students with
disabilities in the Math Modules.



To: Roscann Bayne, Assistant Superintendent

From: Ronald A. Camp, Dircctor of Alternative Programs
Re: Crossroads

Date:  October 8, 2013

The first month of the Crossroads Academy is in the books and the students and tcachers
o4 wewd posenp g are getting scttled into the routine. In an
U8 h  effort Lo build a sensc of belonging we taok

the stalT and students to Caﬁlp Talooli to
do some team building aclivilics. As you
can see the

P 1
were able Lo begin the process of
becoming a [unctioning tcam.

Marparct Rice has been doing a great job
of liguring out the students interests and
tailoring the vocational piece fo the
student’s individual likes.

We have invited Cheryl Perkins, APPS
teen health issues educator, lo come in and
work on healthy relationships with the
students. Next week we are meeting with the Hastings Mallory Curriculum Coordinator
to determine how we can best utilize some of the Crossroads students to help some of the
clementary students.

We currently have the following enrollment:

Mexico - 6
Central Square - 2
Oswego -5
Phoenix - 2
Sandy Creck -1

If you need additional information please do not hesitate to contaet me al your
convenience.



"?'

‘:;.l’

CTE News

2 Model Schools technology trainings scheduled

2 articles in the Palladium Times — Public Safety repelling at the Scriba Fire
Department and Culinary students making muffins for the BOCES 21
meeting

Culinary Arts students made and served 200 bagged lunches at Senator
Richie's Senior Luncheon at the Fulton War Memorial

Auto Tech students are working on airbrushing Breast Cancer Awareness
ribbons on t-shirts for faculty members

358 pairs of footwear have been provided for students
Visiting lefferson-Lewis BOCES Exploratory program

Working with the Mexico Afterschool Program to bring students to visit our
programs and do some hands-on activities



Board of Education

Personnel Report
October 16, 2013

Leave of Absance

Nomo [Pragram Position Effective Dote
{Dimai, Renee [Exeeptional Educaliog eaching Assistont SA8/2013 - 1213112013
esignalions
Nome Progrom Position Effactive Duta
TZardner, Donnz Schodl Library System Sarsr Typial TR
Fobel, Elizabafh VAP Grant VAP Teacher 02512013
Appolntments
Pragram Name Position Type Agpt. Salury Eff. Date | End Date |Commants
Adult Education Gravalla, Gean Welding Insfrucior Temp E20.81 e DRI 6/30/2014]0-19 hrsfwhk 23 per imeshast
Altemative Education Capells, Deniel {Home Schooling Coordinsior Reagp $32.371hr OO0 E0AE | 06R0E01 not to exceed 312 hourstyoar
APPS {Paura, Kiisten |Teea Healih [ssves Fdusater {PT) Roapp §15.960hr  |0S042HA | D6/30V2044 |1 dayiwk as per timeshest
Long Term Subalibete Compuler
Carces & Techaical Bducation  |Slephens, Elzabeth | Systems Instruclor Temp 555, 704.00] fyr 100712013 06/30/2014 o be prorgted from 172013
District Offico Clark-Blaye, Kathryn  {Evaluator Redapp F450.000day (0012013 DBI30V2014 |aa per limeshest
| Slimmer, Mary |Evaluator Reapp s4s0.000day  [100172013 | 0G30/2044 [as per fimashcat
{Exceptional Education |acro, Stephanis Teacher of Deaf Education Prob &61,519.00)yr 100172013 1012016 t0 be prorated from 107172013
| Wells | Tad Inberpratar Reapp $B56.00)/atipend |09/302013 (630/2044 |4 be prorated from S30/2013
{mstiucsional Supporl Sonvices |Bauer, Denise Traings - NY SAA Reapp 540.004hr 09/19/2013 [ 063042014 |as per lmesheel
Clak-Mayo, Kathryn  |Goord. NYSAA Trainer Reapp S40.00)hr DOMaH13 06302014 |az por imeshest
Codost, Richard Workshop Presenter Teimip SEOD.00)Tolal  [DB/D52013 0613072014 |25 per fneshest
Thompson, Gracia | Traingr - NYSAA Reapp S4000)hr 09M9/2013 | D6A0F2014 |as per imosheet
Instructional Technoiogy Foor, Daniel AN Speclalist Froh 521 81|hr 10/02/2013 10M0EF 4110 be prorated from 10212013
|Migrant Education Burko, Rosemary Migrant Tulor Temp #15.50]mhr NAEHRA13 06/3072014]0-37.5 hrsiwk a3 per timeshasl
Mull-Ocsupation |Deary-Petroce, Carolyn [Teacher (50%) Reapp SAGE7E[yr  |D930/2013 | 064302014 Jio be prorated o 505 efi 430713
[Pieary-Pelrocei, Carclyn |Teaching Assistant (50%) Reapp 2753y 0973002013 | 0673072014 [io be prorated fo 80% eff, 302013
Dewego County Teacher Comier |Sweeting, Amver | Senior TypisL (Part-time) Reapp S14B5|Mr  |091602013 | O&E02014 010 hraiwk, as per imasheat
Pubfic Relations McCrobio, Sarah Fublic Information Assistant Proy 5$33,000.00 |y 10812013 to b prorated from 10012013
Surmmer Sohool 2013 Bayns, Kelly Reqsnts Procioring Reapp 365.000est (0311312013 081452013 |2 days
Corbeti, Pegay Regents Procioning Respp 865.00(Mest  |0AMSR205 | 0BNAT2043 |2 days
Crannell, Ezabeth  [Regents Procloring Reapp 165000t [0BN32013 | 081402015 |2 days
Cranngll, Eizaboth |Regonls Grading Reapp F10.00|%esl  (0ANS013 | GENATRO1E |7 days
Higginbatham, Kim  [Regants Procloring Respp $65.000Mesl  |08N32013 | 08MA2013 |2 deys
Sweat, Donna Socrotany Respp $12.82|hr B3 ) 0EI01E [as per limeshast
Woodridge, Kristing  [Regenls Procloring Reapp §65000Mesl  |0ANX2013 | 0BM4I2013 |2 days _
Increased up fo 20 add' days as
VAP Grant Calaran, Koith Conaulfant Toachor Reapp SHO00|day (09012043 | DRR0MANNA |per lmeshesd
+iRslatant, max, 25 sledents,
Cfandn, Tonella Teachar Feapp $30000f0kel  JO7AMA2HE | OBROIZD1Y |as per tineshest
increagsed up o 20 2dd' days as
Chtandt, Tonslie Consiiant Teachar Raapp $100.000day  |09ID1/2013 (573002014 |per timeshest
Warksiudy Sdudent # G2 Worksludy Shedent 105 (FEARR01E (RI26/2014 |as por fimeshoot
Sludent 63 Warkshudy Sfudant 4175 thr 02/18/2013 D260 14 |83 per imeshesl
Siydent # 64 Worksludy Student F1.75 0 oA RIS DRIPE/M014 |as par Iimasheot
Sudani # 65 Workstudy Sludant $175|mr  [0RNE2013 | DG/2672014 [as per Umeshest
Sludent & 66 Worksludy Student &1 7] OGRS | DERI01A [as per imashest
Siudent £ 67 Workstidy Studant $1.75)ihr FoME2013 | OBIZ6I2014 |as per limeshest
Sludent # 63 Workstudy Student $1.50hr OOMG2013 | DE/RGII014 [as per limeshesl
Sudant & 63 Workshudy Sludant $1.750thr 02er2013 0BI26t2014 |as per fimeshest
Student £ 71 Workstudy Student £1.75hr DOMGRA0TS | DR26M014 |as per timeshest
Sludent £ 72 Workshady Sludant £1.75)mr 00162043 | 0B/26/2014 |as per limeshest
Student g 73 Workstedy Siudent £1.75)hr |oariaaois | 02612014 |as per timesheel
Student # 74 Worksludy Student $1.75hr  [o/i6r2013 | 0672612014 [as per imasheol
Sludenl £ 75 Workstudy Student £1.750(hr |l]91"is.r2;313 DRI26/#014 |a3 per imesheet
Sludant £ 7§ Workstudy Student S175/Ihr  [09162013 | /262014 [as per fimesheet
Sludent £ 77 Workstedy Siudent E1.750hr DRME2013 (6I26/2014 |as per limesheet
Sludant # 73 Warkshedy Student 1750 DOMER0TE | DEMGE014 |as per limashest
Sludent & 79 Worksledy Siudent £1.750hr DAME2013 05I26120 14 |as per imeshest
Student % 80 Warkshudy Student §1750Mhr  |DRMER0ID | DBI2GI2014 [as perlimeshesl
Student # 81 Worksfudy Student §175)/r_ [09/16/2013 | 06/26/2014 |a5 per Umesheel
Shudent # 82 Workstisdy Student 51,75 hr OUBRINY | D6MR6M014 |B$ per limashest
Shudgnt # §3 Workaludy Sludent SL.7sjhr  |094i6M2013 | O6I26/2014 [8s per imesheet
Sludent # 34 Workstudy Studend 5175 hr NaMEH 3 0E/26/2014 |ER'=‘ per fimashest
Slutenl ff 85 Worksludy Student 5176 |09/16/2013 | OR/26/2014 |23 per imesheet
Shuder ¥ 5 Warkistucy Studet §175]Mr__ [08/16/2013 | D6/26/2014 |as per fmasheel
Shudenl & 87 Viorksiudy Sludent S1.75mr 09{16/2013 06/26/2014 |as per imeshest

Page 1




Boeard of Education

Personnel Report

October 16, 2013
Workshudy |Sludent £ 88 [Workstudy Studeni [ ] §1.75]r [0Or6013 [ 0862044 [as per imeshect

Subslitules
Adult Educalion
Hopp, Joffroy [516.86mr
Career & Technical Education
Boeckmann, Kyle |575 78iday
Exceptional Education
Anderaon, Deanna 458.94/hr; 3T0.36/day
Froio, Kathy 8R.5d . 370, 36/day
Fronk, Marygrace 56.54/hr
Gilbo, Jufa 58.94/hr
Hammand, Chrisline 381, 18iday
Papineau, Tamah £8.560r; 38,040, 570,367 day
Anyder, Debbie $6.94/hr; $70.36/day
Thibada, Micols S61 18iday
Instructional Technology

Whabzy, David [57.25mr

Page 2



2013 2410
1T ol4

p 0 L I C Y Community Relations

SUBJECT: CODE OF CONDUCT ON BOCES PROPERTY

The Oswego County BOCLS has adopted and will amend, as appropriate, a Code of Conduct
Jor the Maintenance of Order on BOCES Property, including BOCES functions, which shall govern
the conduct of students, teachers and other BOCES personncl, as well as visitors and vendors, The
Board shall further provide [or the enlorcement of such Code of Conduet.

For purposes of this policy, and the implemented Code of Conduct, BOCES property means on
or within any owned or lcascd building, structure, athlctic playing field, playground, parking lot or
land contained within the real property boundary line of the BOCES' schools or centers or in or on a
BOCES supervised school bus; and a BOCES lunction shall mean a BOCES-sponsored extracurricular
cvent or activity repardless of where such cvent or activity takes place, including those that take place
in another state.

BOCES programs or services provided in component district/host building" locations shall
comply also with the Code of Conduct prescribed by that building/district.

The BOCES Code of Conduct shall be developed in collaboration with student, ieacher,
administrator, and parent organizations, BOCES safety personnel and other personncl.

The Code of Conduct must include, at a minimum, the following;

a)

b)

Provisions regarding appropriate and acceplable conduct, dress and langnage on BOCES
property and at BOCES functions and conduct, dress and language deemed unacceptable
and inappropriate on BOCES property or at BOCES functions; and provisions regarding
acceptable civil and respectlul trealment of leachers, BOCES administrators, other BOCES
personnel, students and visitors on BOCES property and at BOCLES functions; the
appropriate range of disciplinary measures which may be imposed for violation of such
Codc; and the roles of tcachers, administrators, other BOCES personnel, the Board, and
parents/persons in parental relation to the student;

Provisions prohibiting discrimination. hullying and/or harassment against any sludent, by
employees or students on school property. er at a school function, or ofl school property
when the actions create or would foresceably create a risk of substantial disruption
within the school environment or where it is foresecable that the conduct might reach
school property, that creates a hostile environment by conduct, with or withoul physical
contact and/or verbal threals, intimidation or abuse (verbal or non-verbal), of such a
severe nature that:

1. llas or would have the effect of unreasonably and substantially interfering with a
student’s educational perlornmance, opportunities or benefits, or mental, cmotional
and/or physical well-being; or

(Continued)




POLICY oy i

2013 2410
20f4

SUBJECT:

2.

CODE OF CONDUCT ON BOCES PROPERTY, (Cont’d)

Reasonably causcs or would reasonably be expected to cause a student to fear lor
his/her physical safcty.

When (he term “bullving” is used, even il notl explicitly stated, such term includes
eyberbullying, meaning such harassment or bullying that occurs through any
form ol electronic communication,

Such conduct shall include, but is not limited to, threats, intimidation, or abuse hased
on a person’s actual or perecived race, color, weight, national origin, ethnie group,
religion, religious practices, disabilily, sexual orientation, gender as defined in
Education Law Section 1(6), or sex; provided that nothing in this subdivision shall be
construed to prohibit a denial of admission into, or exclusion from, a course of
instruction based on a person’s gender that would be permissible under Education Law
Sections 3201-a or 2854(2)(a) and Title 1X of the Education Amendments of 1972
(USC Scction 1681, ct scq.) or lo prohibit, as discrimination bascd on disability, actions
that would be permissible under 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973;

¢) Standards and procedurcs to assure security and safety of BOCES students and personnel;

d} Provisions for the removal from the classroom and from BOCES property, including a BOCES
function, of students and other persons who violate the Code;

¢) Provisions prescribing the period for which a disruptive student may be removed from the
classroom for cach inecident, provided thal no such student shall return lo the classroom unlil the
(Principal (or his/her designated School District administrator) makes a final determination pursuant to
Lducation Law Section 3214-(3-2)@ or the period of removal expires, whichever is less;

[} Disciplinary measures to be taken for incidents on BOCES properly or at BOCES functions
involving the possession or use of illegal substances or weapons, the use of physical force, vandalism,
use of tobacco, violation of another individual®s civil rights, harassment and threats of violence;

2) Provisions lfor responding to acts of discrimination, bullying and/or harassment against students
by employees or students on BOCES property. e+ at a school function, or off sehool property when
the actions create or would foreseeably ereate a risk of substantial disruption within the school
environment or where it is foresceable that the conduet might veach school property, pursuant to
clause (b) of this subparagraph;

h) Provisions for detention, suspension and removal from the classroom of students, consistent with
Educational T.aw 3214 and other applicable federal, state and local laws, including provisions for
appropriatc continued educational programming and activities for students removed from the
classroom, placed in detention, or suspended from BOCES;

(Continued)



2013, 2410

Jalfd
P O I I C & ) Community Relations

SUBJTECT: CODE OF CONDUCT ON BOCES PROPERTY, (Cont’d)

i) Procedures by which violations are reported and determined, and the disciplinary measures
imposed and carried oul;

i) Provisions ensuring the Code of Conduct and its enforcement are in complianee with federal and
state laws relating to students with disabilitics;

k) Provisions selling forth the procedures by which local law enforeement agencies shall be notified
of Code vielations which constitute a crime;

) Provisions setlling forth the circumstances under and procedurcs by which parents/persons in
parental relation to the student shall be notificd of Code violations;

m) Provisions sciting lorth (he circumstances under and procedures by which a complaint in criminal
court, a juvenile delinquency petition or person in need of supervision (“PINS") petition as delined n
Articles 3 and 7 of the Family court Act will be filed;

n) Circumstances under and procedurcs by which referral to appropriate human service agencies shall
be made;

o) A minimum suspcnsion pcriod for students who repeatedly arc substantially disruptive of the
educational process or substantially interfere with the teacher's authority over the classroom, provided
that the suspending authority may reduce such period on a case-by-casc basis to be consistent with any
other state and federal law. For the purposes of this requirement, as defined in Commissioner's
Regulations, “repeatedly is substantially disruptive of the educational process or substantially
interferes with the tcacher’s authority over the classroom™ shall mean engaging in conduct which
tesulls in the removal of the student from the classroom by teacher(s) pursuant to the provisions of
Liducation Law Scction 3214(3-a) and the provisions set forth in the Code of Conduct on four (4) or
more occasions during a semester, or three (3) or more oceasions during a trimester, as applicable.

p) A mininnum suspension period for acts thal would gualify the student to be defined as a violent
student pursuant to Lducation Law Scction 3214(2-a)(a). . However, the suspending authority may
reduce the suspension period on a case by case basis consistent with federal and state law.

q) A Bill of Rights and Respensibilitics of Students which focuses upon positive student behavior and
a sale and supportive school climate, which shall be written in plain language, publicized and
explained in an age-appropriate manner to all students on an annual basis; and

r) Guidelines and programs for in-scrvice cducation programs [or all BOCES staff members to
ensure cffeetive implementation of school policy on school conduct and discipling, including but not
limited to, guidelines on promoting a sale and supportive school climate while discouraging, among
other things, discrimination or harassment against students by students and/or school employees; and
including safe and supportive school climate concepts in the curriculum and clagsroom management,

(Continucd)




POLICY oy

SUBJECT: CODE OF CONDUCT ON BOCES PROPERTY, (Cont’d)

2014 2410
4 of 4

The BOCES Code of Conducl shall be adopted by the Board of Education only aller at least one
public hearing that provided for the participation of BOCES personnel, parents/persons in parental
relation, students, and any other intcrested partics. Copies of the Code of Conduct shall be

dissenminated pursuant to law and Commissioner's Regulations.

The BOCES' Code of Conduct shall be reviewed on an annual basis, and updated if necessary in
accordance with law, The BOCES may establish a committce pursuant to Education Taw Section
2801(5)(a) lo facilitate review of its Code of Conduct and BOCES® responsc to Code of Conduet
violations. The BOCES Board shall reapprove any updated Code of Conduct or adopt revisions only
attcr al least one public hearing that provides for the participation of BOCES personnel,
parents/persons in parental relation, students, and any other interested partics. The BOCES shall filc a
copy of its Code of Conduct with the Commissioner of Education; and all amendments to the Code of

Conduct shall be filed with the Commissioner no later than thirty (30) days afier their adoption,

The Board of Education shall ensure community awarcness ol its Code of Conduct by:

a) Posting the complete Code of Conduct on the Internet websile, if any, including annual updatcs

and other amendments Lo the Code;

b) Providing copies of a summary of the Code of Conduct to all students in an age-appropriate

version, written in plain language, at a school assembly to be held at the beginning of each
school year;

¢) Providing a plain language summery of the Code of Conduct to all parents or persons in

parcntal relation to students belore the beginning of cach school year and making the summery

available thereafter upon request,

d) Providing cach existing teacher with a copy ol the complete Code of Conduet and a copy of
any amendments to the Code as soon as practicable following initial adoption or amendment of

the Code. New teachers shall be provided a complete copy of the current Code upon their
cmployment; and

¢} Making complete copies available for review by students, parents or persons in parental
relution to students, other school staff and other community members,

Education Law Sections 11(8), 801-a, 2801 and 3214

Family Court Act Articles 3 and 7

Vehicle and Traffic Law Section 142

8§ New York Code of Rules and Regulations (NYCRR) Section 10026323

NOTE:  Reler also to Distrier Code of Conduet
Adopted: 5/12/10

Revised: 9/19/12,



2013 4310

POLICY

SUBJECT: PURCHASING

The BOCES Distriet's purchasing activitics will be part of (he responsibilities of the Business
Office, under the general supervision of the Purchasing Agent designated by the Board of Education.
The purchasing process should enhance school operations and educational programs through the
procurcment of goods and scrvices deemed necessary to meel BOCES Distriet needs.

Competitive Bids and Quotations

As required by law, the District Superintendent will follow normal bidding procedures in all
cases where needed quantitics of like items will total the maximum level allowed by law during the
fiscal year, (similarly for public works-construction, repair, ete.) and in such other cases that scem to
be to the financial advantage of the Seheal Dislriet BOCES.

A bid bond may be required if considered advisable,

No bid for supplies shall be accepted that does not conform to specilicalions furnished unless
specifications arc waived by Board action. Contracts shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder
who meets specifications. However, the Board may choose to rcject any bid.

_Rules shall be developed by the administration for the competitive purchasing of goods and
services.

The District Superintendent may authorize purchases within the approved budget without
bidding if required by emergencies and are legally permitted.

The District Superintendent is authorized to enter into cooperative bidding for various needs ol
the BOCES Sehesl-Distriet,

Request for Proposal Process for the Independent Auditor

Tn accordance with law, no audil engagement shall be for a term longer than live (5) consceutive
years. The BOCES Distriet-may, however, permit an independent auditor engaged under an existing
contract for such services to submit a proposal for such services in response to a request lor
competitive proposals or be awarded a contract to provide such services under a request [or proposal
Process.

Procurement of Goods and Services
The Board of Education recognizes its responsibility to ensure the development of procedures for
the procurement of goods and services not required by law to be made pursuant to competitive bidding

requirements, These poods and scrvices must be procured in a manner so as to:

a)  Assure the prudent and economical usc of public moncys in the best interest of the
taxpaycr;

(Continued)




2013 :4'3 {1
2af6

POLICY

SUBJECT: PURCHASING (Cont'd.)

b)

c)

Facilitale (he acquisition of goods and services of maximum qualily at the lowest possible
cost under the circumstances: and

Guard against [avoritism, improvidence, extravagance, fraud and corruption.

These procedures shall contain, al a minimum, provisions which:

a)

b)

d)
c)

f)

%)

Prescribe a process for determining whether a procurement of goods and services is subjoct
to competitive bidding and if it is not, documenting the basis for such determination;

With certain exceptions (purchases pursuant to General Municipal Taw, Article 5-A; State
Finance Law, Scction 162; Statc Correction Law, Section 184; or those circumstances or
types of procurements set forth in (f) of this section), provide that alternative proposals or
quotations for goods and services shall be sccured by usc of written request for proposals,
wrillen quotations, verbal quotations or any other method of procurement which furthers
the purposes of General Municipal Law Section 104-h;

Set forth when each method of procurement will be utilized;
Require adequate documentation of actions taken with each method of procurement;

Require justification and documentation of any contract awarded to other than the lowest
responsible dollar offer, stating the reasons;

Sct forth any circumstances when, or the types of procurement for which, the solicitation of
alternative proposals or quotations will not be in the best intcrest of the BOCES Distriet;
and

[dentify the individual or individuals responsible for purchasing and their respective titles.
Such inlormation shall be updated bicnnially.

Any unintentional failure to fully comply with these provisions shall not be grounds to void
action laken or give rise lo a cause of action against the BOCES DBistiet or any BOCES Dastriet

cmployce.

The Board of Education shall solicit comments concerning the Scheoel-Bistriet BOCLES™ policies
and procedures [rom those cmployees involved in the procurcment process. All policies and
procedures regarding the procurement of goods and services shall be reviewed annually by the Board.

Best-Malue

M-S eeton-tdwasamended m perrﬂlt—&

*ﬂ.:hGUi—lelt’lL—l—G! BOCES m award pmdlaia eoniracta-irexeessobtwentv-thew
Meﬁ&%&%&sﬂh&%ﬁh&ﬁh&&%%ﬁﬁwﬁ%&m&a&%ﬂﬁm&a&al
Bducatonmmstudopta-resshatonaa-pabbemestimsationsng-the-award ot nds based on "best

(Continucd)



2013 4310
I ’ 30f6
O I_ I CY Tersonnel
SUBIECT: PURCHASING (Cont'd.)

’H‘IIHELH-}B—BE : i . n " rd-recommendations—on—an

neeting. A has{—-v&h&w&ré—ts—eﬂe—m&t—ep%wﬂh&
msi—aué—eﬁm&n&y, "E}";JI{}EH-V apphesta-eomplexservesand-techiologmsonirachand ds quantitiable
B R L et

"Pigeybacking" Law - Exception to Competitive Bidding

On August |, 2012, General Municipal Law (GML) Scetion 103 was amended to allow school
districts to purchase certain goods and services (apparatus, materials, equipment and supplics) through
the use of contructs let by the United States or any agency thereof, any state, and any county, political
subdivision or district of any statc. The amendment authorizes school districts and BOCES to
"piggyback" on contracts let by outside govermmental agencies in a manner that constitutes
competitive bidding "consistent with state law."

This "piggybacking" is permitted on contracts issued by other governmental entitics, provided
that the original conlract:

a)  IHas been let by the United States or any agency thereof, any state (including New York
State) or any other political subdivision or district therein;

b)  Was made available for usc by other governmental entities and agreeable with the eontract
holder: and

¢} Was let in a manner that constitutes competitive bidding consistent with New York State
law and 15 not inconflict with other New York State laws.

While BOCES may authorize the award of service contracts on the basis of "best value™, 1t may not
“prggyback™ onto a purchasing contract awarded by another agency on the basis of "hest value.

Alternative Formats for Instructional Materials

Preference in the purchase ol instructional materials will be given to vendors who agree to
provide materials in a usable alternative format (i.c., any medium or format, other than a traditional
print lextbook, for presentation of instructional materials that is needed as an accommodation lor each
student with a disability, including students requiring Scetion 504 Accommodation Plans, cnrolled in
the Seheol Distriet BOCLS). Alternative formats include, but are not limited to, Braille, large print,
open amd closed captioned, audio, or an electronic file in an approved format as defined n
Commissioner's Regulations.

(Continued)



2013 4310

POLICY

- — - —

SUBJECT: PURCHASING (Cont'd.)

As required by federal law and New York State Regulations, the Schoel-Distriet BOCES has
adopted the National Tnstruclional Malterials Accessibility Standard (NIMAS) to ensurc that
curriculum matcrials arc available in a usable alternative format for students with disabilitics. Each
school district has the option of participating in the National Instructional Materials Access Center
(NIMAC). Whether a district docs or docs not participate in NIMAC, the Bistriet BOCES will be
responsible to ensure that cach student who requires instructional malerials in an alternate format will
receive it in a timely mamer and in a formal thal meets NIMAS standards. The New Yok Slale
Education Department (NYSED) recommends that school districts choose to parlicipate in NIMAC,
because this national effort to centralize the distribution of instructional materials in alternate formats
will help guaraniee imely provision of such materials to students.

lior school districts, Boards of Cooperative FEducational Services (BOCES), Statc-operated
schools, State-supported schools and approved private schools that choosc to participate in NIMAC,
contracts with publishers executed on and after December 3, 2006 for textbooks and other printed
core materials must include a provision that requires the publisher to produce NIMAS files and send
them to the NIMAC (this will not add any cost to the contract).

For more information regarding NIMAC including model contract languapge, Steps for
Coordinating with NIMAC and an TDEA Parl B Assurancces Application, see website:
http:/fwww.vesid.nyscd. gov/specialed/publications/persprep/NIMAS . pdf

Geographic Preference in Procuring Loceal Agricultural Products

Schools participating in Child Nutrition Programs such as the National School Lunch Program,
School Breaklast Program and/or Speecial Milk Program arc cncouraged to purchase unprocessed
locally grown and locally raised agricultural products. A School District may apply an oplional
geographic preference in the procurement of such products by defining the local arca where this option
will be applicd. The intent of this preference is to supply wholesome unprocessed agricultural products
that are fresh and delivered close to the source.

A geographic preference established [or a speeilic arca adds additional points or credits to bids
received in responsc to a solicitation, but docs not provide a sct-aside for bidders located in a specific
area, nor does it preclude a bidder from outside a specified geographic area from competing for and
possibly being awarded a specilic contract,

Computer Software Purchases

Softwarc proprams designated for usc by students in conjunction with computers of the District
shall meet the following criteria:

a) A computer program which a student is required to usc as a learning aid in a particular
class; and

(Continucd)



2013 4310

POLICY

SUBJECT: PURCHASING (Cont'd,)

b)  Any content-hased instructional materials in an electronic format that arc aligned with State
Standards which are accessed or delivered through the internet and based on a subscription
model. Such electronic format malerials may include a variety of media assets and learning
tools including video, audio, images, teacher guides, and student access capabilities as such
terms arc defined in Commissioner's Regulations,

Environmentally Sensitive Cleaning and Maintenance Products

In accordance with Commissioner's Rcgulations, State linance Law and Eduecation Law,
cffective with the 2006-2007 school year, the District shall follow guidelines, specifications and
sample lists when purchasing cleaning and maintenance products for use in its facilities, Such [lacilitics
include any building or facility used for instructional purposes and the surrounding grounds or other
sites uscd for playerounds, athletics or other instruction,

Environmentally sensitive cleaning and maintenance products are those which minimize adverse
impacts on health and the environment. Such products reduce as much as possible exposures ol
children and school staff to potentially harm{ul chemicals and substances used in the cleaning and
mainienance ol school facilitics. The District shall identify and procure environmentally scnsitive
cleaning and maintcnance products which are available in the form, lunction and utility generally
used. Coordinated procurement of such products as specilied by the Office of General Services (OGS)
may be done through central stale purchasing contracts to cnsurc that the District can procure these
products on a competitive basis.

The SehoalBistriet BOCES shall notify their personnel of the availability of such guidelines,
gpccifications and sample product lists.

*Apparcl and Sports Equipment Purchases

Competitive Bidding Purchases

The Board of Education will only accept bids from "responsible bidders.” A delermination that a
bidder on a contract for the purchase of apparel or sporls equipment, 1s not a "responsible bidder” shall
be based upon cither or both of the following considerations:

a)  The labor standards applicable to the manufacture of the apparcl or sports cquipment
including, but not limited to, cmployee compensation, working conditions, employee rights
to form unions, and the usc of child labor; or

h)  The bidder's failure to provide information sullicient lor thc Board of Lducation to

determine the labor standards applicable to the manufacture of the apparel or sports
equipment.

(Continued)



2013 4310

POLICY s

SUBJECT: PURCHASING (Cont'd.)

Non-Competitive Bidding Purchases

The Board's internal policies and procedures governing procurcment of apparel or sporls
egquipment, where such procurement is nol required to be made pursuant to competilive bidding
requirements, shall prohibit the purchase of apparel or sports equipment, from any vendor based upon
gither or both of the following considerations:

a)  The labor standards applicablc to the manufacture of the apparel or sports cquipment
including, but not limited to, employee compensation, working conditions, employee rights
to form unions, and the use ol child labor; or

b) The bidder's failure to provide information sufficient for the Board of Education to
determine the labor standards applicable to the manufacture of the apparel or sporis
cquipment.

Contraets for Goods, sad-Serviees and Public Works

No contracts for goods and services shall be made by individuals or organizations in the sehes!
BOCES thal involve cxpenditures without first scecuring approval for such contract from the
Purchasing Agent.

No Board member or employee of the Sehoel-Distriet BOCLES shall have an interest in any
contract entcred into by the Board or the Seheelbistriet BOCLES,

Per General Mumicipal Law Section 103(5), Eupon the adoption of a resolution by a vote of at
least three-fifths (3/5) of all Board members stating that for reasons of efficiency or economy there is
need for standardization, purchase contracts for a particular type or kind of cquipment, materials or
supplies of more than twenly thousand ($20,000) dollars may be awarded by the Board to the lowest
responsible bidder furnishing the required sceurity after advertisement for sealed bids in the manner
provided in law. In addition, the Board is required to award all contracts lor public works in excess of
thirty-five thousand dollars ($35.000) to the lowest responsible bidder after advertising for public
sealed bids,

7CFR 210.21, 215.14(a) and 220.16

20 USC Section 1474(¢)(3NB)

Education Law Sections 305(14), 409-1, 701, 751(2)(b), 1604, 1709, 1950, 2503, 2554 and 3602
General Mumicipal Law Articles 5-A, sae=18 and Section 103

State Tinance Taw Scelions 162 qnd 163-h

8§ NYCRR Sections 155, 170.2, 200.2(h)(10), 200.2(c)(2) and 200.2(i)

NOTE:  Reler also o Policy #5660 -- School Food Serviee Program (Lunch and Breakfast)

Adoption Date:  5/12/10
Revised Date:



2013 4571
| of3

PO L l CY Mon -Instructionnl/Business

Ciperations

SUBIJECT: INFORMATION SECURITY BREACH AND NOTIFICATION

Oswego County BOCES wvalues the protection of privale information of individuals in
accordance with applicable law and regulations. Further, Oswego County BOCES is required to notify
affected individuals when there has been or is reasonably believed to have been a compromise of the
individual's private information in compliance with the Information Sceurity Breach and Notification
Act and Board policy.

a)  "Private information” shall mean **personal information in combination with any one (1) or
more of the following data clements, when cither the porsonal information or the data element 1s
not encrypted or encrypted with an encryption key that has also been acquired:

1. Social security number;

2. Driver's license number or non-driver identification card number; or

3. Account number, credit or debit card number, in combination with any required security
code, access code, or password which would permit access to an individual's financial

dccount.

"Private information" does nol include publicly available information that is lawlully made
available to the general public from federal, state or local povernment records.

#=UPersonal information” shall mean any information concerning a person which, because ol
name, number, symbeol, mark or other identificr, can be used to identify that person.

by  "Breach of ihe security of the system.” shall mean unauthorized acquisition or acguisition
without valid authorization of computerized data which compromises the security,
confidentialily, or inlegrity of personal information maintained by Oswego County BOCLS.
Good faith acquisition of personal information by an employee or agent of Oswego County
BOCES for the purposes of Oswego County BOCES is not a breach of the security of the
system, provided that private information is not used or subject to unauthorized disclosurc.

Examples-of Determining Eaeters il 1 Breach Has Oceurred

In determining whether information has been acquired, or is reasonably believed to have been
acquired, by an unauthorized person or person without valid authorization, Oswego County BOCES
may consider the following factors, among others:

a)  Indications that the information is in the physical possession and control of an unauthorized

person, stuch as a lost or stolen computer or other device conlaining information; or

(Continued)




2013 4571
2ol3

P O l_ I CY Non -Instructional/Business:

Olperations

SUBJECT: INFORMATION SECURITY BREACH AND NOTIFICATION (Cont'd.)

b) Indications that the information has been downloaded or copied; or

¢) Indications that the information was used by an unauthorized person, such as fraudulent
accounts opened or instances of identity thell reported: or

)  System failures,

Notification Requirements

)

b)

For any computerized data owned or licensed by Oswego County BOCLES that includes private
information, Oswego County BOCES shall disclose any breach of the security of the sysiem
following discovery or notification of the breach to any New York Stale resident whosc private
information was, or is reasonably believed to have been, acquired by a person without valid
authorization. The disclosure to alfected individuals shall be made in the most expedient time
possible and without unrcasonable delay, consistent with the legitimale needs of law
enforcement, or any measures necessary Lo delermine the scope of the breach and restore the
rcasonable integrity of the data system. Oswepgo County BOCLES shall consult with the Stale
Office of Cyber Security and Critical Infrastructure Coordination (CSCIC) to determine the
scope of the breach and restoration measures.

For any computerized data maintained by Oswego County BOCES that includes privale
information which Oswego County BOCES does not own, the BOCES shall notify the owner or
licensee of the information of any breach of the security of the system immediately following
discovery, if" the private information was, or is reasonably believed to have been, acquired by a
person without valid authorization.

The notification requirement may be delayed if a law enforcement agency determines that such

notification impedes a criminal investigation. The required notification shall be made afler the law
enforcement agency determines that such notification docs not compromisc the investigation.

Methods of Notification

The required notice shall be directly provided to the affeeted persons by one (1) ol the following

methods:

#)  Written notice;

b)  Llectronic notice, provided that the person to whom notice is required has cxpressly
consented to receiving the notice in clectronic lorm; and a log of each such notification is
kept by Oswego County BOCES when notifying affected persons in clectronic form,
llowever, in no casc shall Oswego County BOCES require a person to consent to acecpting
such notice in electronic form as a condition of establishing any business relationship or
cngaging in any lransaction;

(Continued)




POLICY

2013

4571
Jof3

Non -Instructional/Busincss
Operations

SUBJECT: INFORMATION SECURITY BREACH AND NOTIFICATION (Cont'd.)

¢) lelephone notification, provided that a log of each such notification is kept by

Oswego County BOCES when notifying affected persons by phone; or

d)  Substitute notice, if Oswepo County BOCES demonstrates to the Stlate Allorney
General that the cost of providing notice would exceed two hundred fifty thousand
dollars ($250,000), or that the atfceted class of subject persons to be notified exceeds
five hundred thousand (500,000), or that the BOCES does nol have sufficient contact
information. Substitute notice shall consist of all of the following:

1. E-mail notice when Oswego County BOCES has an e-mail address for the

subject persons;

2. Conspicuous posting of the notice on Oswego Counly BOCES' Website page, if
Oswepo County BOCES maintaing one; and

3. Notilication to major statewide media,

Regardless of the method by which notice is provided, the notice shall include contact

information lor the notifying Oswego County BOCES and a

description of the calegories of

information that were, or arc rcasonably believed to have been, acquired by a person without
valid authorization, including specification of which of the clements of personal information and
private information were, or are reasonably believed to have been, so acquired.

In the event that any New York State residents are to be notified, Oswego County BOCES
shall notify the New York State Allorney General (AG), the New York State Department of
(“nmume! Pmteatmn Board (C I‘HJ, and the New York State Officc of Cyber Sceutity (0CS)
- as to the timing, content and distribution of the noticcs

and ﬂppmxunatc numbcr ol aftected persons. Such-netesshall besnudewithoutdelaving netice

o affactad Maw Yearl Stata sagidanto

In the event that more than five thousand (5,000) New York State residents are to be
nolified at one time, Oswego County BOCLES shall also notify consumer reporling agencies, as
defined pursuant to State Technology Taw Section 208, as to the timing, content and distribution
of the notices and approximate number of alTected persons, Such notice shall be made without
delaying notice to affected New York State residents. A list ol consumer reporting agencies shall
be compiled by the Slate Attorney General and furnished upon request to school districts
required to make a notification in accordance with Section 208(2) of the Statc Technology Law,
regarding notification of breach of sceurity of the system [or any computerized data owned or
licensed by Oswego County BOCES that includes private information.

State Technology Taw Scelions 202 and 208

Adopted: 5/12/10
Revised:




2013 5130

POLI

SUBJECT: EVALUATION OF PERSONNEL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

+headministration-shal-underukes-continueus-program of’ SH|HFUHIHH—HHEI—B¥&J&&H{-‘)H—HI—.:H
persennel-in quagﬂ—CH&HﬁLBG@kLS—EVﬂhmﬁeﬂ—ef—tLacliﬂrvrprﬂ#l
personiel serviees—as—defined—pursuant to  Commiss -
geeordaneewith-Gewese-County BOCES" Aﬁ&u&kﬂm%ﬂemﬂ—ﬂu*ﬁafmﬁee—}{eﬂw%

s-MewYed-Code-ol Rules und-Hegulations NY-CRIY Seetions-30-1-1and 100 2(e H2)

The Oswego Connty BOC l* s commitled 1o supporting the development of effective teachers
and administeators. To this end. the Oswego County BOCES shall provide proecedures for the
cvaluation of all prolessional stalf. BOCES® plans for Annugl Professional Performance Review
(APPR) ol teachers and Principals shall be developed in accordance with applicable laws.
Commissioner's Regulations, and Rules of the Board of Regents,

The primary purposes ol these evaluations are:

a)  Toencourage and promole improved performance;
by To guide [u':'ah‘\auimml development efforts; and
eh Lo provide a basis tor evaluative judgments by applicable school officials.

APPR Ratings

For those teachers and Principals \'Ilhiu_i to Edueation Law 3012-¢, the Annual Professional
Pevlormpnee Review (A I‘JH will resull in a single uun;‘rmqh cffectivencss seore and linal quality
rading ol "highly effective" “effective," " The composite score will be
determined as follows:

developig.” or "mellechive,”

a) 2% - student growth on state assessments or other comparable measures of student prowth
(increnses to 25% upon implementation of a valuc-added growth model);

h) 2004 - locally selected measures ol student growth or achievement thal wre determined to be
rigorous and comparable across classrooms s defined by the Commissioner (decreases to
3% upen implementation of a value-added growth model): and

¢} 00% - other measures ol teacher/I'rincipal cllectiveness  consistenl with standards
prescribed by the Commissioner in regulation.

e malings seale based on composite scores has been established as follows:
n}  Highly Effective — composite effectivencss score ol'91-100
b)  LEffective — composite etfeetiveness score of 75-90

] [y L'|i_1|1i|!1; L'tmil'l-n.\'.iln;: eftfcotivencss score of 65-74
Ay lnetlective = composite ellectiveness score of (1-64

(Continued)




SUBJECT: EVALUATION OF PERSONNEL (Cont'd.)

If @ teacher or Principal is rated “developmg" or "inefTective," Oswego County BOCES will
develop and implement o teacher or Principal improvement plan (T1P or PIP). Tenured teachers and
Principals with u pattern of ineflective teaching or performance, defined as two conseculive annual
“meffective” ratings, may be charged with incompetence and considered lor termination through an
expedited hearing process,

The Oswego County BOCES will ensure that all evaluators are appropriately trained consistent
with standards prescribed by the Commissioner and that an appeals procedure is locally developed.

Disclosure of APPR Data

Consistent with Chapter 08 of the Laws of 2012, which amends Education Lww 3012-¢, the
Commissioner is required to disclose professional performance review data for lenchers and Principals
on the New York State Education Department (NYSED) website and in any other manner to make
such dati widely availuble to the public. However, the release of such ageregate data may not include
personally identifiable information for any teacher or Principal. Such public disclosure of final guality
ratings and composite cllecliveness scores will be suitable Tor research, analysis and comparison of
APPR data Jor teachers and Principals across the state,

Upon request, the Oswego County BOCES will release to parents/lepal puardians the final
quatlity ratings and composite effeetiveness scores [or teachers and Principals to which their student is
currently assigned. The BOCES® oblipation o disclose this information is limited to those teachers
and Building Principals subject to Education Law 3012-c. The Oswego County BOCES will provide
conspivuous notice to parents/legal puirdians of their night to obtain such miovrmation and the methods
by which the data can be obtained. Upon request, parents will receive an oral o written explanation ol
the composite elfectiveness scoring ranges for final guality ratings and be offered the opportunity to
understand such seores in the context ol teacher evaluation and student performance. When a fequest
tor this information is received, reasonable citorts will be made (o verify that it is o bona fide request
by a parent/legal guardian colitled Lo review the data,

Aanual prolessional performance reviews of individual teachers and Principals shall not be
subject to disclosure under the Freedom ol Tnformation Law (FOLL).

liducation Law Scclion 3012-¢
Public Officers Law Sections 87 and 89
B NYCRR Sections 30-2 and 100.2(0)

Adoption Date




POLICY -

2013 5341
1ol6

SUBJECT: FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT

The Board of Cooperative Education Services, in accordance with the Family and Medical
Leave Acl ol 1993 (FMLA), gives "eligible" employees of the Oswego County BOCLS the right
to take unpaid leave for a peried of up to twelve (12) workweeks in a 12-month period as
determined by the BOCES. The Oswego County BOCES will compute the 12-month period
according lo the following time frame: a "rolling” 12-month period that is measurcd backward
from the datc an cmployec uscs any FMLA lcave.

The entitlement to leave lor the birth or placement of a child shall expive at the end of the
twelve (12) month period beginning on the date of such birth or placement.

Employees arc "cligible” if’ they have been cmployed by the BOCES for at least twelve
(12) months and for at least 1,250 hours of service during the previous 12-month period. Full-
time teachers are deemed 1o meel (he 1,250 hour lest. The law covers both full-time and part-
time employees.

Qualificd cmployces may be granted leave lor one (1) or more ol the following reasons:

i)

b)

The birth of & child and care for the #sfaat child:
Adoption of a child and care for the chilil;
The placement of a child with the employee # from foster care,

To care for a spouse, minor child or parcnt who has a “scrious health condition™ as
delined by the FMLA;

Fo care lor an adult child who is incapable of self-care due to a disability (regardless
of date of the onsel ol the disability) and has a “serious health condition™ as delimed
Iy (e FPMILAC ained on

A scrious health condition of the employee, as defined by the 'MLA, that prevenis
the employee from performing job dutics.

A Cserious health condition™ s delined as an illness, injury. impairment or physical or
mental condition that involves patient care or continuing treatment by o health care provider
that renders the person eapacitated for more than three 3) conseeutive calendar  days,
Furthermore, the tiest visil 1o a health care provider for an employee claiming a “serious health
condition™ under FMLA must oceur within seven (7) days ol the aforementioned incapacity with
the second required visil oceurring within thirty (30) days of the incapacitating event, In order
o an employee o clann the veed Tor continuous (reatment under FMLA for o chironice serious
health condition, (he eondition must require a nmimum ol two (2) visits per year to a healtheare
provider, continue over an extended period of time, and may cause episodic mther than o
conbinung period ol incapacity. A “senious health condition™ is also delined as any period of
eapielty related o pregnancy or for prenatal care.

(Continued)




2013 -5-341-

POLICY oo

ﬁ

SUBJECT: FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (Cont'd.)

Military Family Leave Entitlements

Military Caresiver Leave

An eligible employee who is the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin (defined as
the nearesl blood relative of that-indisidual) is cotitled 1o up 1o lwenty-six (20) weeks of leave in
a sinple twelve (12) month period to care for a milttary member who 1s:

recovering from a-serious-tHness—ertnfurysustimedinthe-hne-olduty while-en—aetive-dubys
entied—to—up—to—twentysix (26 weeks—ol-deave-in-a-single 1 2Z-menthperiodto—varetorthe
servicemembes—Thismililary carcgiver leave—is—avatable—during a—sinule2-menth—period
Llui‘mg—wluch an eilgtbl&emp}eyeeﬁ—eﬂ%ﬂed—%%emﬂbmed—h%m%—mx (20) weeksefaH
~Caresiver-Leave-may-be-combined-with-ether forms o FMEA-

Fulﬂfed—‘eﬂ—ﬂm%{%g—a—e{:ﬂﬂhiﬂﬁd total of twenty-six—2e—wesks—ot possibletemvelor-any
single-twelve {12) month-perted—hewever—the-stherformo FMEAeavewhen-combined ean

st enseoi-Brehieb e the et s 20 o eelars Peonihined Tosve,

a)  Recovering from o service-conmected sertous iliness or mjury sustained while on
aetive duly; or

by  Recovering from a serious illness or mjury that existed prior to the service member's
active duly and was agmravated while on active duty; or

¢) A veteran who has o qualitying injury or illness from service within the last live (5)
veirs and aggravates thal illness or injury.

Fhis military caregiver leave is available diring a single twelve (12) month perod during
which an eligible employee is entitled (o a combined ltal ol twenly-six (26) ‘-‘Ll.L-le\ ol all types
of FMLA leave, Military Caregiver Leave miay be combined with other forms of IF'MLA-relited
leave providing o combined ttal of twenty-six (26) weeks ol possible leave tor any single
twelve (12) month period: however, the other lorm off FMLA leave when combined cannot
excead twelve (12) of the twenty-six (20) weeks of combined leave. Military Carepiver Leave
has a set “clm.:k“ for calculating the twelve (12) month period for when FMLA leave begins and
tolling starts al the lirst day of leave taken.

The term Hbﬂ’ﬁ&fﬁﬂ—ﬁﬁi—'ﬁ-&ﬁ m:hl 1y mcmb{:r mcans a—member—ot—the-Armed Forces:

el

a) A member of the Regular Armed Forces (ineluding a miember of the National Guard
of Reserves) who is undergomg medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy. is
otherwise in outpaticnt status, ar 1s otherwise on the tlemporary disability retived hst,
lor i serious injury or illness: or




2013 5341
Aof6
I O I l ‘ Y Personnel
SUBJECT: FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (Cont'd.)

h) A veleran (discharged or released under condition other than dishonorable) who is
uride rEoImg moedical treatment, Feciper ation, or the rupy, [or 4 scrious njury or ilness
and who wis 0 member of the Armed Forces (ine luding a member ol the National
Cruand or Reserves) al any time during the period of five (5) yvears preceding the date

o which the veteran undergoes that medical treatment, récuperation or therapy,

"Qualifying Ixigency” Leave/Call to Active Duty

An "cligible" cmployec is cntitled to FMLA lecave because of "a qualifying exigency"
arising out of circumstances where the spouse, son, daughter, or parenl of the cmployee is
serving in either the Regular Avmed Forces or either the National Guard or the Reserves and is
on active duty during a war or national emergency called for by the President of the United
States or Congress, or has been notified of an impending call lo active duly status, in support of a
Cﬂnltngﬂlmy operation. There is no “qualilying exigency™ unless the military member is or s
about to be deployed to a forcign country,

A "gualifying exigency" related to families ol the Army National Guard of the United
States, Army Reserve, Navy Reserve, Marine Corps Rescrve, Air National Guard of the United
States, Air lorce Reserve and Coast Guard Reserve personnel on (or called lo) active duly to
take FMLA protected leave to manage lheir allairs is defined as any one (1) of the following
reasons:

a)  Shorl-nolice deployment;

b)  Military events and related activities;

¢)  Childcare and school activitics;

dy  Parvental care leavie:

¢} Financial and legal arangements;

1 Counseling;

1) Rest and recuperation (lor up o filteen (15) calendar days);

1y Post-deployment activities; and

11 Any additional activitics where the employer and employee agree to the leave.

In any easc in which the necessily lor leave due to a qualifying exigency is foreseeable, the

employee shall provide such notice to the cmployer as 1s reasonable and praclicable. This
military-related leave is for up to twelve (12) weeks during a single 12-month period.



2013 5341

POLICY >

SUBJECT: FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (Cont'd.)

Implementation/Benefits/Medical Certification
Employees are required to exhaust sick/personal time belore going on unpaid status.

An emplovee on FMLA leave is eatitled to have health benefits maintained while on leave.
II'an employee was paying all or part of the premium payments prior to Icave, the cmployee will
continuc to pay their sharc during the leave period.

In mosl instances, an employee has a right {o relurn to the same position or an cquivalent
position with cquivalent pay, benefits and working conditions at the conclusion of the leave.

The Board has a right to 30-days advance notice from the employee where practicable. In
addition, the Board may require an employee to submit certification from a health care provider
to substantiate that the leave is due to the “serious health condition” ol the employce or the
employec's immediate family member. Under no cireuwmstance should the employee's direct
supervisor contact any health care provider regarding the emiplovee's condition: all contuet 1 this
manner must be made by a heallh care provider (employed by the emplover), a luman resoures
professional, o leave administratoy or a management oflicial. 15 the medical certification
eguested by the employer is found to be deficient, the employer must indicate where the errors
are. e writing, and give the employee seven (7) days to provide corrected malerials (o cure any
deficiency prior to any action being taken

-Fatluro-to-comphy—waith—theseseg : ' '
de—mwﬂisﬂ—reqﬁﬂe-thﬂ{—an employee pmsent a ool uimmm;mt—htnw—m-m%&mm—k—uﬂaeﬂ
ﬂéi&&ﬂ—i—h@—ﬂﬁﬂld }m& the-righit-to

den-ymsmmuﬁ

prﬁce-:iur{:s tor filnpcomphanks

s—te—implement this—peliey—inloring
empieyebs of the;r 1|glm—aﬂd—Fea.ﬁm+‘ahﬂ+hu+m+deFH+e—FW—A—

special Provisions Tor School District Emplovees

An mstructional employee is an employee whose prineipal function is to teach and nstruct
students in a class. a small group. or an individual setting (e.., teachers; coaches. deving
istructors, special education assistants, cte.). Teaching assistants ind aides who do ot liave
instracton as the pememal Tunction of then Jobare ool considered an "instruclional employee.”




2013,

POLI

SUBJECT: FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (Cont'd.)

Intermitlent Leave Taken By Instractional Enmployces

FMLA leave that is taken at the end of the school year ind resumes al the beginning of the
next school year s nol regarded as intermitlent leave bul rather continuous leave, The period in
the interim (... summer vacation) is not counted against an employee and the employee musi
continue 10 receive any benefits that are customarily given over the summer break.

[ntermittent leave may be taken but mwst meel certain eriteria. T the instractional employee
requesting intermittent leave will be an that leave for more than twenty percent (20%) of the
number of working days durng the period Tor wineh the leave would cxtend. the following
criterta may be nquuul by the emplover:

a)  Take leave lor a period or penods ol o particalar duration, not greater than the
duration of the planned treatment; or

b)  Transter temporarily to an available alternative position for which the employee is
qualified, which has equivalent pay and henefits and which better accommuaodates
recurming perods ol teave tham does the employee's regular position,

Appropriate notice Tor foreseeable 'MLA leave still applies and all emplayees must be
returned 0 an equivalent position within the School Dhstrict. Additional  work-related
certifications, requirements and/or training may not be required of the employee as a contingent
ol thewr return o work,

Leave Laken by Instrpctional Employees Near the End ol the Instructional Y e

Phete are also spectal requirements Tor instructional employees taking leave and the leave's
relation to the end of the term. I the instructional :mqﬂ{}»u i% laking leave more than live (5)
wecks prior o the end of the term, the District may require that the employcee lake the leave until
the end of the tarm i the leave lasts more than three (3) weeks and the cimiployee was scheduled
to return prior to three (3) weeks belore the end ol the term,

IT the instructional employee is taking leave less than Bve (5) weeks prior to the end of the
termn lor any ol the following FMLA-related reasons exeept qualilying exigeney, the District may
require that the employee remmn oul for the rest of the term it the leave lasts mare than two (2)
weeks and the employee would return to work during that two (2) week pecod at the end of the
instruchional term.

I1" the instructional coployee begins taking leave during the three (3) weeks prior o the end
ol the lerm Jor any reason except qualitying exigeney, the District may require that the employee
continue leave until the end of the term if the leave is scheduled o last more than five (3)
working days,




2013 5341

POLICY —

SUBJECT: FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (Cont'd.)

Any additional Gme thal is required by (he employer due o the timing of the end of the
sehool year, will not be charped against the ecmployee as FMLA leave because it was the
amployer who reguested that the leave extend until the end of the term.

Fivil.A Notice

A notice which explains the FMLA'S provisions and provides mformation concerning the
procedures Tor filing complaints of violations of the FMLA shall be posted in each school
butlding and o notice ol an employee's FMLA mghts and responsibilities shall be either |!L:LLL1 m
the employee handbook ol the employer or lurished o each new cmployee upon hire. The
aiployer has live (5) days to supply such notice from the date of hire.

Administration is directed o develop regulations o implement this policy, informing
ciployees of their rights and responsibilitics under the FMLA.

Lamily and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (as amended), Public Law 103-3

Nutional Defense Authorization Acl ol 2008, Public Law 1 10-151

O UST 101 a)(13)

2050 163001 and 261 1-2654

20 CFR Part 825 and Part 1634

2 USC 12102

Health Inswrance Portability and Aceountability Act of 1996 (HIPAAY, Public Law 104-191
A5 CFR Parts 160 and 164

Adopted: 5/12/10
Revised:




2013 6310

POLICY v

SUBJECT: STUDENT EVALUATION

Each-program—enrolling-siudents which-is-operated-by-BOCHESsheall-have a—clearlydeveloped
ﬂliﬂm&ﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ&ﬂ—ﬂ&i%ﬁ%&mﬂ—mﬁHWWW%imenm
ae —Each-student's-evaluation will be-made-en-the-basis-of

Ih%amﬂlalmnﬂt their uhmﬂtwea at- ﬂ!&-&ﬁpfﬁ%ﬂﬁ%&—lﬁ\’ﬁl—ﬁf—pﬂﬁﬁfﬂ&ﬂﬂ&&-
pg{fpﬁa{eﬂal}d-they will pive puidance-te—instdetors

and-administration on-when-certain-studenisa
Placement

Placement within the system, with respect to building, teacher, and grade or special class, shall
be at the discretion ol the BOCES administration and shall be subject to review and change at any
time, In making such decisions, the administrator or Building Principal will be guided by performance
in class, past records, parent/guardian and teacher recommendations, standardized test scores, and any
other appropriatc sources of information, but the final decision shall rest with the BOCES
administration. Parents may request, in writing, teacher attributes that would best serve their child's
learming needs; however, requests for specific teachers will not be honored,

Promotion and Retention

The procedures to be lollowed by the stalf regarding promotion and retention will be developed
by the District Superintendent and will be continually cvaluated. Building Principals may establish
wrilten standards for promotion or retention within the school units to which the students are assigned,
subjcct to the guidelines of the Superintendent and the approval of the Board ol Education.
Testing Program

The Board of Education endorses and supports the use of ability, achicvement, diagnostic,
readiness, interest and guidance tests as parl of the total educational process to the degree to which
tests help the BOCES Bistriet to serve its students.
Alternative Testing Procedures

The use ol allernative testing procedures shall be limited to:

a)  Students identified by the Committec on Spccial Education and/or Section 504 Team as

having a disability. Allernalive lesting procedures shall be specified in a student's
Individualized Education Program or Scction 504 Accommodation Plan; and

(Continued)




2013 6310

POLICY

SUBJECT: STUDENT EVALUATION (Cont'd.)

by  Students whose native language is other than English (i.e,, English language learners) in
accordance with State Education Departinent Guidelines.

The alternative testing procedures employed shall be based upon a student’s individual needs and
the type ol test administered.

The Bistset BOCES shall veport the use ol allernalive testing procedures to the State Education
Department on a form and at a time prescribed by the Commissioner.

Reporting to Parents/Guardians
Parents/guardians shall receive an appropriate report of student progress al regular intervals.
Report cards shall be used as a standard vehicle for the periodie reporting of student progress and
appropriate school related data. Report cards, however, are not intended to exclude other means of

reporling progress, such as interim reports, conferences, phone conversations, cte.

When necessary, attempts will be made to provide interpreters for non-Englhish speaking
parents/guardians.

Scetion 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 United States Code (US C) Section 794 et scy.
# New York Code of Rules and Regulations (NYCRR) Scetions 100.2(g), 117 and 154
Education Law Section 1709(3)

Adopted: 5/12/10
Revised:




2013 6464

POLICY

SUBIJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS ACT

The Board of Education recogmizes that learning environments that arc safc and
supportive can increase student attendance and improve academic achievement. A student's
ability to learn and achieve high academic standards, and a school’s ability o educate students, is
compromised by incidents of discrimination or harassment, including but not limited to bullying,
taunting and intimidation. Thercfore, in accordance with the Dignity for All Students Act,
Education Law, Article 2, the District BOCES will strive to create an environment free of
bullving, diserimination and/or harassment and will foster civility in the schools to prevent and
prohibil conduel which is inconsistent with Bistriet BOCES' educational mission. Since
cyberbullying is a form of bullying, the term “bullying” as used in this policy will implicitly
include cyberbullying even ifit is not explicitly stated.

The Bistet BOCES condemns and prohibits all forms of bullying, discrimination and/or
harassment of students based on actual or perceived race, color, weight, national origin, ethnic
group, religion, relipious practice, disability, scxual oricntation, gender, or sex by school
cmployees or students on school property and at school-sponsored activitics and cvents that take
place at locations ol school property. In addition, any act of bullying, diserimination and/or
harassment outside of school sponsored of events, which can reasonably be expected to
materially and substantially disrupt the education process, may be subject to discipline.

Dignity Act Coordinator

At least one (1) employee at every school shall be designated as the Dignity Act
Coordinator(s). The Dignity Act Coordinator(s) will be thoroughly trained to handle human
relations in the areas of race, color, weight, national origin, cthnic group, rclation, religious
practice, disability, scxual orientation, gender (identity or expression) and sex. The Board of
Education shall appoint the a Dignily Act Coordinator(s) who 1s employed by such Districter
BOCES and is licensed and/or cerlilied as a classroom teacher, school counselor, psychologist,
nurse, social worker, administrator/ supervisor or Superintendent of Schools. Districts must and
sharc the name(s) and conlact information of the Dignity Act Coordinator(s) with all school
personnel, students, and parents/persons in parcntal rclation, which shall include, but is not
limited to, providing the name, designated sehool and contaet information by:

a)  Listing such information in the Code of Conduct and updates posted on the Internet
website, if available; and

b)  Including such information in the plain language summary of the Code of Conduct
provided to all persons in parental relation to students before the bepinning of cach
school year; and

(Continued)



2013 6464
2 0f4

POLICY

SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS ACT, (Cont’d)

c)

d)
c)

Providing such information to parents and persons of parental relation in at lcast one
(1) district or school mailing or other method of distribulion including, but not limited
to, through electronic communication and/or sending such information home with
each student and, il such information changes, in at least one subscquent district or
school mailing or other such method of distribution as soon as practicable thereafter;

Posting such information in highly visible arcas of school buildings;

Making such information available at the district and school-level administrative
offices,

If a Dignity Act Coordinator vacates the position, another school employee shall
immediately be designated for an interim appointment as Coordinator, pending approval from
the Board of Education, within thirty (30) days of the date the position was vacated. In the event
a Coordinator is unable to perform the duties of the position for an extended period ol time,
another school employee shall immediately be designated for an interim appointment as
Coordinator, pending return of the previous Coordinator to the position. The Distriet BOCES
must provide the change in information (o parents or persons in parental relation as soon as
practicable. The change in name and/or contact information of the Dignity Act Coordinator will
not constitute a revision to the Code of Conduct so as lo require a public hearing,

Training and Awareness

Training will be provided each school year for all BOCES cmploycecs in conjunction with
cxisting professional development training to raise awareness and sensitivily to ol bullving,
discrimination n1d/or harassment ard dirccted at students that are committed by students or
school employees on school property. ee at a school function, or off school property when the
actions ereate or would loreseeably ereate a risk ol substantial disruption within the schowl

covironmend o whoere 1l as loreseeable that the conduct migh! reach school property.

Training will include ways to promote a supportive enwmnment t'rmt 15 fn—::e Imm
bullving, discrimination and or harassment. ‘Iraining shall:

demonairate- prevmﬂmmﬁﬁemmeimﬁﬁ%&ﬂmp}ewﬁmgﬁﬂﬁg—ﬂﬂé

responding to harassment and-diserimination; as-well-as-ensuring-the safety-of vietims:

i)
b)

e

c)

d)

Raise awareness and sensitivity;

Address social patterns and the effccts on students;

Intorm cmployees on the identilication and mitigation of such acts;

Provide strategies for effectively addressing problems of exclusion, bias and

Appression;
(Continued)




POLICY

2013

6464
Jol4

Students

SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS ACT (Cont'd.)

¢) Include safe and supportive school climate concepts in curriculum and classroom

Mandgemen t, and

f)  Ensurc the ctfective implementation of school policy on conduct and discipline.

emp}mﬁ&e—pew%aﬁaﬁps—fmd—d%&w—pm*mm
ayees—in—resognizing —and responding—te—bullying
diser mmmtmﬂ H!iﬁfﬁr—]l&iﬁ&&ﬂmﬂl—ﬁﬁ—ﬁ‘&ﬂ—ﬁﬂ—ﬂﬂ&&bﬁg—ﬂiﬂ-&dﬁﬁ-ﬂﬁh

HHon

et

Instruction in grades Kindergarten through 12 shall include a component on civility,
citizenship and character education. Such component shall instruct students on the prineiples of
honesty, tolerance, personal responsibility, respect for others, observance of laws and rules,
courtesy, dignity and other traits which will enhance the quality of their experiences in, and
coniributions Lo, the communily. For the purposes ol this policy, “tolerance,
others” and “dignity” shall include awareness and sensitivity to discrimination or harassment and
civility in the relations of people of different races, weights, national origins, ethnic groups,
religions, religious practices, mental or physical abilities, sexual orientations, genders and sexes.
Such component must also include instruction on the safe and responsible use of the Internet and

glectronic communications.

i@

rcspeet for

Rules against diserimination and harassment will be included in the Code of Conduet,
publicized BOCES-wide and disseminated to all staff and parents. Any amendments (o the Code
will be disseminated as soon as practicable following their adoption, New teachers shall be
provided a complete copy of the current Code upon their employment. An age-appropriate
summary shall be distributed to all students at a school assembly at the beginning of cach school

year.

Reports and Investigations of Discrimination and Harassment

The BOCLES will investigate all complaints of bullying. diserimination snd/or harassment
ands either formal or informal, and take prompt correetive measures, as necessary, Complaints
will be investi gﬁl@d—ﬂhﬁf&lﬂdﬂfﬂ—%h—&ﬁﬁiﬂﬂe—pehaeﬂmﬁ%ﬂuﬁn& Scheal BOCLES
cmployees who witness or receive a report (oral or wnilen) of harassment, bullying and/or
discrimination must orally notify the Superintendent, Principal, or their designee no later than
ane (1) school day after witnessing or receiving a report of such incident. The employec must
then file a written report within iwo (2) school days aller making the oral report, If, after an
appropriate investigation, it is found that this policy has been violated, corrective action will be
taken in accordance with BOCES policies and regulations, the Code of Conduct, and all
appropriate federal or state laws. The District Superintendent, Principal or their designec shall




2013 6464

POLICY

SUBJECT: DIGNITY FOR ALL STUDENTS ACT, (Cont’d)

notily the appropriate local law enforcement agency when it is believed that any harassment,
bullving and/or discrimination constitlute eriminal conduel.

The BOCES will annually report material incidents of bullyving, discrimination and/or
harassment which ocourred during the school year to the State Education Department. Such
report shall be submitted in o manner preseribed by the Commissioner, on or betore the basic
educational data system (BEDS) reporting deadline or such other date as determined by the
Commissioner, SED has developed a form [or gathenng data titled, "Reports of Ineidents
Concerning School Salety and the Educational Climate” which can be [ound on the NYSED

"'.‘.'='E'F"~":|l.' i

The Mrincipal shall provide a regular report (at least once during each school year) on data
and trends related to harassment, bullying and/or discrimination to the District Superintendent
and in a manner prescribed by, as applicable, the BOCES. There is no need for schools or
disiricts to submit this report to the State Education Department.

Prohibition of Retaliatory Behavior (Commonly Known as “Whistle-Blower™ Protection)

Any person who has reasonable eausc to suspeet that a student has been subjected to
Diserimination or harassment by an employee or student, on school grounds or at a school
function, who acts reasonably and in good faith and reports such information to school officials
or law enforcement authorities, shall have immunity from any civil liability that may arisc from
making such reporl. The Board prohibits any retaliatory behavior directed at complainants,
victims, witnesses and/or any other individuals who participated in the investigation ol a
complaint of discrimination or harassment.

Education Law Sections 10-18 and B01-a 2501 and 3214
& New York Code of Rules and Regulations (NYCRR) Section 100.2(H)(2)

NOTE:Refer also to Policies:
#2410 -- Code of Conduct on School Property
#1440 -- Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment
#2430 -- Uniform Violent and Disruptive Incident Reporting System
(VADIR)
16440 — Sexual Harassment of Students
#6462 -- Bullying in the Schools
#6403 -- llazing of Students

Adopted: 9/19/12
Rovised:



2013 6492

POLICY

SUBJECT: STUDENT DATA BREACHES

A student data breach is delined as any instance in which there is an unauthorized release of or
access to personally identifiable information (PII) or other protected information of students nol suitable
for public release,

School-distiets BOCLS have a legal responsibility lo proteel the privacy ol education data,
including personally identifiable information (PLI) of its students. The Family LEducation Rights and
Privacy Act of 1974, commonly known as FERPA, protects the privacy of student education records.
Although FERPA does not include specific data breach notification requirements, it docs protect the
confidentiality of education records and requirves districts to record each incident of data disclosure in
accordance with 34 CI'R 99.32 (a)(1). In addition, under state law, direct notilication ol parents and/or
affceted students may be warranted depending on the type of data compromiscd, such as student social
security numbers and/or other identilying information that could lead to identity theft.

The Bistret Oswego County BOCLES has implemented privacy and sceurity mcasurcs desipned to
protect student data stored in its student data management systems. These measures include reviewing
information systems and data to indentify where personally identiliable information is stored and used;
monitoring data systems to detect potential breaches; and conducting privacy and sccurity awarcness
training for appropriatc stall. In the event of an alleged breach, the Bistset BOCLES will prompily take
steps to validate the breach, mitigate any loss or damage, and notily law enforcement if necessary.

~_The District Superintendent will develop and implement regulations for prevention, response and
notilication regarding student data breaches.

34 CFR 99,32 (a)(1)
Technology Law Sections 202 and 208

NOTE:  Referalso to Policics #5672 -- Information Security Breach and Notification
#7240 -- Student Records: Aceess and Challenge

Adoption Date




POLICY

2013

Instruction

7130

luTIB’

b

SUBJECT: CIVILITY, CITIZENSHIP AND CHARACTER EDUCATION/
INTERPERSONAL VIOLENCE PREVENTION EDUCATION

Civility, Citizenship and Character Education

The Oswego County BOCES Board recognizes that teaching students respect, civility and
understanding toward others, as well as the practice and reinlorcement of appropriate behavior and

valucs of our sociely, is an important function of the School System.

The BOCES Seheel-Distriet wishes to foster an environment where students exhibil behavior
that promotes positive educational practices, allows students to grow socially and academically, and
encourages healthy dialopue in respectiul ways. By presenting teachers and staff as positive role
madels, the District stresses positive communication and discourages disrespectlul treatmenl, This
policy is not intended to deprive and/or restrict any student of his‘her right to frecdom of cxpression
but, rather, seeks to maintain, to the cxtent possible and reasonable, a safe, harassment free and

educationally conducive environment for our students and staff.

Furthermore, the BOCLES Distriet shall ensure that the course of instruction in grades K through
12 includes a component on civility, citizenship and character education in accordance with Education
Law, with an emphasis on discouraging acts of harassment, bullying and/or discrimination. Character
cducation is the deliberate effort to help students understand, care about, and act upon core ethical

values.

Character education shall instruet students on the principles of:

a4)  llonesty;
b)  Tolerance;
¢)  Personal responsibility;

d)  Respect for others;

e)  Awarcness and sensitivity to discrimination and/or harassment as defined in the Dignity for

All Students Act:

I} Civility in relation to people of different races, weights, national origins, cthnic groups,
religions, religious practices, physical or mental abilities, sexual orientations, genders or

SCXCS;
g)  Observance of laws and rules;

k)  Courtesy; and

(Continucd)




2013 7150

POLICY

SUBJECT: CIVILITY, CITIZENSIHIF AND CHARACTER EDUCATION/
INTERPERSONAL VIOLENCE PREVENTION EDUCATION (Cont'd.)

i) Dignity, and other traits which will cnhance the quality of students' cxpericnees in, and
contributions to, the communitys; and

1} Sale and responsible use of the Internet and clectronic communications.
As determined by the Board of Regenls, and as [urther enumeraled in Commissioner's
Repulations, the components of character education shall be incorporated in existing BOCES Sehool

Distrtet curricula as applicable.

Thc_BfJC!IS Bistriet encourages the involvement of staff, students, parents and community
members in the implementation and reinforcement of character education in the schools.

Education Law Sections 801 and 801-a
Interpersonal Violence Prevention Education
The BOCES BDistriet will ulilize the interpersonal violence prevention cducation package

provided by the State Education Department. These materials will be incorporated as part of the health
or other related curricula or programs for students in grades K through 12,

Eduecation Law Section 801 -a, 804(4)
8 NYCRR 100.2(2)(¢)(2)



